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Glory Sun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”) was established
in 2009 and listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited on 15 December 2010 (Stock Code: 01282.HK). The
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the business of financial services, property investment and
development, automation and securities investment.

The Group holds licences to provide comprehensive financial services,
including securities and futures trading, corporate finance, asset
management, wealth management and money lending in Hong
Kong and the PRC. After years of operations and experience, the
Group has become one of the most trusted partners in wealth
management and financial planning in Hong Kong.

The Group's property investment and development segment is
engaged with a number of property projects in Hong Kong and
various major cities in the PRC, covering projects including
commercial complexes, upscale residences, hotels, commercial
apartments and office buildings. It will continue to explore quality
property projects in the Greater Bay Area to increase its land reserves
for future development.

The Group is one of the leaders in the distribution of automation
equipment in the PRC. It maintains a close relationship and
collaboration with key business partners in the PRC. It is committed
to seizing the opportunities brought by the smart manufacturing
transformation under “Made in China 2025" and the opportunities
for 5G market development.

Adhering to its philosophy of “sustainable development and giving
back to the community”, the Group is committed to providing all-
rounded quality products and services to maximise return for its
shareholders, and at the same time contributing to the well-being of
the society as a whole. Looking ahead, the Group will rise to the
challenges of the formidable business environment and look for local
and overseas partners to promote the overall development of the
Group.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Yao Jianhui — Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Lau Wan Po — Vice Chairman
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Mr. Zhang Chi
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Yao Jianhui — Chairman

Mr. Lau Wan Po (resigned on 7 March 2022)
Mr. Li Minbin

Mr. Huang Wei
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Mr. Yao Jianhui — Chairman
Mr. Lau Wan Po
(resigned on 7 March 2022)
Mr. Li Minbin
Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Ho Lik Kwan Luke

(appointed on 2 September 2022)
Mr. Ho Ka Yiu, Simon

(resigned on 2 September 2022)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Yao Jianhui
Mr. Ho Lik Kwan Luke

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
Chong Hing Bank Limited

United Overseas Bank Limited

LEGAL ADVISER
Baker & McKenzie
Lee & Company, Eddie

AUDITOR
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants and
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 1908, 19/F., Tower 2, Lippo Centre,

No. 89 Queensway,

Admiralty,

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE IN CAYMAN ISLANDS

Suntera (Cayman) Limited

Suite 3204, Unit 2A, Block 3, Building D,

P.O. Box 1586, Gardenia Court, Camana Bay,

Grand Cayman, KY1-1100,

Cayman Islands

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE IN HONG KONG

Tricor Investor Services Limited

17/F., Far East Finance Centre,

16 Harcourt Road,

Hong Kong

LISTING VENUE/STOCK CODE
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited/01282

BOARD LOT
8,000 shares

COMPANY WEBSITE
http:/Avww.hk1282.com
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

OPERATING RESULTS
Revenue (Note 1)
Gross profit (Note 1)
EBITDA (Note 1&2)
EBIT (Note 1&3)
(Loss)/profit from
operations (Note 1)
(Loss)/profit attributable
to owners of the
Company

BELE

Wegs (P& 1)

EF (D)

EBITDA (FiiFE 1 )2 2)

EBIT(FI&E1 K3)
EiE(B8),/afl
(BFEET)
ARREE A
(&18),/ & F

2022
T

——

HK$'million
BEATT

811.4
182.2
(503.1)
(549.5)

(440.0)

(551.5)

MBHE

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t-HL#FE

2021 2020 2019 2018
—T-—% ZEZTF T-hF ZT-)N\F
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million

BEET BEBT BEBTT BEBT
2,614.8 1,573.5 10,887.8 1,483.2

605.5 338.1 1,953.7 511.5

119.7 (135.5) 1,930.4 922.0

53.6 (187.3) 1,851.5 901.2

66.0 (203.3) 1,830.8 890.5

(189.0) (217.3) 684.3 670.8

() GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#fi€m&EBEER A A



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B 755 i 22

As of 31 December

R+=HA=+-—H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—E-C —T-—% CZEZTF T-hEF ZE-N\F

HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million
BEBT BEET BEBAT BEAT BEAET

FINANCIAL POSITION BIERR

Total assets EERE 7,940.5 9,884.2 33,1242 29,439.1 10,781.2
Net assets EEFE 5111.4 6,334.0 10,862.1 10,761.3 6,964.8
Net current assets MEEEFE 1,051.1 1,765.4 7,789.3 42356 1,456.4
KEY STATISTICS TEHE
Gross profit margin (Note 1) EFI= (KfzE1) 22% 23% 21% 18% 35%
Operating profit/(loss) mERMN/ (B8 %

margin (Note 1) (PH#ET) (54%) 3% (13%) 17% 60%
Net (lossy/profit margin % (&18) /& F& (66%) (1%) (7%) 9% 46%
Return on equity i 7K [B] ¥ & (11%) (1%) (5%) 9% 10%
Interest coverage (Note 4)  F| BB ZH K (Mizt4) (13.2) (0.8) (9.4) 3.7 11.1
(Loss)/earnings per share &% (E518), /&7

(HK cents) (&)

— Basic — &K (1.76) (0.60) 0.71) 2.55 2.60

— Diluted — &8 (1.76) (0.60) 0.71) 2.55 2.60
Dividend per share (HK cent) SRS (B1l) - - - - 0.20
Current ratio MENLL & 1.4 15 1.6 13 1.4
Notes: B 2E
1. The revenue, gross profit, EBITDA, EBIT, (loss)/profit from operations, gross profit 1. —E - FN - —FMkEE - EF - EBITDA -

margin and operating (loss)/profit margin in 2022 and 2021 represent the EBIT - 484 (B518), & F - BER R REY (BE) &
operating results from continuing operations. FIEEREBELENEEES -

2. EBITDA is calculated at (loss)/profit before income tax from continuing operations 2. EBITDATYIRIE R AR B EEK 2B BRI (B

subtracted by finance costs — net and adding back depreciation of property, B)HFBATERE—FE BNOYE K&
plant and equipment and amortisation of intangible assets. RRBTERELEERHGH -

3. EBIT is calculated at (loss)/profit before income tax from continuing operations 3. EBITHIREREFELEEB 2BRABHAI(E
subtracted by finance costs — net. 18),/ TR AR B A A — F R -

4. Interest coverage is calculated at (loss)/profit before income tax from continuing 4. FEBELRTIRE IR SR EL S EBHBRATERAT
operations subtracted by finance costs — net and divided by finance cost of the (F518), /% FE A B A5 AR AN — SRR I B DA R S B A 75
Group. KAGE -
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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Revenue

W =

(APPROX. HK$811.4 MILLION)
(#9811.4 8B L)

259.3 (31.9%)

4

Property Investment
and Development

@ Finandial Services Automation and others

Revenue
W =
(HK$ million)
(BBET)
10,887.8
2,614.8
1,483.2 1,573.5
811.4 (Year)
(1)
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Revenue

W =

(APPROX. HK$2,614.8 MILLION)
(#92,6148EHEHE L)

1,767.7 (67.6%)

Year 2021

O MERBRER © SRR BEb R EAD
Gross Profit
EF
(HK$ million)
(BEET)
1,953.7
605.5
511.5
338.1
182.2
(Year)
(F13)
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
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EBITDA
EBITDA
(HK$ million)
(BB#T)

1,930.4

922.0

119.7
(135.5) (503.1)

|

(Year)
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 (&1p)

Total Assets

EERE

(HK$ million)

(BB#T)

33,124.2
29,439.1
10,781.2 9,884.2
7,940.5

(Year)
(%

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B 25 4 22

(Loss)/Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

KATEE AES (BE)&F
(HK$ million)
(B&8%7t)

670.8 684.3

(217.3) (189.0) (551.5)

(Year)
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 (F{p)

Net Assets
EEFE
(HK$ million)
(BBET)

10.761.3 10,862.1

6,964.8
6,334.0

51114

(Year)

(%17)

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
BV i

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Glory Sun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year").

The Group recorded a revenue from continuing operations of
approximately HK$811.4 million, representing an decrease of
approximately 69.0% in revenue from approximately HK$2,614.8
million as recorded in the previous financial year. The decrease in
revenue was mainly due to the decrease in scale of the property sales
made handover to the customers in the Year as compared with those
in the previous year.

The Company recorded a loss for the Year of approximately
HK$537.4 million (2021: approximately HK$68.8 million). The
increase in the loss for the Year as compared to the previous financial
year was primarily attributable to the decrease in fair value gain on
investment properties of approximately HK$135.9 million and the
decrease in the revenue of approximately HK$1,803.4 million leading
to the decrease in gross profit of approximately HK$423.3 million.
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MARKET OVERVIEW

Hong Kong stocks slumped in 2022 due to the tightening of global
monetary policy, continuous geopolitical risks, resurgence of
COVID-19 and other adverse factors. Fierce competition in Hong
Kong's securities industry further weighed on the brokerage business.
Despite the challenges, Hong Kong's financial market remained
resilient and sound.

In recent years, under the influence of multiple factors such as
macro-control, epidemic impact and economic downturn, the China
real estate industry in China faces increasingly pressure. The real
estate market has entered a period of adjustment, and the weak
demand has led to a substantial reduction in transaction volume. In
this context, the Central Government has repeatedly stated in 2022
that real estate is a pillar industry of the national economy. Since the
second half of 2022, the Central Government has frequently released
proactive policies and taken continuous financial support measures.
The Central Economic Working Conference at the end of the year set
the focus of real estate in 2023 to remain “to ensure the steady
development of the real estate market, and do a solid work in
ensuring housing project delivery, people’s livelihood and stability.” It
can be predicted that priority will be given to the subsequent
stabilization of real estate expectations and the recovery of market
confidence, and the market is expected to gradually stabilize and
recover.

During the year, the Company’s real estate business mainly focuses
on developing industrial real estate in Guangming District of
Shenzhen City and comprehensive property in Ganzhou City.

Guangming District is one of the key development areas of
Shenzhen, striving to build a world-class science city and the northern
center of Shenzhen. With many plans implemented, industries
entering and supporting implementation improved, Guangming
District has become the “famous zone” of Shenzhen real estate
market in recent years. In 2022, due to the disturbance of the
epidemic and the weakening macro economy, the construction and
market entry of many new projects were delayed, thus decreasing
the popularity. In the long run, with the gradual maturity of the
business districts in Guangming District and the further release of
high-tech industrial agglomeration function, the rent and sales
market in Guangming District will be driven to continuously grow.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
B2 a0

Ganzhou, the second largest city in Jiangxi Province by GDP, ranked
at the top among cities in Jiangxi in terms of economic growth rate
in recent years. Ganzhou's market had the basically same
performance with the national market in 2022. Under the influence
of a series of regulation and control policies, Ganzhou market has
entered the deep adjustment period. Buyers have a growing wait-
and-see attitude, and the real estate market is more obviously
differentiated. Due to market regulation, Ganzhou's real estate
market in 2022 sees a promising starting but a less satisfactory
ending in terms of trading volume. Compared to 2021, the overall
situation shows a declining trend. With a large inventory, Ganzhou's
commercial market faces a fierce competition. Ganzhou is the most
populous city in Jiangxi Province. Currently, it is still in the growth
stage of urbanisation, and there is still a great demand for real estate.
With the continuous favourable real estate policies, the real estate
sector is expected to gradually recover after it has formed a bottom.

With the gradual improvement of the intelligent manufacturing
system, the industrial 4.0 era represented by artificial intelligence, big
data, 5G and other technologies has come, and a growing number
of companies are beginning to expand their automation business.
The deployment of 5G infrastructure and the advent of 5G
smartphones in the PRC contributed to the increase in demand for
SMT equipment.

Looking ahead, Hong Kong's economy is expected to be on the track
of rapid growth. Building a diversified, sustainable and dynamic
financing platform has always been the direction of Hong Kong’s
efforts to enhance its competitiveness. In addition to consolidating
and leveraging Hong Kong's advantages as an international financial
hub, China’s move to expand domestic demand will provide new
growth impetus for Hong Kong'’s economic development.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Established in 2009 and listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in December 2010, the Group is
principally engaged in the business of financial services, property
investment and development, automation and securities investment.
Over the past years, the Group has been adhering to its philosophy
of “sustainable development and giving back to the community”
with its commitment to provide all-rounded quality products and
services to maximise return for its shareholders and contribute to the
well-being of the society. In the face of a challenging business
environment, the Group will strive to improve its business planning
and operating performance in 2023 to promote its long-term
growth.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

FINANCIAL SERVICES BUSINESS

The Group provides comprehensive financial services in Hong Kong
through its subsidiaries, and has been striving to connect the capital
markets onshore and offshore over the years. The Group makes
contribution to the economy through financial services and offers all-
aspect financial services to its customers based on its operational
concept of being stable and innovative.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the financial services segment
netted approximately HK$47.5 million in revenue (2021:
approximately HK$102.7 million), representing a year-on-year
decrease of approximately 53.7% and approximately 5.9% of the
Group's total revenue (2021: 3.9%). The operating loss amounted to
approximately HK$118.4 million (2021: approximately HK$181.9
million).

Securities Brokerage Services

The securities brokerage team is committed to providing its clients
with more comprehensive, professional and convenient services over
the past years to enlarge the Group’s market share, and therefore,
trading volume of securities in the market rises year by year. It
continued to adjust its marketing strategies by advertising through
multiple channels, including radio advertising, television advertising
and popular social networks and allocated more resources on the
compilation of research and analysis reports to seize the opportunities
presented by the vigorous securities market. With more popular
functions added to the eTrading mobile application, clients tended to
conduct more trades online as a result of better investment
experience.

Asset Management Services

The asset management team provided an array of services including
fund management, discretionary account management and
investment advisory services to high-net-worth individuals,
corporations, and institutional clients in global markets. As at the
date of this report, it acts as the investment manager for 4
segregated portfolio company funds with 4 segregated portfolios.
Further, it also provided investment advisory services to institutional
clients on a wide range of investment products in the financial
markets. As at 31 December 2022, the total assets under
management amounts to approximately HK$560 million.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
B2 a0

Wealth Management Services

As one of the leading wealth management hubs, Hong Kong has
been providing comprehensive financial services to onshore and
offshore clients. With its geographical advantages and long-term
experience in serving the PRC market, Hong Kong is expected to
maintain its leading position in Greater China wealth management
and further development of Hong Kong wealth management
industry is expected. In 2022, the Company provided diversified
wealth management services to its clients so as to fulfill their different
wealth management needs.

Money-lending Services

The Group holds a money lender’s licence and is a member of
TransUnion Limited. It provided long-term secured loans such as
share mortgage and property mortgage and short-term unsecured
term loans. In 2022, the Group continued to optimize its money
lending business structure by adopting a conservative approach and
tightened loan approval procedures to strengthen its risk and capital
management.

Precious Metal Trading Services

The Group hold a A1 membership of the Chinese Gold and Silver
Exchange Society to engage with the businesses of 99 Gold, HKD
Kilo Gold, London Gold/Silver and Loco Silver. In 2022, it continued
to provide clients with quality online trading services of gold and
silver as well as comprehensive precious metal trading business for
goods and physical gold and silver and render services of investment
management and investment advisory for them to capture
investment opportunities.

PROPERTY INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT
BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the revenue of the property
investment and development segment was approximately HK$259.3
million (2021: approximately HK$1,767.7 million), accounting for
approximately 31.9% (2021: approximately 67.6%) of the Group's
total revenue. The decrease in revenue was mainly due to the
decrease in scale of property sales made handover to the customers
during the year as compared with those in 2021.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the operating loss of the
property investment and development segment was approximately
HK$82.4 million, compared to the operating profit of approximately
HK$98.0 million recorded in the previous year. The turnaround from
the operating profit to operating loss was primarily due to the
decrease in fair value gain on investment properties of approximately
HK$135.9 million.

Shenzhen Baoxin Science and Technology Industrial
Park Project

The Group holds a large industrial real estate development project —
Baoxin Science and Technology Industrial Park — in Guangming
Science City in Guangming District of Shenzhen. With a total
construction area of 550,000 square meters, this project plans to
build an industry-city complex integrating science and technology
research and development, professional industrial space, business
office, smart apartment, leisure and business in line with the standard
for world-class science city. The project consists of three phases.
Phases | and Il have been put into use, while the office buildings,
research and development buildings, talent apartments and
commercial supporting facilities of Phase Ill are under construction.

In 2022, closely focusing on the government’s industrial policy
orientation, the park, based on the spatial characteristics, actively
introduced relevant institutions and enterprises to move in with
intelligent manufacturing as the leading industry, and science &
technology finance and information service industry the auxiliary
industries. Thanks to superior geographical location and
comprehensive industrial supporting services, the park has attracted
more than 100 enterprises to move in, including some outstanding
listed companies that set up headquarters here.

Affected by the epidemic control, the business activities of customers
in the park have been restricted for several times. In the face of
various difficulties, the project team actively responded. To accelerate
investment attraction and sold-out progress, flexible lease
combination policies were adopted to proactively enhance customer
viscidity. The project team has made efforts to improve the quality of
marketing and promotion activities by increasing income and
reducing expenditure, and have successively held artificial intelligence
exhibition, Guangming District Innovation and Entrepreneurship
Competition, Innovation and Entrepreneurship Week, Double
Seventh Festival activities, joint press conference of Quality and
Technology Supervision Bureau and short video promotion.
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In order to strengthen the service awareness education of the project
team staff and improve the property service quality of the park, the
project team completed the regular repair service for the park’s
customers in 2022, and carried out free large-scale nucleic acid
testing and vaccination in the park for several times. The project
team has established complete information files of enterprises in the
park, provided policy interpretation and declaration assistance for
enterprises in the park, and assisted several enterprises to declare
2022 annual rent subsidies of the Science and technology Innovation
Industrial Park. The above measures greatly improve customer
satisfaction, and effectively increase the rental rate of property.

Ganzhou Real Estate Project

The Company develops two large comprehensive real estate projects
in Ganzhou City of Jiangxi Province.

The Ganzhou Project of the Company mainly sells office buildings,
shops, apartments and other products. Affected by the market
environment and leftover products, the overall transaction amount in
2022 is lower than that in 2021. In order to cope with the
unfavorable situation of the market, Ganzhou Company carried out
the concept of “shared office” to attract customers, and at the same
time, introduced the policy of “purchasing office building to enjoy 3
years of free-of-charge property service” to promote sales. Ganzhou
Company has launched the policy of sales with lease for the rented
but unsold offices, and overall packaging to attract customers. The
Company also continues investment attraction for office buildings,
enhances customers’ purchase confidence, and drives sales with
office building investment attraction. All-staff marketing policy is
executed to expand customer acquisition channels and project
spread, thus improving project visits. In terms of stall products,
Ganzhou Company implements staged preferential policies and
adopts special discount, flash sale, group purchase and other
activities for the customers in specific industries to facilitate
conclusion of business. Integrated marketing channels were added to
sell leftover apartments and flexible marketing strategies were
adopted according to market conditions to facilitate visits and
transactions.

The Company also has certain investment properties in Hong Kong
for the purpose of leasing.
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AUTOMATION BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the revenue of the
automation segment recorded approximately HK$574.6 million
(2021: approximately HK$794.0 million), representing an decrease of
27.6% over the last year and accounting for approximately 70.8%
(2021: approximately 30.4%) of the Group’s total revenue. The
decline in revenue was primarily due to a decline in orders for
machineries due to intermittent shutdowns in China’s manufacturing
sector due to the pandemic, longer delivery cycle of suppliers and a
sluggish consumer electronics market.

As China has entered the industrial 4.0 era, the manufacturing
industry in China accelerates the intelligent transformation. The
“Intelligent Factory” and “Intelligent Manufacturing” have increased
the demand for a large number of SMT equipment. Gallant Tech
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, focuses on the sales and
technical services of advanced intelligent-manufacturing equipment,
including SMT and semiconductor manufacturing equipment, and
also provides equipment leasing, financing and other ancillary
services. Gallant Tech Limited will continuously benefit from the
development opportunities arising from the transformation of the
manufacturing industry in China. In addition, the Group will keep
allocating more resources in intelligent manufacturing service sector,
and provide advanced intelligent-manufacturing equipment and
solutions to the electronic manufacturing industry in China, so as to
serve the real economy and facilitate its clients to march towards the
industrial 4.0 era.

SECURITIES INVESTMENT

The Group has been investing in listed shares in Hong Kong, the PRC
and foreign countries and adjusting its investment strategy to ensure
that it is sufficiently prudent to cope with the uncertainties in the
financial market. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the
securities investment business generated a loss of approximately
HK$70.0 million (2021: approximately HK$49.6 million). The
operating loss of the segment amounted to approximately HK$71.2
million (2021: approximately HK$67.8 million).

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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OTHER INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2022, the Company held 32% equity interest in
Yunnan International Holding Group Limited, an associate principally
engaged in the business of clean energy, health, investment
management, new energy and financial services. Through the
cooperation with the shareholders of the associate, the Company
vigorously participated in the strategic construction brought by The
Belt and Road Initiative.

PROSPECT

Looking ahead to 2023, whether it is market recovery, or system and
product innovation, Hong Kong'’s financial market is still very much
worth looking forward to. As the HKSAR Government continuously
optimises the existing systems and more policies will be introduced to
directly or indirectly promote the development of the city’s asset
management industry, Hong Kong'’s financial sector involving asset
management and wealth management is bound to see a new round
of growth.

As the impact of the epidemic has lessened, the market is returning
to normal. This year, China will give priority to promoting economic
development. Real estate is a pillar industry of the national economy.
Many local measures have been introduced to support the demand
for rigid and improved housing, which will help increase the
willingness of house buyers. By this token, China is still in the stage
of rapid urbanization, and the huge demand potential will provide
strong support for the development of the real estate industry.
Therefore, the Group will seize the opportunity to focus on the
investment of stock properties, sales of available properties and
payment collection. Baoxin Science and Technology Industrial Park
will follow the government policy guidance, continue to focus on the
dominant industry of intelligent manufacturing and the assisting
industries of technology information service and technology finance,
introduce high-tech enterprises with better quality and specialized
new enterprises, improve the total output value of the park,
strengthen the service quality of the park, consolidate the position of
Baoxin Science and Technology Industrial Park in the leading
characteristic industrial park in Guangming New District, and establish
an industry benchmark project. Ganzhou Project will seize the
opportunity to accelerate the sold-out of stock properties and
withdrawal of cash flow. The Group completed the acquisition of
Shantou Taisheng Technology Limited in March 2023, substantially
increasing its land reserve and the area of saleable and rentable
properties, and further enriching its property portfolio. In terms of
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project expansion, with the economic recovery, the Group will pay
close attention to the direction of national real estate policy
regulation, and actively investigate the real estate market. In case of
quality projects, the Group will seek various ways of cooperation for
project expansion.

The automation segment has been providing automation
manufacturing devices and services for the industries of smartphones,
Internet of Things, semi-conductors, automobile electronics in the
PRC. Following the gradual sophistication of 5G application business
regimes together with the accelerating progress proposed by China
in terms of the new infrastructure facilities construction as
representative of 5G, Artificial Intelligence, Industrial Internet and
Internet of Things, there will be a new source of vitality to benefit the
development of the automation segment.

In 2023, the Group will also capture the development opportunities

to create better returns to its shareholders.

By Order of the Board
Glory Sun Financial Group Limited

Yao Jianhui
Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 April 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group discontinued
or disposed of several businesses/subsidiaries, including the disposal
of Yue Jin Asia and its subsidiaries which were principally engaged in
operation of yacht club and distributed the shares of Glory Sun Land
Group Limited (“Glory Sun Land”) as interim dividend by way of
distribution in specie of shares. Glory Sun Land is principally engaged
in trading of commodities and property development and investment.
The disposal and distribution of shares have significant impact on the
financial position and results of the Group during the year.

The total liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2022 decreased
by 20.3% to approximately HK$2,829.1 million (2021: approximately
HK$3,550.1 million). The gearing ratio, which is calculated at
borrowings divided by net assets value was significantly decreased to
27.6% (2021: 31.7%).

Continuing operations
Revenue

The Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022
decreased by approximately 69.0% to approximately HK$811.4
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million (2021: approximately HK$2,614.8 million). The revenue ——4% : #J2,614. 8 EE B IT) D U5 D47
analysis by segment is presented as follows: 5T
2022 2021
=t —T-—F
Proportion Proportion
HKS$’ to total to total %
million EEGIEN HKS million revenue change
R4 K = [ErEt & ANtk
BEAET Lt 45l BEBT 5t &
Automation SELl« 574.6 70.8% 794.0 30.4% -27.6%
Financial Services T RIRY 47.5 5.9% 102.7 3.9% -53.7%
Property Investment and ¥R E K 3R
Development 259.3 31.9% 1,767.7 67.6% -85.3%
Securities Investment BEAHEE (70.0) (8.6%) (49.6) (1.9%) 41.1%
811.4 100% 2,614.8 100% -69.0%

During the year, automation and property investment and
development segments were the major source of revenue for the
Group, accounting for 70.8% and 31.9% of total revenue,
respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Gross Profit and Margin

The gross profit for the year decreased by approximately 69.9% to
approximately HK$182.2 million (2021: approximately HK$605.5
million), while the gross profit margin increased to 22.5% (2021:
23.2%). The change was mainly due to the decrease in scale of the
property sales made handover to the customers in the Year and the
increase in scale of the automation business as compared with those
in 2021.

Other Gains — Net

The net other gains during the year was approximately HK$53.8
million (2021: approximately HK$254.5 million), which was mainly
due to the recovery of bad debt written off of approximately
HK$53.3 million.

Other Income

The other income increased by approximately 2.1% to approximately
HK$52.8 million (2021: approximately HK$51.7 million).

Distribution Costs

The distribution costs decreased by approximately 86.0% to
approximately HK$19.6 million (2021: approximately HK$139.9
million), accounting for 2.4% (2021: 5.4%) of the total revenue. The
decrease in distribution costs was mainly due to the decrease in staff
cost of approximately HK$27.2 million and decrease in advertising,
promotion and exhibition expenses of approximately HK$53.8
million.

Administrative Expenses

The administrative expenses increased by approximately 15.2% to
approximately HK$327.4 million (2021: approximately HK$284.1
million), owing to the increase in written off of loans and advances
of approximately HK$53.4 million (2021: nil).

Finance Income/(Costs) — Net
The net finance income was approximately HK$41.5 million (2021:
net finance cost of approximately HK$66.1 million). The increase in

net finance income was because of the increase in interest income on
financial assets at amortised cost of approximately HK$107.0 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Income Tax Expense

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded an
income tax expense of approximately HK$29.4 million (2021:
approximately HK$104.0 million) which was mainly due to the
decrease in taxable profits for the Year.

Discontinued operations

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group disposed of its
yacht club operation and the provision of training services in the PRC
and ceased to engage in trading of commodities, operation of golf
practicing court, children playroom and fitness room and trading of
home appliances and building materials upon completion of
distribution in specie. The Group recognized profit from discontinued
operations of approximately HK$47.7 million.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company recorded a loss
attributable to the owners of the Company of approximately
HK$551.5 million (2021: approximately HK$189.0 million).

FINANCIAL RESOURCES REVIEW
Liquidity and Financial Resources

By adopting a prudent financial management approach, the Group
continued to maintain a healthy financial position. As at 31
December 2022, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$486.3 million (2021: approximately HK$730.1
million). The working capital represented by net current assets
amounted to approximately HK$1,051.1 million (2021: approximately
HK$1,765.4 million). The current ratio was approximately 1.4 (2021:
approximately 1.5). The gearing ratio, which is calculated at
borrowings divided by net asset value, was 27.6% (2021: 31.7%,).

The borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2022 included
corporate bonds of approximately HK$341.0 million (2021:
approximately HK$356.0 million), trust receipt loans of approximately
HK$8.8 million (2021: approximately HK$14.8 million) and bank
loans of approximately HK$966.2 million (2021: approximately
HK$1,193.9 million), and other loans of approximately HK$92.5
million (2021: HK$441.6 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The borrowings as at 31 December 2022 were secured by (i)
guarantees provided by the Company, shareholder of the Company,
certain of its subsidiaries and related parties; (i) property, plant and
equipment of approximately HK$216.5 million (2021: approximately
HK$184.3 million); (iii) investment properties of approximately
HK$1,749.3 million (2021: approximately HK$1,885.0 million); (iv)
financial assets at FVTPL of nil (2021: approximately HK$121.0
million); (v) collateral of the Group’s margin clients of nil (2021:
approximately HK$816.8 million); and (vi) pledged bank deposit of nil
(2021: approximately HK$6.0 million).

Capital and Other Commitments

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had contracted but not provided
for capital commitments of approximately HK$215.2 million and
HK$424.1 million (2021: approximately HK$215.2 million and
HK$1,424.4 million) relating to the investment in an associate and
investment properties and property development expenditures,
respectively.

Currency Exposure and Management

During the year, the Group’s receipts were mainly denominated in
Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi (“RMB"), and US dollars. The Group'’s
payments were mainly made in Hong Kong dollars, RMB and US
dollars.

As the business activities of the Group’s automation and property
investment and development segments were mainly conducted in the
mainland China, most of the Group’s labour costs and manufacturing
overheads were settled with the RMB. As such, fluctuation of the
RMB exchange rate will have an impact on the Group’s profitability.
The Group will closely monitor movements of the RMB and, if
necessary, consider entering into foreign exchange forward contracts
with reputable financial institutions to reduce potential exposure to
currency fluctuations. During the year, the Group did not enter into
any foreign exchange forward contract.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Future Plans for Capital Investment and Expected
Source of Funding

The Group finances its operating and capital expenditures mainly by
internal resources such as operating cash flow and shareholders
equity and bank facilities. The Group expects to have sufficient
resources and banking facilities to meet its capital expenditure and
working capital requirement.

Fund raising for future business development

When the Group considers that there are funding needs for the
expansion of its businesses and development of new businesses, it
will explore possible fund raising methods, such as debt financing,
placing of new shares or issuance of corporate bonds.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 292 (2021: 331) full-time
employees in Hong Kong and the PRC. Employees’ remuneration is
determined in accordance with individual’s responsibility, competence
and skills, experience and performance as well as market pay level.
Staff benefits include medical insurance, provident funds and other
competitive fringe benefits.

To provide incentives or rewards to the staff, the Company adopted
a share option scheme on 2 June 2020 and share options will be
granted to eligible employees in accordance with the share option
scheme.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM SHARE SUBSCRIPTION
IN JULY 2019

On 10 July 2019, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with Bao Xin Development Limited (the “Subscriber”), a
company wholly owned by Mr. Yao Jianhui, in relation to the
subscription of 4,000,000,000 new shares of the Company (the
“Share(s)"”) at a subscription price of HK$0.25 per Share (the “Share
Subscription”). Please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 10 July 2019 and the circular of the Company dated 10
October 2019 (the “Circular”) for more details regarding the Share
Subscription.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B B o i B g e

On 17 December 2019, the Company issued and allotted
2,400,000,000 new Shares to the Subscriber and received a proceeds
of approximately HK$600,000,000. On 8 May 2020, the Company
issued and allotted 1,600,000,000 new Shares to the Subscriber and
received a proceeds of approximately HK$400,000,000. The net
proceeds of the Share Subscription were approximately HK$999.4
million, HK$941.8 million of which had been utilised as follows:

RZE—NFTZA+EH  mARMRBEA
3% 17 N Bt %% 2,400,000,000 A% A& 17D - Uk B AT
1§ B #1600,000,000/8TL - R—E-ZTF A
ANB RARRARE AZETRAEH
1,600,000,000 f% ¥ i 15 + U HX B 15 B I8 49
400,000,000/8 7T - D RE TS FIE T
#/999.4B BB - HP o4 8EEEILEA
RUATA®R -

HK$’ million
BEATT

1. Provision of brokerage service and corporate finance 1. IREELRERLERE
() securities brokerage and margin financing; and () BHEELEAERE X 130.0
(i) investment iy ®E 57.1
(i) corporate finance division (i) TEMEDE 24.7
2. Expansion of asset management business 2. BEEEENRRE 180.0
3. Expansion of money lending business 3. BEXBHRRE 250.0
4. General working capital 4. —HEEED 300.0
941.8

Out of the net proceeds of HK$999.4 million from the Share
Subscription, the unutilised amount of HK$57.6 was initially intended
to be utilised by the corporate finance division by 31 December
2022. Nonetheless, due to the pandemic lasting for more than two
years, the operation of the corporate finance business has been
severely affected. Therefore, the Company would have to expect that
the unutilised amount of HK$57.6 million will be utilised by 31
December 2023. Save as disclosed above, all net proceeds of the
Share Subscription have been used for the intended uses as set out in
the Circular.

The unutilised net proceeds were deposited with the banks in Hong
Kong.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM PLACING IN
FEBRUARY 2023

On 27 February 2023, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with Glory Sun Securities Limited (the “Placing Agent”),
pursuant to which the Placing Agent will procure on a best effort
basis not less than six Placees to subscribe for up to 313,875,122
new shares of the Company at a placing price of HK$0.34 per
placing share (the “Placing”). The placing shares will be allotted and
issued pursuant to the general mandate approved in the annual
general meeting in June 2022. Please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 27 February 2023 for more details regarding the
Placing.

On 22 March 2023, the Company issued and allotted 310,624,390
new Shares to the Placees and received proceeds of approximately
HK$105,612,293. The net proceeds of the Placing were
approximately HK$104,412,293, approximately 90% of which will
be applied for the repayment of maturing indebtedness and the rest
will be applied as general working capital of the Group.

The Company expects that the net proceeds of the Placing will be
fully utilised by 31 December 2023. Any net proceeds that have yet
to be applied will be deposited with the banks in Hong Kong.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (2021: nil).

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's financial conditions, results of operations, businesses
and prospects may be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties. The key risks and uncertainties identified by the Group
are discussed in this section. There may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to those illustrated below, which are not
known to the Group or which may not be material now but could
become material in the future. Furthermore, risks can never be
eliminated completely due to the inherent limitations in measures
taken to address them. Nevertheless, risks may be accepted for
strategic reasons or if they are deemed not cost-effective to mitigate.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of financial loss or reputational damage
resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and
systems. Responsibility for managing the Group'’s operational risks
rests with every function at both divisional and departmental levels.

Key functions in the Group are guided by standard operating
procedures, limits of authority and a reporting framework. The Group
will identify and assess key operational exposures and report such risk
issues to the senior management as early as possible so that
appropriate risk responses can be taken.

Industry Risk

The financial services business of the Group is subject to extensive
regulations. Among others, operating subsidiaries such as Glory Sun
Securities Limited and Glory Sun Asset Management Limited are
obliged to operate in accordance with the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap. 571) (the “SFO"). The Group is required to ensure
consistent compliance with all applicable laws, regulations and
guidelines and satisfy the relevant regulatory authorities that it
remains fit and proper to be licensed. If there is any change or
tightening of relevant laws, regulations and guidelines, the Group
will face a higher compliance requirement for its business activities.
In addition, if the Group fails to comply with the applicable rules and
regulations from time to time, it may face fines or restrictions on its
business activities or even suspension or revocation of some or all of
its licenses for operating the financial services business. Furthermore,
the financial services business, like all other businesses of the Group,
is not immune from market changes. Any downturn in the financial
market may also adversely affect the financial services business of the
Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The automation business of the Group operates in a highly
competitive environment. The Group faces fierce competition from
global technology companies and rapid technological changes which
may render technologies developed and employed by the Group
obsolete. As such, the Group’s products may lose its competitiveness,
adversely affecting the Group’s ability to maintain its market share.
Failure to maintain the Group’s competitive position may lead to a
material adverse effect on the results and profit margins of these
business segments. Furthermore, the current trade war between the
PRC and the US may have an impact on the business environment in
the PRC. The Group is prepared to pay close attention to market
conditions and will establish a contingency plan if the trade war
persists over a period of time.

The securities investment business of the Group is sensitive to market
conditions and fluctuations in the prices of the securities held by the
Group. Any significant downturn in the securities market may affect
the mark to market value of the Group's securities investments and
may adversely affect the results of the Group.

Financial Risk

In the course of its business activities, the Group is exposed to various
financial risks, including market, liquidity and credit risks. The
changes in the currency environment and interest rate cycles may
significantly affect the Group's financial position and results of its
operations in the PRC.

The Group’s earnings and capital or its ability to meet its business
objectives may be adversely affected by movements in foreign
exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices. In particular, any
depreciation in the Group’s functional currency may affect its gross
profit margin. The Group closely monitors the relative foreign
exchange positions of its assets and liabilities and allocates its
holdings of different currencies accordingly in order to minimise
foreign currency risk.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Group may be subject to liquidity risk if it is unable to obtain
adequate funding to finance its operations. In managing liquidity risk,
the Group monitors its cash flows and maintains an adequate level of
cash and credit facilities to enable it to finance its operations and
reduce the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The Group is subject to credit risk from its clients. To minimise risk,
new clients will undergo stricter credit evaluation, while the Group
continuously monitors its existing clients to further improve its risk
control measures.

Manpower and Retention Risk

The competition for human resources in the countries that the Group
operates in may result in the Group not being able to attract and
retain key personnel with the desired skills, experience and levels of
competence. The Group will continue to provide remuneration
packages and incentive plans to attract, retain and motivate suitable
candidates and personnel.

Business Risk

The Group constantly faces the challenge of gauging and responding
promptly to market changes within the sectors that it operates in.
Any failure to interpret market trends properly and adapt its strategy
to such changes accordingly may have a material adverse effect on
the Group’s business, financial position, results of operations and
prospects.
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DIRECTORS AND KEY PERSONNELS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yao Jianhui (k& #), aged 51, has been the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company since August 2015. He serves
as a director to multiple subsidiaries of the Company. He also serves
as the chairman of each of the Nomination Committee, Strategic
Committee and Investment Committee of the Company and is a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Yao completed a Master’s degree in Business Administration
from the South China University of Technology. He has held senior
management positions with a number of enterprises across a wide
range of industries, including food, construction materials, real
estate, commerce, agriculture and forestry, logistics, technology and
finance. He was appointed as an executive director of Glory Sun Land
Group Limited (Stock Code: 00299.HK) (“Glory Sun Land”) in
December 2018. He was the general manager and chairman of the
board of directors of Dasheng Times Cultural Investment Group Co.,
Ltd. (Stock Code: 600892.5H) (“Dasheng Times Cultural”) from
July 2010 to October 2014.

Mr. Li Minbin (Z80#&), aged 42, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company in August 2015 and re-designated as an
Executive Director in November 2015. He has been the Vice President
of the Company since January 2016. He serves as a director to
multiple subsidiaries of the Company. He also serves as a member of
each of the Strategic Committee and Investment Committee of the
Company.

Mr. Li obtained the Master’s degree of Business Administration from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He has comprehensive
experience in operation and management of logistics, real estate,
investment and financial industries. He was an executive director of
Glory Sun Land from December 2018 to May 2019. He served as the
supervisor, assistant to general manager and representative of
securities affair of Dasheng Times Cultural Investment Group Co.,
Ltd. from July 2010 to March 2014 and acted as director and
secretary to the board of directors of Dasheng Times Cultural
Investment Group Co., Ltd. from March 2014 to March 2016.

Mr. Huang Wei (&), aged 48, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company in August 2015, re-designated as a Non-
executive Director in November 2015 and further re-designated as an
Executive Director in November 2018. He also serves as a member of
the Investment Committee of the Company.
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DIRECTORS AND KEY PERSONNELS
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Mr. Huang obtained a Master’s degree in Economics from the Hunan
University. He has over 20 years of experience in investment and
financing industries. He has served as the senior vice president of
Shenzhen Baoneng Investment since December 2013. He served as
the vice manager of the department of personal housing loan of the
Shenzhen branch of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China from
August 2002 to November 2004, the vice general manager of the
corporate financing management centre from November 2004 to
September 2008, the general manager of the department of
corporate financing management from September 2008 to February
2012 and the general manager of the department of institutional
banking from January 2013 to December 2013.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Zhang Chi (33 ), aged 34, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company in July 2017 and re-designated as a Non-
executive Director in August 2019. He also serves as a member of the
Audit Committee of the Company.

Mr. Zhang graduated with a Bachelor’s degree in Laws from the
Shenzhen University and obtained a Master’s degree of Science in
Management from New York University. He is experienced in fund
investment. He served as an officer in the investment department in
Shenzhen Sichuang Technology Development Co. Ltd.* (FYIIBAIF
HEER AR A F]) from January 2013 to June 2013. He worked in
Shenzhen Creative Investment Group Limited* (R AIFTIR L £ E
BFRA7F]) and served as an intern in the fund management
headquarter from September 2015 to April 2016, an officer in the
fund management headquarter since April 2016, and has acted as an
investment manager in a management headquarter managing a
Government Guide Fund since October 2016.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Chun Bong (E#&#8), aged 64, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since November 2009. He
also serves as the chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company
and a member of each of the Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company. He holds a range of
positions regarding the provision of assurance, taxation, accounting
and financial management services, which the Company believes will
enhance in the overall financial control and management of the
Group.
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DIRECTORS AND KEY PERSONNELS

Mr. Wong holds a Higher Diploma in Accountancy from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. He has been an independent non-
executive director of Glory Sun Land since December 2018 and an
independent non-executive director of Guangzhou R&F Properties
Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 02777.HK) since May 2017. He is the founder
of a firm of certified public accountants in Hong Kong, a member of
the Council of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, a fellow
member of each of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, an ex-member of
the Court of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and the ex-
Chairman of the Executive Committee of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in Hong Kong.

Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew (Z=E] %), aged 63, PhD, has
been an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
November 2009. He also serves as the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company and a member of each of the Audit
Committee and Strategic Committee of the Company.

Professor Lee is the Vice-President (Development & External Relations)
and Chair Professor of Information Systems & E-Commerce at the
City University of Hong Kong, and he is also a member of the
University Court and University Senate. He has been an independent
non-executive director of Computer and Technologies Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 00046.HK) since April 1998. He is the Chairman
of the Hong Kong Committee for Pacific Economic Cooperation
(HKCPEC) and a member of the Hong Kong Deposits Protection
Board.

Graduated from a number of world-class universities, Professor Lee
has obtained the following qualifications: BEng, MBA (University of
Sheffield), MSc (University of Oxford), PhD in Computer Science
(University of Manchester), LLB, and LLM in Commercial & Corporate
Law (University of London). He qualified as a Barrister-at-Law in Hong
Kong and England and Wales, and is a Chartered Engineer (UK
Engineering Council), and a professional member of the British
Computer Society.
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DIRECTORS AND KEY PERSONNELS

HRELTEEAR

Ms. Zhao Yizi (¥} ¥), aged 34, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 3 October 2022.

Ms. Zhao received her Bachelor of Laws from the Shenzhen University
in 2011. She was admitted as a lawyer in the People’s Republic of
China in 2017. From July 2011 to May 2015, Ms. Zhao served as a
manager in the credit department of Industrial Bank Co., Ltd. Futian
Technology Branch* (#8178 B B .32 17). From May 2015 to
August 2016, she served as a manager in the legal department of
Guangdong Zhongmeng Group Holdings* (/& 3 /1 B2 4% i% & E).
From August 2016 to September 2021, she successively served as a
trainee lawyer and a lawyer in Guangdong Shenxin Law Office* (&
BJ% 1= 12 b = 7% AT). She has worked as a partner in Guangdong
Chunting Law Office* (R A& ZEEAIEEFT) since September 2021.

KEY PERSONNELS

Mr. Ho Lik Kwan Luke, aged 44, was appointed as the Chief
Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Group in
September 2022.

Mr. Ho holds a Bachelor degree in Accounting and Financial
Management from the University of Sheffield in the United
Kingdom. He is a member of each of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He has over 20 years of experience
in finance and accounting with a focus on corporate finance.

Mr. Ho is currently an independent non-executive director of
Hatcher Group Limited (Stock Code: 8365). From February 2016
to May 2019, Mr. Ho served as a director of Huabang Corporate
Finance Limited, a subsidiary of Huabang Technology Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 3638). From January 2015 to February 2016,
Mr. Ho served as a director of Ping An Securities Limited, a
subsidiary of Ping An Securities Group (Holdings) Limited (Stock
Code: 231). From September 2000 to November 2014, Mr. Ho
worked in various financial and consulting firms and has gained
extensive auditing experience from his employment with Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, which provides audit, consulting, tax and
advisory services.

*  For identification purpose only
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DIRECTORS AND KEY PERSONNELS
FHEARERAE

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS EEEREE

The change in the information of the Directors of the Company since  1R#E F R A& 13.51BMEZEE - XA FA
the publication of the 2021 annual report of the Company required FIREEAR G T —FFHAE AR 2=
to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules is set =& 2 S F &5 T -

out below:

Name of Directors

ExpE

Details of Changes
BEEE

Independent Non-executive Director
BYFHTES
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, Eddie

FHERE

Executive Director
HTEE
Ms. Zhao Yizi

HHEFLt

Resigned as an independent non-executive director of China
BlueChemical Ltd. (Stock Code: 03983.HK, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange) with effect from 27 May 2021 and resigned as an independent
non-executive director of the Company and a member of the nomination
committee of the Company with effect from 17 July 2022

BHEB AT E AR A ML ERM AR A B (R K5 : 03983.
HO 2B FERTES EZT—FRAZTERBER - REHEAR
NAVBUFRTEERARFREBEZEGKE BT _FtA+t
H A&

Appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company and
a member of the nomination committee of the Company with effect
from 3 October 2022
BEERBIUDTEERARAIRREZEGKE  BEZE 4+
A=RHREN

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required to be B¢ F XX FriFEY) » #EEME R BARE FHiR
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules. The  BIZE 13 51BN ZMEM FTIAEE - XA FE
updated biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set ErZFHERFFHEN LI [EENRTFEAE]
out in the preceding section headed “Directors and Key Personnels”. —ff o
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
=R

The Board is pleased to present this annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of Glory Sun Financial
Group Limited and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

A business review of the Group during the year under review and a
discussion on the Group's future business development, possible risks
and uncertainties that the Group may be facing and important events
affecting the Company occurred during the year ended 31 December
2022 are provided in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” on
pages 10 to 19 and the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 21 to 30 of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year ended 31
December 2022 using financial performance indicators is provided in
the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages
21 to 30 of this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 and
the state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 72 to 75.

Interim Dividend

On 18 November 2021, the Board proposed to declare a special
interim dividend in the form of a distribution in specie of
approximately 3,154 million ordinary shares of Glory Sun Land
directly held by the Company to the shareholders whose names
appeared on the register of members of the Company on 24
December 2021 in proportion to their respective shareholdings in the
Company on the basis of 402 ordinary share of Glory Sun Land for
every 4,000 Shares held by the shareholder. The distribution was
recognised at the carrying amount of the net assets of Glory Sun
Land of approximately HK$4,910 million, of which approximately
HK$1,804 million was attributable to owners of Company. The
completion of the distribution in specie took place on 28 December
2021 and Glory Sun Land ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company
thereafter.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Final Dividend

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: nil).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed during the
following periods for determining eligibility to attend and vote at the
2023 annual general meeting:

Latest time to lodge transfer documents for registration:
4:30 p.m., Wednesday, 21 June 2023

Closure of register of members:
Friday, 23 June 2023 to Wednesday, 28 June 2023
(both days inclusive)

Record Date:
Wednesday, 28 June 2023

In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2023 annual general
meeting, all transfer of share(s), accompanied by the relevant share
certificate(s) with the properly completed transfer form(s) either
overleaf or separately, must be lodged with the branch share registrar
and transfer office of the Company in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at 17/F., Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong, for registration not later than the respective latest dates
and time set out above.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the past five financial years, as
extracted from the consolidated financial statement, and restated as
appropriate, is set out on the inside front cover. This summary does
not form part of the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group made external
donations of approximately HK$200,000 (2021: HK$541,158).
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries, purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2022.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in Note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 77.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As of 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) (“Companies Law") of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
approximately HK$2,403.3 million (2021: HK$2,626.0 million). No
interim dividend was proposed during the year ended 31 December
2022. Interim dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
proposed in the form of a distribution in specie of approximately
3,154 million ordinary shares of Glory Sun Land held by the Company
on the basis of 402 ordinary shares of Glory Sun Land for every 4,000
ordinary shares of the Company. The distribution was recognised at
the carrying amount of the net assets of Glory Sun Land of
approximately HK4,910 million, of which approximately HK$1,804
million was attributable to owners of the Company. No final dividend
(2021: nil) has been proposed for the year. Under the Companies
Law, HK$4,453.5 million as of 31 December 2022 (2021:
HK$4,453.5 million) is distributable from share premium account of
the Company to the shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend, if any, is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. The
Company’s share premium account may be distributed in the form of
fully paid bonus shares.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, 70.8% (2021: 24.9%) of the Group's revenue and
72.1% (2021: 30.5%) of the Group’s purchases, were attributable to
the Group’s five largest customers and five largest suppliers,
respectively; and 6.0% (2021: 7.9%) of the Group’s revenue and
38.0% (2021: 7.0%) of the Group's purchases were attributable to
the Group's largest customer and supplier, respectively.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Yao Jianhui (Chairman)
Mr. Lau Wan Po (Vice Chairman)
(resigned as Executive Director on 7 March 2022)
Mr. Li Minbin
Mr. Huang Wei

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Zhang Chi

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Wong Chun Bong
Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew
Ms. Zhao Yizi
(appointed as Independent Non-Executive Director
on 3 October 2022)
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, Eddie
(resigned as Independent Non-Executive Director on 17 July 2022)

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent
Non-Executive Directors to be independent.

RN

TREFRHAER

RERN AEBREAREFRAERAHEERD MG
AEBWFENT08% (ZEZ—F :249%) &
NREBREBENN21%( - F - — F:
30.5%) : MASBEMNHEAREP RHEE S FE
AREBEWZ6.0%(ZFE-—F :7.9%) kA
EEERER38.0% (ZE-—4%F :7.0%) ©

ARAES  WETABEAXNTABEESH
RRTEA A RR D HEITHAS5% A ERRBCR -
MERAEEAREPAMERTHEEEMNE

e

s

BEE
FREDTEER :

HITES

Pz ()

RIEHALE (FIEE)
(R-FB-—F=F+HAFFHTEE)

FUTES
SRatSe

BYFHITES

TR KA

TR HIF

WMHETZE
(R-ZF-Z—F+A=ZHEZILA
BUIHITEE)

=YW R A
(R—ZFE——F+H++HEIT
BB ITESE)

ARREREEBIIFNTESRE LTRA
FE3BERBEEZ 2B LS OHMEL 2 FEER
£ - ARARBERBUIFNTEFTHEBL
At

Annual Report &3] 2022 39



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
=R

DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES

The biographical details of the current Directors of the Company are
set out on pages 31 to 34 of the annual report and can be found on
the Company'’s website.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

All of the executive Directors and non-executive Director had
respectively entered into a service contracts with the Company.
Details of the service contracts include: (1) a term of directorship for
three years with effect from the date of appointment, reappointment
or re-election; and (2) the contracts shall be terminated according to
the terms of each contract.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors had signed a letter
of appointment with the Company. Details of the letter of
appointments mainly include: (1) a term of directorship for three
years with effect from the date of appointment, reappointment or re-
election; and (2) the letter of appointment shall be terminated
according to the terms of each letter of appointment.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals are set out in Notes 12 and 10, respectively to the
consolidated financial statements.

The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference to
the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the
Group's results.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

None of the Directors had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries, holding companies
or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or were in existence during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As of 31 December 2022, none of the Directors or chief executives of
the Company or their respective associates had or was deemed to
have any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required (i) to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or (ii) to be recorded in the
register maintained by the Company under section 352 of the SFO
or; or (iii) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from the Scheme (as defined in the section headed “SHARE
OPTION SCHEME OF THE COMPANY " below), at no time during the
year ended 31 December 2022 was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, holding companies or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors or the chief executives of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate. Save
for the disclosed, none of the Directors or chief executives of the
Company or their spouses or children under the age of 18, was
granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the
Company or any other body corporate nor had exercised any such
right during the year ended 31 December 2022.

RN

EEEHN

REABRET LS FETABEBEARA]
EREABYEHZERRITEREH

EERFTETHRAEBREALQAR
17 HERORESF 2EREXE

\

BE_Z__F+_A=+—H EFHAEAR
7IETTBU\E§ZTB€% BHHE e A ENAR

NEIHEFEAEEEZE(EERELSAMPEK
BIZEXVED) B - HEERGOKEST - ()
BIREBEESFKLE f{'ﬂﬁ”%XV*B%7&81‘x%\ f
AN T BGPTSR SAREHE A £
ER ST AR RIREES KBS GHIZE 352 &
HEMGEMERMA i) EERIE MR
RIS+ FTE LT AZESETESFRIIHN
ZXESFRRE B A AR 7] R R AT 2 3k

KB o

ESRERONEFNER

Bzt 8l (EE R T X[ AR r BT & )
—EINBE_FT-__F+-_A=t—HLt
FEAEAER » NARREAFAMBLE -
H““T&H%Fﬁ}% A E S B AR
BHEEERARAAEBITHRABAEBALRRD
T‘XET‘JEM&)\IE“E’Jﬂxfﬁ‘mﬁn%ﬁﬁﬁ = e
BREBEEN REE-T-_—_F+-_A=+—
BIEFER MEBEEEHARATIETHRAR
H IR FO BB T\ B A T F LR T E ] 7]
RBAR AR AMEMEABBNRARER
EIFRRER » RATE T ZFER) -

Annual Report & 2022 41



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
=R

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every Director,
other officer and auditor shall be entitled to be indemnified out of
assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or
sustained by him/her as a Director, Auditor or other officer of the
Company about the execution of the duties of his/her office or
otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has arranged appropriate
Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors
and officers of the Company.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, so far as is known to the Directors, there
was no person who had any interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO and are recorded in the register kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in several defined contribution retirement
plans which cover the Group's eligible employees in the PRC, and a
mandatory provident fund scheme for the employees in Hong Kong.
Particulars of these retirement plans are set out in Note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME OF THE COMPANY

On 2 June 2020, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme"”) and the major terms of the Share Option
Scheme were summarised as follows:

(@) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme was (i) to attract and
retain the best quality personnel for the development of the
Company’s businesses; (ii) to provide additional incentives to
employees; and (iii) to promote the long term financial success
of the Company by aligning the interests of option holders to
its shareholders.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Participants of the Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the Company may at its
absolute discretion grant options to any employee of the
Company or its subsidiaries (including any director, whether
executive or non-executive and whether independent or not, of
the Company or its subsidiaries) who is in full-time or part-time
employment with the Company or its subsidiaries at the time
when an option is granted to such employee, or any person
who, in the sole discretion of the Board, have contributed or
may contribute to the Group.

Total number of shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares of the
Company available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is
156,937,561, representing approximately 10% of the entire
issued share capital of the Company as of the date of this
report.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the total
number of shares in issue from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in
issue, unless approved by the shareholders in the manner as
stipulated in the Share Option Scheme.

Time of exercise of options

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee,
which may commence on the date on which the offer for the
grant of options is made but shall end in any event not later
than 10 years from the date of the grant of the option subject
to the provisions for early termination thereof. No minimum
period for which the option must be held before it can be
exercised is specified in the Share Option Scheme.

(b)

(o)

(d)

(e)
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The subscription price per Share

The subscription price per share in respect of an option granted
under the Share Option Scheme is such price as determined by
the Board at the time of the grant of the options, but in any
case the subscription price shall not be lower than the higher
of:

° the closing price of the share as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date on which the options are offered, which must be a
business day;

o the price being the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date on which the options are offered; and

° the nominal value of a share on the date on which the
options are offered.

Payment on acceptance of option

A non-refundable sum of HK$1 or other amount as determined
by the Board by way of consideration for the grant of an option
is required to be paid by each of the grantee upon acceptance
of the granted option.

Duration of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of
10 years from its adoption date (i.e. 2 June 2020). The Share
Option Scheme will terminate or expire (as the case may be) on
the earlier of (i) the approval of the shareholders in a general
meeting, and (ii) at the close of business on the day
immediately preceding the tenth anniversary of the adoption
date (the “Share Option Scheme Period”).

After the Share Option Scheme Period, the Company cannot
grant new options but for so long as there are options granted
but not yet exercised, outstanding vested or unvested options,
the Share Option Scheme will remain in full force and effect of
such outstanding vested or unvested options or otherwise as
may be required in accordance with the Share Option Scheme.
As at the date of this report, no option had been granted by
the Company under the Share Option Scheme.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 31 December 2020, Baoxin Holdings Company Limited? (“Baoxin
Holdings”), a then indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a property management services framework
agreement (“Baoxin Holdings Property Management Services
Framework Agreement”) with Shenzhen Jixiang Property Services
Group Limited? (“Shenzhen Jixiang”), pursuant to which, Shenzhen
Jixiang agrees to provide property management services to Baoxin
Holdings and its subsidiaries (“Baoxin Holdings Group”) in
accordance with the Bao Xin Holdings Property Management Services
Framework Agreement for a period from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2023.

The aggregate amount of the management services fees payable by
Baoxin Holdings Group to Shenzhen Jixiang pursuant to the Baoxin
Holdings Property Management Services Framework Agreement for
the period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023 will not
exceed RMB115,000,000 and the annual caps (i.e. the maximum
contractual sum payable by Baoxin Holdings Group to Shenzhen
Jixiang for each financial year pursuant to the Baoxin Holdings
Property Management Services Framework Agreement for the period
from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023) for each of the financial
years ending 31 December 2021, 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2023 will be RMB20,000,000, RMB45,000,000 and
RMB50,000,000 respectively.

On 14 April 2021, Shenzhen Baokai Investment Holding Company
Limited* (“Baokai Investment”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a property management
services framework agreement (“Baokai Investment Property
Management Services Framework Agreement”) with Shenzhen
Jixiang, pursuant to which, Shenzhen Jixiang agrees to provide
property management services to Baokai Investment and its
subsidiaries (“Baokai Investment Group”) in accordance with the
Baokai Investment Property Management Services Framework
Agreement for a period from 14 April 2021 to 31 December 2023.
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The aggregate amount of the management services fees payable by
Baokai Investment Group to Shenzhen Jixiang pursuant to the Baokai
Investment Property Management Services Framework Agreement
for the period from 14 April 2021 to 31 December 2023 will not
exceed RMB150,000,000 and the annual caps (i.e. the maximum
contractual sum payable by Baokai Investment Group to Shenzhen
Jixiang for each financial year pursuant to the Baokai Investment
Property Management Services Framework Agreement for the period
from 14 April 2021 to 31 December 2023) for the period from 14
April 2021 to 31 December 2021, and each of the financial years
ending 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2023 will be
RMB48,000,000, RMB50,000,000 and RMB52,000,000 respectively.

The Company has engaged the auditor of the Company to report the
continuing connected transactions of the Group in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group in this
Annual Report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and based on
the unqualified letter issued by the auditor of the Company noted
above, confirmed that the transactions have been entered into:

(@ in the ordinary course and usual course of business of the
Company;

(b) either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the Company
than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent
third parties; and

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such

transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interest of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

Each of the Group’s Executive Directors, Non-Executive Director and
Independent Non-Executive Directors has confirmed that none of
them is engaged in, or interested in any business which, directly or
indirectly, competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company maintained
a sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules as of the
date of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND REVIEW OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Audit Committee was established on 28 November 2009 with
written terms of reference set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the "CG Code”). The principal duties of the audit committee
includes the review of the Group's financial reporting matters, risk
management and internal control procedures.

At present, the Audit Committee comprises one Non-Executive
Director, namely Mr. Zhang Chi and two Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Wong Chun Bong and Professor Lee Kwok On,
Matthew, of which Mr. Wong Chun Bong is the Chairman.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed auditing, internal controls and financial reporting matters,
including the review of the audited financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2022. The consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 have been audited
by the Company’s independent auditor, Crowe (HK) CPA Limited.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the corporate governance of the Group are set out in the
section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual
report.
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AUDITOR

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. A resolution for the re-appointment of Crowe (HK) CPA
Limited as the auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

By order of the Board

Yao Jianhui
Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 April 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance. An internal corporate governance policy was adopted by
the Board aiming at providing greater transparency, quality of
disclosure as well as more effective risk management and internal
control. The execution and enforcement of the Company’s corporate
governance system is monitored by the Board under its terms of
reference as formally adopted on 2 November 2015, including but
not limited to the development and review of the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and to ensure their
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, and to review
and monitor the training and continuous professional development
of the Directors and senior members of the Company.

In line with the best corporate governance practice, the Company
has established an Audit Committee, a Remuneration Committee, a
Nomination Committee, a Strategic Committee and an Investment
Committee. The Board and all subordinate committees evaluate and
monitor their respective effectiveness on a regular basis in accordance
with their terms of reference.

The Company believes that its commitment to high standard practices
will translate into long-term value and ultimately making returns to
shareholders. The Company’s management pledges to building
longer-term interests for shareholders via, for example, conducting
business in a socially responsible and professional manner.

The Board procedures are in compliance with the articles of
association (the “Articles”) of the Company as well as relevant rules
and regulations. For the year ended 31 December 2022, there were
no significant changes to the Articles.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY &
ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

The Group is determined to be a good corporate citizen by fulfilling
its corporate social responsibilities and contributing to the society for
the good of the community. In 2022, the Group provided a
donations to help the needy. Meanwhile, it cares for its employees by
providing safe and healthy working environment and regularly
hosting events and activities for the employees to benefit from work-
life balance.

The Group encourages its employees to minimise the use of paper by
using e-files. While ensuring the observance of high level of
confidentiality, employees are prompted to use reusable papers. The
Group has largely replaced its lighting systems from metal halide
lamps to light-emitting diode (LED) energy-saving lighting to reduce
carbon emissions.
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Details of the environmental policies and performance of the Group
are disclosed in the 2022 Environmental, Social and Governance
Report to be published in compliance with the requirements under
the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company maintains a high standard of corporate governance
with a view to enhancing the management of the Company as well
as preserving the interests of the shareholders as a whole. During the
year under review, the Board is of the view that the Company has
complied with the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the "CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules, except the deviations disclosed herein.

According to the code provision C.2.1 of the CG code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Yao Jianhui assumed the roles
of both the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. The Company deviates from this provision as it believes
that by holding both roles, Mr. Yao will be able to provide the Group
with strong and consistent leadership. It allows for more effective
and efficient business planning and decisions as well as execution of
long-term business strategies of the Group. As such, the structure is
beneficial to the business prospects of the Group. Furthermore, the
Company’s present management structure comprises sufficient
number of independent non-executive directors and all major
decisions are made after consultation with the Board, appropriate
Board Committees and key personnel. The Board, therefore, believes
that a balance of power and authority have been and will continue
to be maintained.

Pursuant to Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, the board of a listed
issuer must appoint independent non-executive directors (“INED(s)")
representing at least one-third of the board. Pursuant to A.5.1 of the
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, the nomination committee of a
listed issuer must comprise a majority of INEDs. Following the
resignation of Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, Eddie on 17 July 2022, the
number of INED(s) and the composition of the Nomination
Committee have failed to meet the relevant requirements under the
Listing Rules.

Following the appointment of Ms. Zhao Yizi, the number of INEDs

and the composition of the Nomination Committee have complied
with the relevant requirements under the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE BOARD

The Board provides leadership and guidance to the Group’s activities,
overseeing the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and financial
performances. The Board has delegated its powers to the
management for the Group’s daily management and operations.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established an audit committee, a remuneration
committee, a nomination committee, a strategic committee and an
investment committee with clearly defined written terms of
reference. Each committee reports to the Board on its decisions or
recommendations, unless there are legal or regulatory restrictions on
its ability to do so.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee on 28 November
2009, with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing
Rules. The principal duties of the Audit Committee include the review
and supervision of the Group’s financial reporting matters, risk
management and internal control procedures. The Audit Committee
comprises one non-executive director, namely Mr. Zhang Chi and
two independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Wong Chun
Bong and Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew, of which Mr. Wong
Chun Bong is the Chairman. The Audit Committee has reviewed and
approved the preliminary announcement of the Group’s results for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee on 28
November 2009, with written terms of reference consistent with
those set out in the CG Code. The principal duties of the Nomination
Committee include considering and recommending to the Board on
the appointment of all the Directors. The Nomination Committee
comprises three members, namely Mr. Yao Jianhui, Mr. Wong Chun
Bong and Ms. Zhao Yizi, of which Mr. Yao Jianhui is the Chairman.
During the year, the Nomination Committee has duly discharged the
above duties.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee on 28
November 2009, with written terms of reference consistent with
those set out in the CG Code. The principal duties of the
Remuneration Committee include determining and reviewing the
remuneration packages of all the Directors and senior management
of the Company. The senior management of the Company comprises
only the Executive Directors of the Company. The Remuneration
Committee comprises three members, namely Professor Lee Kwok
On, Matthew, Mr. Yao Jianhui, and Mr. Wong Chun Bong, of which
Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew is the Chairman. During the year,
the Remuneration Committee has duly discharged the above duties.

Strategic Committee

The Company has established the Strategic Committee on 28 March
2012. The principal duties of the Strategic Committee include
considering and recommending to the Board on the Group’s business
strategies and investment opportunities. The Strategic Committee
comprises four members, namely Mr. Yao Jianhui, Mr. Li Minbin and
Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew, of which Mr. Yao Jianhui is the
Chairman. During the year, the Strategic Committee has duly
discharged the above duties.

Investment Committee

The Company has established Investment Committee on 26 August
2016. The principal duties of the Investment Committee include the
consideration of the proposals regarding investment, fundraising,
acquisition and disposal made by the Company and its subsidiaries.
The Investment Committee comprises four members, namely Mr. Yao
Jianhui, Mr. Li Minbin and Mr. Huang Wei, of which Mr. Yao Jianhui
is the Chairman. During the year, the Investment Committee has duly
discharged the above duties.
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ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT VARIOUS

MEETINGS

The attendance of individual members of the Board at Board
meetings, meetings of the Board Committees and general meetings
during the year ended 31 December 2022, as well as the number of
such meetings held, are set out as follows:

REEREE

EEERLER

HE -+ _-_A=+—HIFE E=
ZEBKNELREESSR E2ZEECR
MBRRERAGZHER  UANBTEESH 28
BEZIMT :

Audit  Nomination Remuneration Strategic  Investment
Board  Committee  Committee  Committee ~ Committee  Committee General
Directors Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
BREZEE RFZEE® HHWZEE® ERZEE REZEE

E= FE ] g3 g3 L EE EE BRAE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Yao Jianhui thEELE 9/9 212 313 0/0 1414 "N
Mr. Lau Wan Po (Note 1) eyl 0/0 000 6/6 111
Mr. Li Minbin FEREE 9/9 000 14/14 101
Mr. Huang Wei BEEE 09 14/14 0/
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Mr. Zhang Chi RakE 9/9 6/6 101
Independent Non- BUkHTES

Executive Directors
Mr. Wong Chun Bong TRA%E 99 6/6 22 31 /1
Professor Lee Kwok On, FERHE

Matthew 99 6/6 313 0/0 1n
Ms. Zhao Yizi (Note 2) BETZLHE) Wy, n 000
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, Eddie ~ Z 19150 (Fi13E3)

(Note 3) 313 1N 1n
Notes: PREE -
1. Mr. Lau Wan Po resigned as Executive Director on 7 March 2022. 1. BIEHEER T F=ZALHBERTES -
2. Ms. Zhao Yizi was appointed as Independent Non-executive Director on 3 2. WRAFLTR T _F+A=ABZERBIIEH

October 2022. TESF -
3. Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, Eddie resigned as Independent Non-executive Director on 3. FHERER T F L ATt ABEE L IENIT
17 July 2022. FEo

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy setting out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company considered
that diversity of board members can be achieved through
consideration of a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. All Board appointments will be
based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board.

EFTESULEE

EXCCHRMEFTSZLLER - HhEihE
HEFEGSLIENAE - ARBRBR/ATERS
THEEEREFTEXNEZ L BRENR
RIS Fik - XERBEES  BELR -
KRS - EFEMAZETHARAES S
[RA - WHEERBIREARATEERFTD B R
BEEEZLemEas -
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Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversified
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The ultimate decision will be made upon the
merits of the selected candidates and their contribution to the Board.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities. Each
newly appointed Director or alternate Director would receive
materials covering the Group’s businesses and director’s duties and
responsibilities. The Company provides the Directors with market
news and regulatory updates for them to understand the latest
development of regulatory and compliance issues.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Directors participated
in the following trainings:

EERIE AN — RIS TR AEE B
EETERER . 5 MERHEEE &
L0 - R ABRRBER o BRERTR
BFRREAMES LS AEFRERNE
BATYEL -

ESRIIREERE

EENATHASERE BEHZINES
FEFEEHN LERESRENMEAEEE
BHERLREERENEE - ARARANEER
HHBHESERER - WEETREEREE
MR EN SRR -

BE-_ZT-__F+_-_A=1+—BHILFE =
ZEPATRE

Directors Types of training
EE S B
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Yao Jianhui hEIE g A A B
Mr. Lau Wan Po (resigned on 7 March 2022) FEHEER_ZE_—F= AHET) A B
Mr. Li Minbin THOE T E A, B
Mr. Huang Wei mESLSE A, B
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Mr. Zhang Chi st 7 A A, B
Independent Non-Executive Directors BAFBTES
Mr. Wong Chun Bong FIRAEE A B
Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew TR A B
Ms. Zhao Yizi (appointed on 3 October 2022) HMAFLT(RZZEZ_F+A=BEZT)
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, Eddie (resigned on 17 July ~ Z=¥HELEAE (R -_—F A+ HEIT)

2022) A B

A attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums
reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the economy, latest B:
changes and development of the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices,

@

and etc.

A HEMN R gR R RiRE
BEAREE  LTRAZENEHRER
ARRERE T REHER

EE
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopts the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct of the Group regarding
securities transactions of the Directors. All Directors have confirmed
that throughout the year ended 31 December 2022, they have
complied with the provisions of the Model Code.

TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has signed a letter
of appointment with the Company, with a term of directorship for 3
years with effect from the date of appointment, reappointment or re-
election. Upon the expiry of the aforesaid term of 3 years, the
appointments shall be subject to the approval by the Board of the
Company. The term of appointment shall be terminable by either the
Independent Non-Executive Director or the Company by giving the
other party not less than 3 months’ prior notice in writing.

INTERNAL CONTROL
Risk management and internal control report

The Group has established and adopted the “Glory Sun Financial
Group Risk Management System” as a simple and effective
management procedure for all business units. Pursuant to which,
risks were identified, reviewed and prioritised to facilitate resources
allocation for the appropriate risk management. The Group has also
engaged independent consultants to conduct review of the internal
control system of our business segments. The management, through
the framework, also developed clear understanding on the material
risks faced by the Group, which formed the basis for its decision and
project implementation, thereby enabling the Group to deliver better
operating results.

It is the sole responsibility of the Board to build and maintain a
comprehensive and effective risk management and internal control
system for the Group for the purpose of safeguarding shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets. Such system is designed to
identify and manage the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.
This risk management and internal control report describes the
structure and major features of the risk management and internal
control system.

REEREE

HERX G NRESTR

AR BERAN L 55 AP 8%+ Pt a0 L 31T
ABZETES R ZNIEESTAN(TRESFA )
ERAKERESTETEFRINITRTA -
EREFCHER REE-_FT-__F1+_H
=+ RAEBEFE  BEHEETRESTR
RS -

BYFATESZEFH

BERUFATEFHEARARE —NERE
K EETHR=F HHEERE EEBEXE
BHHRAER - R EA=FFHERE - £E
ARARPEFTEIAE - ZEFHA HBLIFE
WITEFAARRERN—FRAS—HELTD
R=EAFLEMBAKL -

W EREE 1R
BEREERAMERERE

AEBEGIERRA EFHEERRRE SR
HE] REEBEMRAEGEMARNER
B RESERI MR AR - R E L EE
READEERIELAENERERE - AKE
] By R BS 8 3 A A B R 5 0 B AR AR A B L 1%
R EEENABEERAEWMEEREM
mE R ERRR - IR I EH IR EMBITIR
B {MmABEREERHRA -

EEerRAERYMEBAKEZHEREEN
B R E IR R ARPEESE - WRERRIRE
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Risk management structure

Based on the different functions performed by each component, the
risk management structure of the Group is organised into three basic
lines of defence under the leadership of the Board, namely the
business departments and subordinate units directly under the

B EIE RS

RIFSAKRFONBE TR AREHNERE
BHBREND REFTERE TN Z8ELN
R IASEEBEGHMARTBEN : Rk
ERER/E  BRZBERANEE

Group; the Risk Management Taskforce; and the Audit Committee

and internal audit.

Functions & Duties

hEERBE

Ultimate

responsible body
RREEHE

Monitoring
(third line of defence)
EEER
(B=EHR)

Management
(second line of defence)
EEEM
(E=E&R)

Implementation
(first line of defence)
HITEE
(E—EEZ)

Board

]

Audit Committee and
Internal Audit
BLZEEk
NEE A

Risk Management
Taskforce
RpEREE A

Business departments and
subordinate units directly
under the Group
REEHBRBEM
ETEBEM

e The right to give guidance and final decision on the risk
management system and risk response plan.

o HBRELIE R E IR HIE LA K B FE ¥ 5 R AEITHE S
BRIORR o

e To monitor the dynamics among staff, corporate
strategy, risk, internal control and compliance.

e EBERBT - MEHE- Rk AEES - SREZE
BECE °

e Monitor the implementation of risk management and
the timely report of outcomes to the Board.

e AEYHEREBENEMBERNETEZE ARKOES
FWEER -

e To review the risk assessment report and review the
effectiveness of the risk management mechanism of the
Group at least once a year.

o BREREHRELZFIEF-ABRIEERRER
T A UL o

e Responsible for the establishment and optimisation of
the risk management framework of the Group and the
supervision and coordination of risk identification,
assessment, mitigation, as well as the risk management
report and presentation.

e AERUYLTEASENEREERR BREEER
e EERER - BT RREE - ARER
B TR FE R TAE -

e To perform self-review and inspection of the risk
management work by the respective department or its
subordinate units of the Group, so as to identify and
rectify deficiencies in a timely manner.

e BWASEBEMEMNMN TEEUMNAREEIIFETE
ARG - REERRE LR -
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Risk Management Methodology

The Group adopts the enterprise risk management framework of the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission in establishing the risk management system, which
illustrates the key elements necessary for managing risks and their
integration at all levels.

The top-down approach is adopted in the Group's risk management
system. This is facilitated by strong oversight exercised by the Board
of Directors, the Audit Committee and the Risk Management
Taskforce in the establishment and maintenance of the risk
management policy and risk management system. These oversight
components provide leadership and guidance that the business needs
to focus, balance risk and reward and steer the Group to the planned
direction. This approach ensures clarity of the top extreme/high risks
involved in shaping the Group's objectives and performance, supports
risk related decisions at the Board/senior management level and
ensures communication amongst the management teams. It is based
on risk appetite and broad understanding of themes.

The risk assessment comprises of five stages:
1. Risk Identification:

Business departments that directly oversee their respective
processes should identify potential risks of their processes
through daily operations, operating and financial data analysis,
changes in operations, etc. All of the risks identified during the
risk identification process should be input into a risk inventory
which summarizes the risks that the Group is facing. The risk
identification process should be performed at least once a year
to take into account changes in the business environment and
determine whether adjustment to the risk inventory is required.

2. Risk Assessment and Prioritization

Risks in the risk inventory shall be evaluated by business
departments using a predetermined assessment criteria. Both
qualitative and quantitative criteria shall be used to measure
different aspects of the risks. Ratings of 1, 2 and 3 will be
assigned to the risks in the risk inventory after completion of
the assessment. Prioritization will be performed according to
the total score of the risks which indicate their level of
significance. This facilitates the determination of action plan
and timeline for mitigating the risks.

REEREE

B EESE

AEERAXBEREREEMHEREZEEND
XRREEER  BURMREE RS  ZRS
M 7T ERRREEREER 2 EAMBLTEH

AEEREREERGTEAB LM T
e WIIBEREFE ERZBESLARE
EEE/EAREY R EERREERREER
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HTHARES - RREBAZL - FTER
RIES @& - Tl EARKEHATREN T
BR - RN AEREARASE B RERRERR -
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3% E 2 T SRR K B g R SR e R R IR
ZEMBRER - ZIDEER BRI T KT
AR RIZ IR -

B 5T 1k 45 T IR R
1. ERR#EF -
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AREL  RERVPBEEL - KL
BEHREFEBEERR - RERER
B2 R RO P A R R e A BRI AN SR
[ B R ATE R R e RS B o mRE
PBREELBFAT R UEBEXRH
RENBLIRERORELARBE
EITHE -

2. EBTFERELHF
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Risk Response

The risk inventory is submitted to the Risk Management
Taskforce for review. The Risk Management Taskforce is
responsible for assigning risk owners from business
departments to top risk events. The number of risk events
identified as top risks is determined by the Board, Audit
Committee and Risk Management Taskforce depending on the
Group's overall risk appetite.

Risk owners involved in the operations of their respective
processes are responsible for formulating risk mitigation plans
for the top risks assigned to them. They should consider the
risks’ impact and vulnerability when determining the
appropriate risk mitigation plan.

In generally, four types of risk responses can be adopted:
(i) Acceptance:

Risks are considered immaterial and acceptable based on
Group's risk appetite and therefore no action is
considered necessary.

(i) Reduction:

Risks cannot be considered immaterial. Actions have to
be taken to reduce the impact and vulnerability to an
acceptable level.

(iii) ~ Sharing:

Risks cannot be considered immaterial and the Group
cannot effectively reduce the risks to an acceptable level
by itself, therefore a portion of the risks has to be
transferred to or shared with other parties. Common
ways of risks sharing are purchasing of insurance, and
outsourcing.

(iv)  Avoidance:

Risks are so significant that there is no internal nor
external measures available to reduce the risk to an
acceptable level, or the mitigation actions are associated
with unreasonably high costs. Activities giving rise to the
risks should be avoided.

Risk response should at least include the risk owners and risk

mitigation plans, reviewed and approved by the Risk
Management Taskforce before implementation.

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff & @EBHER A A
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4. Risk Monitoring

Monitoring is a key component of the Group’s risk
management system. It enables the Board, Audit Committee,
Risk Management Taskforce and business departments to
determine whether the system is functioning effectively as they
should and to ensure that risks are identified and
communicated in a timely manner to those responsible for
taking corrective action and to the Board as appropriate.

Risk owners assigned to oversee and manage a particular risk
are responsible for implementing or ensuring the
implementation of risk mitigation plan for the assigned risks.

Annual review on the risk management system should be
performed. The Risk Management Taskforce shall examine
whether all of the required information (i.e. risk event, risk
mitigation plan, reporting frequency and period, responsible
department) have been filled in by the risk owners, and have
been properly supported by supporting documents or other
data if applicable.

5.  Risk Reporting

The Risk Management Taskforce shall report top risks of the
year and the corresponding risk mitigation plans to the Audit
Committee and the Board for endorsement annually. It should
perform the independent review on the risk management
system and report the result to the Audit Committee.

The above risk management system aims at managing but not
eliminating the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.
Furthermore, the Board will only give reasonable but not absolute
assurance that there will be no material misrepresentation or loss.
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Review on system effectiveness

The review on effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control system for 2022 covers the year ended 31 December 2022, in
which the Board has performed annual review on the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control system of the Group
through the Audit Committee, and was of the opinion that the
existing risk management and internal control system was sufficient
and effective. During the review, the Board has reviewed the
adequacy of resources, staff qualification and experience of the audit
and financial reporting function of the Group through the Audit
Committee, and has not identified any material deficiencies. The
Board was not aware of any material issues that may affect the
shareholders and require their attention, and was of the view that
the internal control of the Group was in full compliance with all of
the code provisions relating to internal control under the Corporate
Governance Code.

In conclusion, the Board strives to enhance the risk management and
internal control system of the Group on an on-going basis.

Procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information

In accordance with the requirements of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance and the Listing Rules, the Group shall disclose to the
public any insider information as soon as possible after such
information comes to the attention of the Group, unless such
information is within the scope under any safe harbours provision in
the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The Group will ensure such
information will be kept confidential before it is fully announced to
the public. If the Group considers that the confidentiality required
cannot be kept, or such information may have leaked already, such
information will be disclosed to the public immediately. We also
endeavour to ensure that the information contained in the annual
report shall not be deceptive or misleading in all material aspects,
and there are no other material matters the omission of which would
make the information contained therein to be deceptive or
misleading, such that the insider information disclosed can be made
available to the public in an equal, timely and effective manner.
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In addition, if there occurs any significant risk events, the related
information will be disclosed to appropriate authorities and personnel
in a complete, accurate and timely manner, so that appropriate
decisions and measures can be made and implemented by the Group
to deal with such risk events. Meanwhile, in order to further develop
the risks management culture of the enterprise, as well as to enhance
the risk awareness of our staff, the Group has already rolled out
training programs, so that we can assure to maintain the balance
between business expansion and risk management in our operation.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of
financial statements of each financial year, which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash
flows for that year. In preparing the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2022, the Directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently, approved adoption
of all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, made appropriate
judgement and estimates, prepared the financial statements on a
going-concern basis.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

On 21 December 2022, BDO Limited has resigned as the auditors of
the Company and Crowe (HK) CPA Limited was appointed as
auditors of the Company.

The remuneration in respect of services provided by the external
auditors of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022 is
summarised as follows:
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HK$'000
FHET
Audit services EAZ RIS
— Annual audit services — FEZERS 2,200
Non-audit services IEEAZIRTS
— Review of interim financial statements — ERP M EHRE 180
— Others (mainly reporting accountant’s work — Hi(EEARSERAETLAMRZIN
in connection with the notifiable transaction) AT T 1) 700
3,080
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES
INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for the
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against the
Directors and officers of the Company and its subsidiaries arising out
of corporate activities of the Group.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board established a shareholders communication policy in 2014
and made it available on the Company’s website. The policy is subject
to review on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.

The Group has established and maintains different communication
channels with its shareholders. Annual reports and other corporate
communications are published on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange. General meetings and investor meetings were
held either face-to-face or via telephone conference. The Group
reports to the shareholders twice a year and maintains a regular
dialogue with investors.

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the Company,
including email address and postal address, in order for them to
make queries that they may have with respect to the Company. They
can also send their enquiries to the Board by these means. In
addition, shareholders can contact Tricor Investor Services Limited,
the share registrar of the Company, if they have any enquiries about
their shareholdings and entitlements to dividend. The website of the
Company has also set out details on how shareholders can convene
an extraordinary meeting, and the procedures for shareholders to put
forward proposals at shareholders’ meeting.

The annual general meeting provides an useful forum for
shareholders to exchange their views with the Board.
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SHAREHOLDER'S RIGHTS

()

(i)

Procedures for Shareholders to convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM")

The Board shall, on the requisition in writing by the
shareholder(s) to the Secretary of the Company of not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company, forthwith
proceed to convene an EGM in accordance with the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene the EGM, the requisitionist(s), or any of
them representing more than one half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may themselves do so but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months
from the said date.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
General Meeting (“"GM")

Shareholders can submit a written requisition to move a
resolution at GM. The number of shareholders shall represent
at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the shareholders
having at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the GM.

The written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied
by a statement of not more than one thousand words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or
the business to be dealt with at the GM. It must also be signed
by all of the shareholders concerned and be deposited at Unit
1908, 19/F., Tower 2, Lippo Centre, No. 89 Queensway,
Admiralty, Hong Kong for the attention of the “Company
Secretary” no less than six weeks before the GM in case of a
requisition requiring notice of a resolution and no less than one
week before the GM in case of any other requisitions.
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(iii)

The shareholders concerned must deposit a sum of money
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses giving
the notice of the resolution and circulating the statement
submitted by the shareholders concerned under applicable laws
and rules.

If the requisition is verified to be not in order or the
requisitionists have failed to deposit sufficient money to meet
the Company’s expenses for the said purpose, the
requisitionists will be advised of the result and accordingly, no
action will be taken by the Company in that regard.

Shareholders’ Enquiries

Shareholders may make enquiries or direct concerns to the
Board in writing by addressing for the attention of the
“Company Secretary” by mail at Unit 1908, 19/F., Tower 2,
Lippo Centre, No. 89 Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The auditors of the Company acknowledges its reporting
responsibilities in the auditor’s report on the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Directors present their report and the consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022.

On behalf of the Board

Yao Jianhui
Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 April 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Crowe

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Glory Sun
Financial Group Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 72 to 266, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the”HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of investment properties

Refer to notes 4.6, 5(b)(v) and 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group’s investment properties amounted to approximately
HK$3,471,220,000 as at 31 December 2022 and a fair value gain of
approximately HK$8,240,000 was recognised in the “fair value gain
on investment properties” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year.

Management has engaged independent professional valuers (the “IP
Management Expert”) to assist the management in performing the
valuation of the Group’s investment properties at the end of the
reporting period. Valuations of the Group'’s investment properties are
dependent on certain key inputs and assumptions that require
significant management judgement. The valuation was inherently
subjective due to the significant estimates used and significant
changes in these estimates could result in material changes to the fair
value of the investment properties.

Our response:

Our key procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:

— Obtaining and inspecting the valuation reports prepared by the
IP Management Expert engaged by the management and on
which the management’s assessment of the fair values of the
Group's investment properties were based;

— Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies
and the reasonableness of the key assumptions and evaluating
the appropriateness of key input data used in the valuation of
the fair value of the investment properties;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Valuation of investment properties (Continued)

— Involving an auditor’s expert to assist us in evaluating the
appropriateness of the valuation methodologies and the
reasonableness of the key assumptions used in the valuation of
the fair value of the investment properties; and

—  Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the IP
Management Expert and auditor’s expert.

Impairment assessment of loans and advances and
trade receivables

Refer to notes 4.9(ii), 5(b)(iii), 24 and 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had loans and advances and
trade receivables of approximately HK$1,929,023,000 and
HK$154,221,000 respectively after loss allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECL") of approximately HK$629,343,000 and HK$3,137,000
respectively.

Management performed the assessment on the recoverability of the
loans and advances and trade receivables and the sufficiency of loss
allowance for ECL. Assessment on the recoverability of certain loans
and advances and trade receivables and the sufficiency of the related
loss allowance for ECL are performed with the assistance of an
independent professional valuer (the “ECL Management Expert”).

In carrying out impairment assessment on loans and advances and
trade receivables under the ECL model, significant management
judgement was used to determine the underlying estimations.

Our response:

Our key procedures in relation to the management’s impairment
assessment of loans and advances and trade receivables included:

— Assessing whether the loans and advances and trade
receivables had been appropriately grouped by management
based on their shared credit risk characteristics;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment assessment of loans and advances and
trade receivables (Continued)

— Assessing the appropriateness of the key input data used by
management and the ECL Management Expert to develop the
historical loss rates and assessing the sufficiency, reliability and
relevance of that data;

— Involving an auditor’s expert to assist our assessment on the
appropriateness of methodology in determining the historical
loss rates on certain loans and advances and trade receivables;

—  Testing the calculation of ECL provisions applying the ECL rates
to the respective categories of the loans and advances and
trade receivables outstanding at the reporting date; and

—  Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
ECL Management Expert and auditor’s expert.

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021 were audited by another auditor who expressed an
unmodified option on those statements on 31 March 2022.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not and will not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and,
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chiu Lung Sang.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 19 April 2023

Chiu Lung Sang
Practising Certificate Number PO8091
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

A AR

Notes

B &

Continuing operations

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other gains — net
Other income

Fair value gain on investment properties
Impairment losses on financial assets and

contract assets — net

Write-down of inventories of properties

Distribution costs
Administrative expenses

(Loss)/profit from operations

Finance income
Finance costs

Share of results of associates

Loss before income tax from
continuing operations

Income tax expense

Loss for the year from continuing
operations

Discontinued operations
Profit for the year from discontinued
operations

Loss for the year

(Loss)/profit attributable to:
Owners of the Company
— Continuing operations
— Discontinued operations

Non-controlling interests
— Continuing operations
— Discontinued operations
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19

13

2022 2021
—s== —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT FETT
811,389 2,614,841
(629,214) (2,009,362)
182,175 605,479
53,799 254,459
52,780 51,652
8,240 144,171
(283,821) (393,097)
(106,203) (172,694)
(19,562) (139,904)
(327,426) (284,095)
(440,018) 65,971
139,635 43,190
(98,087) (109,310)
41,548 (66,120)
(109,490) (12,345)
(507,960) (12,494)
(29,392) (103,957)
(537,352) (116,451)
- 47,689
(537,352) (68,762)
(551,522) (214,591)
- 25,634
(551,522) (188,957)
14,170 98,140

- 22,055

14,170 120,195
(537,352) (68,762)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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2022 2021
—F=-= —E-—F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

B TET TET

Loss for the year FREE (537,352) (68,762)

Other comprehensive (loss)/income:  H {2 (&E) Wz :
Items that may be reclassified to profit or [ E# S E 1825 EE

loss:
Currency translation differences BEmEEE (270,107) 358,307
Release of exchange reserve upon HE M B A AR ARBRIE X

disposal of subsidiaries = 42 = 3,564
Release of exchange reserve upon REY) 5 Ik 785K R AR R

distribution in specie PE (& - (64,977)
Share of other comprehensive income of 7% & A I H fh 2 H

associates Wz 19 (50,020) (9,684)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit 57 & & 748 = 1825 K

or loss: HH -
Net changes in the fair value of equity 1BE BIRN A A

instruments designated at fair value FEWERER AR

through other comprehensive income NEFES (220,086) (96,486)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income  FREME2TE (EiE),

for the year W= (540,213) 190,724
Total comprehensive (loss)/income EREME(ER),

for the year W 48 58 (1,077,565) 121,962
Total comprehensive (loss)/income EBEERE2E(EE),

for the year attributable to: W48 %8 -
Owners of the Company PN/ T%ﬁ)\ (1,090,016) (132,784)
Non-controlling interests ElE g T 12,451 254,746

(1,077,565) 121,962

Loss per share from continuing and REZFFELSLERRILEE

discontinued operations EBENERESE 15

— Basic and diluted (HK cents) — BEAR R EE (L) (1.76) (0.60)
Loss per share from continuing REFELEERNER

operations BB 15

— Basic and diluted (HK cents) — EARR#EEE (B(L) (1.76) (0.68)
Earnings per share from discontinued RE&KILEEEXNER

operations EZF 15

— Basic and diluted (HK cents) — EARRHEEE (BL) - 0.08
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

g A5 IR Dt e

Notes

P &

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Intangible assets

Investments in associates

Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Finance lease receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Properties under development

Completed properties held for sale

Loans and advances

Trade receivables

Contract assets

Finance lease receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Current tax recoverable

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Client trust bank balances

Pledged bank deposits and restricted
deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

BERERE

FRBEE

e NG
REME

BIVEE
REEE N RINIRE
B EAEMEZR
Wan kT REE
B AT S YR IR
BNFOR - BE REM
J& UK IR
EREHRAEE

RBEE

FE

BRTYE
BExTHRHELENFE
BN ER

& W E 5 BR K
BREE

A& A S e WK IR
BNFOR - RE REAM
A E/SE]

AJ W [m] BN EA R I8
BAFER ARZRN
TREE
EPERRITHER

E IR TR R R

Ao KBS EED

aERE
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16
17
18
19

20
27(b(ii))

28
34

21
22
23
24
25
26(a)
27 (b))

28
29
30

30
30

2022 2021
=== —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
410,824 454,479
3,471,220 3,629,657
151,247 165,706
135,985 295,495
122,578 277,869
2,866 18,310
3,440 9,191
20,138 13,010
4,318,298 4,863,717
60,750 40,203

- 319,572

547,031 478,963
1,929,023 2,490,151
154,221 159,586
20,515 22,427
16,610 30,282
87,008 179,391
1,905 14,266
147,735 326,500
150,024 195,404
21,053 33,624
486,342 730,076
3,622,217 5,020,445
7,940,515 9,884,162




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A IR DL

Current liabilities

Trade and bills payables
Contract liabilities

Accruals and other payables
Borrowings

Lease liabilities

Current tax liabilities

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Other payables
Borrowings

Lease liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Total liabilities
NET ASSETS

EQUITY

Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to owners of the
Company
Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

RBAE

e B SRR MEMN R
BMEE

FEETE M M AL B3R
fBE

RBEEFH
REERRBAR
FRBEE
HoAth & 501
fBE

HERE
EREHRIARE

REHAE
EEFE
Rz

LN
G

ZN/NCTE XN
IR R

REEAE

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 19 April 2023 and were signed

on its behalf:

Yao Jianhui

whziE

Chairman

E]

2022 2021

—E_— —E-—F

Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
B 5T THET FET
31 510,640 632,618
26(b) 23,280 52,657
32 477,316 376,382
33 1,383,664 2,006,343
27(a) 2,378 11,129
173,874 175,952

2,571,152 3,255,081

1,051,065 1,765,364

5,369,363 6,629,081

32 10,133 17,906
33 24,800 -
27(a) 1,962 43,009
34 221,044 234,117
257,939 295,032

2,829,091 3,550,113

5,111,424 6,334,049

35 3,138,751 3,138,751
36 1,666,131 2,801,208
4,804,882 5,939,959

306,542 394,090

5,111,424 6,334,049

HEMBBRREN_ZE_=FHATNLBEEE
EEHENRETIEY M TIEERRRSE

Li Minbin
30

Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
fo B £ S ) 2

Attributable to owners of the Company

AARREARLE
Financial assets
at fair value
Merger Capital Statutory Other  through other Non-
Share Share resenve reserve reserve resenves  comprehensive Exchange Retained controling
capital premium (Note 36(a)) (Note 36(b)) (Note 36(c)) (Note 36(d))  income reserve reserve eamings interests Total
RATEFA
AftEk ARGk EERE AfbGE  Et2Ekan
s Kia®  (fisel)  (6eb)  (WiEse)  (Wiseld) SBEERR EifE REEH kRS @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fin Tin TEn Thn Fan T TEr Tan Thn TEr TEn
At January 2021 RZBZ-§
-B-8 3,138,751 5,070,694 (909,828) 1241 206,269 799,849 (2.278,734) 112 1916,447 2,895,117 10,862,098
(Loss)profit for the year ER(ER)/ - - - - - - - - (188,957) 120,195 (68,762)
Other comprehensive income: ~ £ 24 :
Net change n fairvalueof ~ RATETAZ A
equity instruments at fair Bl eatof 4
value through other IANATE
comprehensive income #2878 - - - - - - (95,357) - - (1,129 (96,486)
Share of other comprehensive  AEEE A AR
income of associates 2E4E - - - - - (9,684) = = = = (9684)
Release of exchange resenve  (EEHBATE
upon disposal of subsiciaries  BRE 3 b
(Note 42) (i4) - - - - - - - 3564 - - 3,564
Release of exchange resene ~ MEMIATESRAE
upon distribution inspecie  BREN i - - - - - - - (64977) - - (64,977)
Currency translation differences &%AEZE - - - - - - - W60 - 135,680 358,307
Total other comprehensive ~ Eti2FAREAE
income - - - - - (9,684) (95,357) 161,214 - 134,551 190,724
Total comprehensive income 2 FRE A - - - - - (9,684) (95,357) 161,214 (188,957) 254,146 121,962
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-FREAA
(Note 42(a) GED) = = = = = = = = = (8519) (3519)
Deregistration of subsidiaries  F B A
(Note 42(d) (BizE42d) = = = = = = = = = (1,464) (1,464)
Transactions with non-controling 3£ R #g25H)
interests (Note 40(b)) 25 (HizE400) - = = = = (74,609) - (15,716) - 360,488 210,163
Release of reserve upon disposal (B A TR
of subsidiaries R = = 694,678 = (65,932) (675,179) - - 46433 - -
Dividend by way of distbution W E 17 TE 3
in specie (Note 43) BN ES
(Hfza3) - (1,803,913) - - (1.927) (15,510) 10121 - 1316 (3,106,278) (4,910,191)
Transfer to statutory resenve ~ EAZE R - - - - 297 - - - (297) - -
Transfer of resenve to retained ~ RHERATFIE
earnings upon disposal of HARH2RE
equity instruments at fai YEhEEIA
value through other HERRRE
comprehensive income BRA - - - - - - 20,769 - (20,769) - -
At31 December 2021 RZBz-%
+ZA=1-A 3138751 3,266,781 (215,150) 12411 138,707 24,867 (2,343,201) 156,620 1,760,173 394,090 6,334,049
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
o B i 58 ) 2

Attributable to owners of the Company
LGN 1

Financial assets
at fair value
Merger Capital Statutory Other  through other Non-
Share Share reserve reserve reserve reserves  comprehensive Exchange Retained controlling

capital premium (Note 36(a)  (Note 36(b)) (Note36(c)  (Note 36(d)) income reserve reserve eamnings interests
ROVEFA
AHRE EARE HERE Afbff  Ef2EbEH
A REEE  (WE3se)  (WaE3em)  (KE6Q)  (BE36d) SREERS ESiEfE REBR  FERES &t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FiEn T Tin Tin FiEn TiEn Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin

At1 January 2022 i3t Smbet:3
-B-A 3,138,751 3,266,781 (215,150) 12411 138,707 24,867 (2,343,201) 156,620 1,760,173 394,090 6,334,049

(Loss)profit for the year ER(ER)/ & - - - - - - - - (551,522) 14,170 (537,352)
Other comprehensive (oss)/ £ 2 (E18)/

income: Wiz :
Net changein farvalue of ~ RATET AL

equity instruments at far 2ENERER

value through other TENATE

comprehensive income 2898 - - - - - - (220,086) - - - (220,086)
Share of other comprehensive  A{EBFEATIEA

income of associates 2ElE - - - - - (50,020) - - - - (50,020)
Currency translation differences &% AEZE - - - - - - - (268,388) - (1,719 (270,107)
Total other comprehensive ~ Efs2EH 74 E

expense - - - - - (50,020) (220,086) (268,388) - (1,719) (540,213)
Total comprehensive 2 (E%)/ b

(expense)/income g - - - - - (50,020) (220,086) (268,388) (551,522) 12,451 (1,077,565)
Transactions with EEARERN

non-controling interests 25 (Hizk400)

(note 40(b) - - - - - (45,061) - - - (64,939) (110,000)
Dividend paid to non-controlling & f 32

interests Bk - - - - - - - - = (35,060) (35,060)
Transfer tostatutoryresenve ~ EAAERE - - - - 625 - - = (625) = =
Transfer of resenve toretained Wi &RATE

eamings upon disposal of ~ ETAEMZE

equity instruments at far Leatil Soun

value through other hERRRZ

comprehensive income RERH - - - - - - 4,59 - (4,59) - -
At 31 December 2022 R-B--E

+ZA=1-A 3,138,751 3,266,781 (215,150) 1241 139332 (70,214) (2,558,691) (111,768) 1,203,430 306,542 5111424
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
OB EmER

2022 2021
=== —E-—fF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Lz FER FAT
Cash flows from operating activities & EBHELNERESRE
Cash generated from operations KEFFRE 41(a) 574,157 1,922,650
Hong Kong profits tax recovered/(paid) Y[l /(B ) BB F S 3,509 (38,037)
PRC enterprise income tax paid BB EMSH (35,073) (171,451)
Net cash generated from operating — A% ;B 5B £ /F5
activities 542,593 1,713,162
Cash flows from investing activities REFHELWELRE
Additions of property, plant and NEYE - BERZE
equipment (11,751) (35,932)
Payment for construction costs of R B SRS ANF AN
investment properties KIE (78,382) (442,743)
Additions of intangible assets REEWEE - (128)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value ~ BEBiZ AFEFT AHAD
through other comprehensive income FHKENEREE (81,040) (78,785)
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash HENRB AT - H0BRE
disposed HERS 42 - 178,023
Proceeds received from disposal of HEWE - HEKEE
property, plant and equipment Fr 185038 231 105
Proceeds received from disposal of HEZR AT ERAEAM
financial assets at fair value through ZHBENECREE
other comprehensive income Fr1S 5078 16,245 177,910
Proceeds received from disposal of RERE YIS HIE
investment properties - 415,604
Interest received B FE 93,429 47,374
Dividend received from other investments B U E b1 &% 2 1 5,139
Payment of consideration in relation to ~ BRWEHNBE AR 2K E
acquisition of subsidiaries BN (110,000) =
Decrease in pledged bank deposits and B EIRIRIT1FE R Z R H
restricted deposits Faom 12,571 134,910
Net cash (used in)/generated from REZTE (BT BEH
investing activities BEFE (158,696) 401,477
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n‘l_ﬁ ﬁ%(ﬁii’%

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment to non-controlling interests

Repayment to related parties

Drawdown of bank borrowings and
other loans

Repayments of bank borrowings and
other loans

Repayment of principal portion on lease
liabilities

Repayment of interest portion on lease
liabilities

Proceeds from issuance of corporate
bonds

Interest paid

Settlement of corporate bonds

Distribution in specie, net of cash
disposed of

Transactions with non-controlling
interests

Net cash used in from financing
activities

Net decrease in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
year

RETHEENESRE
KRB IR R 2B
KRBT 2 ER
RERITEEREMER

BITRAEFMERA
BERFE
mERRES
EYok - HIREHE
Re
BT R 5

BEZE AR 2 FHE

RERREEEY
R
FORERAEEEY

HEERSBHHTE

FRRERBEEEEY

2022 2021

—E-= T4

Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
B aE F#&xT FHT
- (230)
- (97,062)

638,921 9,242,659

(1,153,919) (11,397,272)

(10,716) (17,182)

(2,639) (9,964)

8,000 536,000

(37,984) (813,889)

(23,000) (520,000)

- (259,155)

(35,060) 270,163

(616,397) (3,065,932)

(232,500) (951,293)

730,076 1,724,662

(11,234) (43,293)

30 486,342 730,076
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o V5 e A B

80

GENERAL INFORMATION

Glory Sun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”), together
with its subsidiaries (the “Group”), was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address
of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The
principal place of business was 18th Floor, Wing On Centre,
No. 111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong and was
changed to Unit 1909, 19/F, Tower Two, Lippo Centre, No. 89
Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong with effective from 22
August 2022.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had
discontinued the operations of yacht club and provision of
training services through disposal of subsidiaries and
discontinued the operations of trading of commodities, golf
practicing court, children playroom and fitness room, karaoke
box and trading of home appliances and building materials
through distribution in specie.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff & @EBHER A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange. Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs
which are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group. Note 3
provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current accounting period reflected in
these consolidated financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2022 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and
the Group's interests in associates.

ltems included in the financial statements of each entity
in the Group are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar
("HKD"), which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

f 3 SO 265 e A B

2. REEE

(a)

(b)

EREHR

BEEAR G MR TR R PR A iE A
MBEBW GRS ER ((EBMER
HRA ) (ZABBREEBETEA
S((EREHAAG)) BHENHAE
ERNERHBRELE  BEE
HERIRRE) - BB ARG RA
AR BB R ARG 35 BB AR T M AR
o FRAMBRETETHR
P8 5 T AR Al A3 A 4R B 1R
AEERANE RS RREEN
o

FERMARCRNE TEEY
BREEIMERT A - ZFEITRA
SEASHHREREMHAHIE
FRA - HWE3REEHE U
REMBHRRRRAEAZSE
AEBEBENERMSIBASH]
B SRR LR ERZBNER -

MBBRERELE

HE_Z-_—_F#+_A=+—H1t
FENGATBRERBEALT &
HEH B AR (458 [ REM ) AL
B B2 N T RORERS ©

AEBEEERBNMERRAKER
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MER((THEEW]FE - &ZRal
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o V5 e A B

2.

82

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

statements (Continued)

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
the following assets are stated at their fair value as
explained in the accounting policies set out below:

—  Certain properties

— Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

—  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 5.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

3.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the following new amendments issued by the
HKICPA, which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2022:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to conceptual
framework
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, plant and equipment:

Proceeds before intended use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous contracts — cost of
fulfilling a contract
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs  Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS
2018-2020 9, illustrative examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and
HKAS 41

The application of the above amendments to HKFRSs in
the current year has had no material impact on the
Group's financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements. The Group has
not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not
yet effective for the current accounting period.

f 3 SO 265 e A B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o V5 e A B

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

84

3.2 New or revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations
have been published that are not mandatory for 31
December 2022 reporting period and have not been early
adopted by the Group. These standards are not expected
to have a material impact on the Group in the current or
future reporting periods and on foreseeable future

transactions.

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Insurance contracts'

Classification of liabilities as current
or non-current (the “2020
Amendments )24

Disclosure of accounting policies'

Definition of accounting estimates'

Deferred tax related to assets and
liabilities arising from a single
transaction’

Lease liability in a sale and
leaseback?

Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its
associate or joint venture?®

Insurance contracts’®

Initial application of HKFRS 17 and
HKFRS 9 — comparative
information®

Non-current liabilities with
covenants (the 2022
Amendments )2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

3.2 New or revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date of
the 2020 Amendments was deferred to annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2024. In addition, as a consequence of the
2020 Amendments and 2022 Amendments, Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause was revised to align the
corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in
October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary
exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than
HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to
the classification overlay set out in this amendment shall apply it
on initial application of HKFRS 17
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86

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Business combination and basis of

consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Group. Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies
together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit
or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or
up to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with those used by other members of the
Group.

The Group accounts for business combinations using the
acquisition method when the acquired set of activities
and assets meets the definition of a business and control
is transferred to the Group. In determining whether a
particular set of activities and assets is a business, the
Group assesses whether the set of assets and activities
acquired includes, at a minimum, an input and
substantive processes and whether the acquired set has
the ability to produce outputs.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.1 Business combination and basis of

consolidation (Continued)

The cost of an acquisition is measured at the aggregate
of the acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the
Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at
acquisition-date fair value. The Group'’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or
losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may
elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure
the non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or
at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value unless another measurement basis
is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred
are expensed unless they are incurred in issuing equity
instruments in which case the costs are deducted from
equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement
period (a maximum of 12 months from the acquisition
date) about the fair value at the acquisition date. All
other subsequent adjustments to contingent
consideration classified as an asset or a liability are
recognised in profit or loss.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f 3 SO 265 e A B

4, EXREFBE®)

4.1 ERESHRGEEEE(E)

WIEKANIZMEREE  MELZ
B RAKE(ERKIETT) ETT
ZBAENEER 2 2T EEMG
B o PR 2 A BRI E B K PR
ZEBETERWEA ZAFEE
B - AKREEMNBEEBBIFHELZ
RERKWER 2 AT EEHNTE
EEZWamkEIRN BN HER
REBEAEE  UBRERXHEE
WA FERRWETT A BRI EE
FEZEE N ERRKE ARH
BRRGEA D IR P
BEMIFERER T AR FER
B EEAUBWMEEARECH
frt EELERIRIN - WEBELEZE
RAR S IIER » HEBEITIRA T AR
EEZ BRIk o

WHETT i T8 2 RS AKER
RUEBH 2 A FERR - £RY
REZABRBEANER - HEX
AAEHE(EKEBRBEFT&Z12
BA)NESzRBKERHZRF
BEBZHERMIIBERR - ¥
DEREEXABZAARKREREL
ZTE AR BRI IR S AR -

Annual Report & # 2022 87



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o V5 e A B

4,

88

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.1 Business combination and basis of

consolidation (Continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests
at initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s
share of subsequent changes in equity. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to owners of the Company. Profit or loss and
each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to such non-controlling interests even if this
results in those non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary (except for
disposal of subsidiaries by way of distribution in specie by
the Company, where the disposed subsidiaries are
ultimately under control of the same parties before and
after the distribution), the gain or loss on disposal is
calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for on
the same basis as would be required if the relevant assets
or liabilities were disposed of.

Upon loss of control of a subsidiary through distribution
of shares in the subsidiary to the shareholders of the
Company where the subsidiary is ultimately controlled by
the same party or the same parties both before and after
the distribution, the Group (a) derecognises the assets
and liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts
at the date when control is lost; and (b) measures the
distribution at the carrying amount of the net assets to
be distributed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.2

4.3

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is
able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are present:
(i) power over the investee, (ii) exposure, or rights, to
variable returns from the investee, and (iii) the ability to
use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate
that there may be a change in any of these elements of
control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a
joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but not control or joint control over those
policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amount are adjusted for the
Group'’s share of the post-acquisition change in the
associates’ net assets except that losses in excess of the
Group's interest in the associate are not recognised
unless there is an obligation to make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the extent
of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate. The
investor’s share in the associate’s profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the
carrying value of the associate. Where unrealised losses
provide evidence of impairment of the asset transferred
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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4,

90

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.3

4.4

Associates (Continued)

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value
of the Group's share of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and
included in the carrying amount of the associate. Any
excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss. Where there is objective evidence that
the investment in an associate has been impaired, the
carrying amount of the investment is tested for
impairment in the same way as other non-financial
assets.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investment in an associate is accounted for using equity
method as mentioned above.

Goodwill

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
exceed the aggregate of the fair value of consideration
paid, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree,
the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the acquisition
date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from
an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units (“CGU(s)") that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. A CGU is the
smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets. A CGU to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, by comparing its carrying amount with its
recoverable amount (see note 4.17), and whenever there
is an indication that the unit may be impaired.
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4,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.4

4.5

Goodwiill (Continued)

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that financial year.
When the recoverable amount of CGU is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is first
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit, and then to the other assets of the
unit on a pro-rata basis of the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. However, the loss allocated to each
asset will not reduce the individual asset’s carrying
amount to below its fair value less cost of disposal (if
measurable) or its value in use (if determinable),
whichever is the higher. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than construction-
in-progress are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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4,

92

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost net of expected residual value over
their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period. The useful lives are as follows:

Ownership interests in
land and buildings held
for own use

Leasehold improvement

20-40 years

Shorter of assets expected
useful lives and lease term

Furniture and fixtures and 2-10 years
office equipment

Machinery and factory 2-10 years
equipment

Computer equipment 2-5 years

Motor vehicles 4-10 years

Yacht 4-10 years

Land and properties leased Shorter of assets expected
for own use useful lives and lease term

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment
losses. Cost comprises direct costs of construction as well
as borrowing costs capitalised during the periods of
construction and installation. Capitalisation of these costs
ceases and the construction in progress is transferred to
the appropriate class of property, plant and equipment
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the assets for their intended use are completed. No
depreciation is provided for in respect of construction in
progress until it is completed and ready for its intended
use.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset's
estimated recoverable amount. The gain or loss on
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sale proceeds and its
carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.5

4.6

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by an end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that
item at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in other
reserves. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the
asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred
directly to retained earnings.

Investment property

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation (including properties under
construction for such purposes). Investment properties
include land held for undetermined future use, which is
regarded as held for capital appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at their fair values. Gains or losses arising from changes in
the fair value of investment properties are included in
profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties
under construction are capitalised as part of the carrying
amount of the investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or
loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only
when there is a change in use. If an investment property
becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as property,
plant and equipment and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.
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4,

94

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.7 Leases

(i)

GLORY

As a lessee

All leases are required to be capitalised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but
accounting policy choices exist for an entity to
choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-
term leases and/or (ii) leases for which the
underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has
elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for
which at the commencement date have a lease
term less than 12 months. The lease payments
associated with those leases have been expensed
on straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost
and would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability (see below for
the accounting policy to account for lease liability);
(i) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received; (iii) any initial direct costs incurred by the
lessee; and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred
by the lessee in dismantling and removing the
underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories. Except
for right-of-use asset that meets the definition of
an investment property, the Group measures the
right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under
the cost model, the Group measures the right-to-
use at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liability.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f 3 SO 265 e A B

4, EXREFBE®)

(Continued)

4.7 Leas

es (Continued)

(i) As alessee (Continued)

Right-of-use asset (Continued)

The Group accounts for leasehold land and
buildings that are held for rental or capital
appreciation purpose under HKAS 40 and are
carried at fair value. For right-of-use asset that
meets the definition of a leasehold land and
buildings held for own use, they are carried at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Other than the above right-of-
use assets, the Group also has leased a number of
properties under tenancy agreements which the
Group exercises its judgement and determines that
it is a separate class of asset apart from the
leasehold land and buildings which is held for own
use. As a result, the right-of-use asset arising from
the properties under tenancy agreements are
carried at depreciated cost.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date
of commencement of the lease. The lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses
the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.
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4,

926

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.7 Leases (Continued)

(i) As alessee (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not
paid at the commencement date of the lease are
considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments
less any lease incentives receivable; (ii) variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the index or rate as at
commencement date; (iii) amounts expected to be
payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a purchase
option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise
that option; and (v) payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (ii) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or
lease modification, or to reflect revised in substance
fixed lease payments.

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of
any lease (because, for example, it re-assesses the
probability of a lessee extension or termination
option being exercised), it adjusts the carrying
amount of the lease liability to reflect the payments
to make over the revised term, which are
discounted using a revised discount rate. An
equivalent adjustment is made to the carrying value
of the right-of-use asset, with the revised carrying
amount being amortised over the remaining
(revised) lease term. If the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset is adjusted to zero, any further
reduction is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f 3 SO 265 e A B

4, EREFBE®)

(Continued)

4.7 Leas

es (Continued)

(i) As alessee (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms
of a lease with the lessor, if the renegotiation
results in one or more additional assets being
leased for an amount commensurate with the
standalone price for the additional rights-of-use
obtained, the modification is accounted for as a
separate lease, in all other cases, where the
renegotiated increases the scope of the lease
(whether that is an extension to the lease term, or
one or more additional assets being leased), the
lease liability is remeasured using the discount rate
applicable on the modification date, with the right-
of-use asset being adjusted by the same amount.
With the exception to which the practical expedient
for Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions applies, if
the renegotiation results in a decrease in the scope
of the lease, both the carrying amount of the lease
liability and right-of-use asset are reduced by the
same proportion to reflect the partial or full
termination of the lease with any difference
recognised in profit or loss. The lease liability is then
further adjusted to ensure its carrying amount
reflects the amount of the renegotiated payments
over the renegotiated term, with the modified lease
payments discounted at the rate applicable on the
modification date and the right-of-use asset is
adjusted by the same amount.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.7 Leas

es (Continued)

(ii) As a lessor

GLORY

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the leased assets to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on the
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the amount of the
Group's net investment in the leases. Finance lease
income is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the
Group's net investment outstanding in respect of
the leases.

Any changes in the scope of the consideration for a
lease that was not part of the original terms and
conditions of the lease are accounted for as lease
modifications. The Group accounts for a
modification to an operating lease as a new lease
from the effective date of the modification,
recognising the remaining lease payments as
income on a either a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the remaining lease term. The
Group applies the derecognition requirements of
HKFRS 9 to recognise modification or derecognition
gain or loss on the net investment in the finance
lease.
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4,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.8 Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

(i) Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at
the date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over their useful lives as follows:

Contractual customer relationships 7 years
License Indefinite
Trademarks and patents 3-10 years
Other intangible assets 5-8 years
Operating right 15 years
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.8 Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)
(Continued)

(ii) Internally generated intangible assets

(research and development costs)

Expenditure on internally developed products is

capitalised if it can be demonstrated that:

° it is technically feasible to develop the

product for it to be sold;

o adequate resources are available to complete

the development;

° there is an intention to complete and sell the

product;

o the Group is able to sell the product; and

° sale of the product will generate future
economic benefits; and expenditure on the

project can be measured reliably.

Capitalised development costs are amortised over
the periods the Group expects to benefit from

selling the products developed.

Development expenditure not satisfying the above
criteria and expenditure on the research phase of
internal projects are recognised in profit or loss as

incurred.
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4,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.8 Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)
(Continued)

(iii)

Impairment

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet
available for use are tested for impairment annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that
they may be impaired. Intangible assets are tested
for impairment by comparing their carrying
amounts with their recoverable amounts (see note
4.17).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as revaluation decrease
to the extent of its revaluation surplus.

4.9 Financial Instruments

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a
significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are two
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

FVTPL: Financial assets at FVTPL include financial
assets held for trading, financial assets designated
upon initial recognition at FVTPL, or financial assets
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely
payments of principal and interest are classified and
measured at FVTPL, irrespective of the business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt
instruments to be classified at amortised cost as
described above, debt instruments may be
designated at FVTPL on initial recognition if doing
so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an
accounting mismatch.

(i)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets (Continued)
Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that
is not held for trading, the Group could irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the
investment’s fair value in other comprehensive
income. This election is made on an investment-by-
investment basis. Equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”)
are measured at fair value. Dividend income are
recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend
income clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investments. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
are not reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity
instruments are classified as FVTPL, whereby
changes in fair value, dividends and interest income
are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit loss (“ECL") on trade receivables, contract
assets and financial assets measured at amortised
cost. The ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs: these are the
ECLs that result from possible default events within
the 12 months after the reporting date; and (2)
lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The maximum period
considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is exposed
to credit risk.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive.
The shortfall is then discounted at an
approximation to the assets’ original effective
interest rate.

The Group measured loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets using HKFRS 9
simplified approach and has calculated ECLs based
on lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based
on the 12 months ECLs. However, when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the allowance will be based on the
lifetime ECLs.

(ii)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

GLORY

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative
and qualitative information analysis, based on the
Group’s historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking
information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in
default when: the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to action such as realising security (if
any is held); or the financial asset is more than 90
days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when:

o significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or
being more than 90 days past due unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate;

o the restructuring of a loan or advance by the
Group on terms that the Group would not
consider otherwise;

o it is probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

o the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets
is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the
gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset. For non credit-impaired financial
assets, interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount.

(ii)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group'’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at amortised costs
are initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and bills payables, accruals and other payables,
lease liabilities and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the amortisation process.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f 3 SO 265 e A B

4. BEAETBE#)

49 @I A (&)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income
or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the original or modified terms
of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract issued by the Group and not designated as
at FVTPL is recognised initially at its fair value less
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issue of the financial guarantee contract.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contact at the
higher of: (i) the amount of the loss allowance,
being the ECL provision measured in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in note 4.9(ii);
and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15.

(iv) EREFIEE

(v)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

4, ERETHE#E)

49 €@MIE(#E)

(vii) #IEFER

(vii) Derecognition

(viii)

GLORY

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in
relation to the financial asset expire or when the
financial asset has been transferred and the transfer
meets the criteria for derecognition in accordance
with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments
to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or
in part as a result of renegotiating the terms of that
liability, the equity instruments issued are the
consideration paid and are recognised initially and
measured at their fair value on the date the
financial liability or part thereof is extinguished. If
the fair value of the equity instruments issued
cannot be reliably measured, the equity instruments
are measured to reflect the fair value of the
financial liability extinguished. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability or part thereof extinguished and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss for
the year.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amount and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o V5 e A B

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, EXETHE#)

(Continued)

4.10Inventories 410 78
Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and T‘b?ﬂ*ﬁiﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁ’u Hig®E A
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable AERFEME R HRIEE #

value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost
is calculated using the first-in first-out method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price in

a%! 0 ﬁ$@%‘§ﬁﬁ*ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ2$ T
ARG FERER B R SE
BAMRRAROEMAKA - AL
R EHEFE - AIRRIFEE
BEEHEETNAETEBRET

the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs P B R 2N A E 1T 85 5 AT R BU i
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make FTACAS o
the sale.

4.11Properties under development and AN BRFPYEREZIRELE
properties held for sale ES

Properties under development and completed properties
held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is determined by
reference to the anticipated sales proceeds of properties
sold in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
selling expenses and the anticipated costs to completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Development cost of property comprises cost of land,
development costs, borrowing costs and other direct
costs attributable to the development of such properties.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets when the construction of the relevant properties
commences unless the construction period of the relevant
property development project is expected to complete
beyond normal operating cycle.

4.12Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.12Revenue recognition (Continued)

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or service
may be transferred over time or at a point in time.
Control of the goods or service is transferred over time if
the Group'’s performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

o creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit of
financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amounts receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. Where the contract
contains a financing component which provides a
significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For contracts where the period
between the payment and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price
is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f 3 SO 265 e A B

4, EXETHE#)

4.12 WEHER (#)

4.12 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

Sales of goods

Customers obtain control of the goods when the
automated production related products are
delivered to and have been accepted. Revenue is
thus recognised upon when the customers
accepted goods. There is generally only one
performance obligation.

Some of the Group’s contracts with customers
from the sale of automated production related
products provides customers a right of return (a
right to exchange another product). These rights of
return do not allow the returned goods to be
refund in cash. The right of return gives rise to
variable consideration. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception and constrained
until the associated uncertainty is subsequently
resolved. The application of the constraint on
variable consideration increases the amount of
revenue that will be deferred. In addition, a refund
liability and a right to recover returned goods assets
are recognised.

(i)
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4,
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.12 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Sales of properties

The Group develops and sells residential and
commercial properties. Revenue is recognised when
control over the property has been transferred to
the customer.

The properties have generally no alternative use for
the Group due to contractual restrictions. However,
an enforceable right to payment does not arise
until the control has passed to the customer.
Therefore, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when customer obtains control of completed
properties. The control is transferred when the
buyer obtains the physical possession of the
completed property.

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration for
the effect of a financing component if it is
significant.

Commission and brokerage income

Commission and brokerage income on dealings in
securities and futures contracts are recognised as
revenue when the relevant transactions have been
arranged or the relevant services have been
rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.12Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Trading of commodities

Revenue from the sale of commodities is recognised
when control of the commodities have transferred,
being when the commodities have been shipped to
the customer’s specific location (delivery). The
Group is primarily responsible for fulfilling the
promise to provide the specified goods or service,
has inventory risk before the specified good or
service has been transferred to a customer and has
discretion in establishing the price for the specified
goods or service. A receivable is recognised by the
Group when the commodities are delivered to the
customer as this represents the point in time at
which the right to consideration becomes
unconditional, as only the passage of time is
required before payment is due.

Interest income

Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset except for financial assets that
subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-
impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate
is applied to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).

Rental income
Rental income under operating leases is recognised

on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.
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4,

116

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.12 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(vii) Others

Consultancy fee income is recognised on a
time proportion basis.

Management fee income and performance
fee income are recognised when services are
rendered.

Installation income and maintenance income
are recognised when services are rendered.

Revenue arising from property management
services is recognised in the accounting
period in which the services are rendered.
The Group bills the customers for each month
of service provided and recognises as revenue
in the amount to which the Group satisfies
performance obligations by transferring the
services to its customers.

For property management services income
from properties managed under lump sum
basis, where the Group acts as principal and
is primary responsible for providing the
property management services to the
property owners, the Group recognises the
fee received or receivable from property
owners as its revenue and all related property
management costs as its cost of service. For
property management services income from
properties managed under commission basis,
the Group only recognises the commission,
which is calculated by fixed percentage of the
costs involved in the management of the
property units, as its revenue.
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4,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.12 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(vii) Others (Continued)

Dividend income is recognised when the right
to receive the dividend is established.

Revenue from training services is recognised
over the time of the service performed to
customers.

Revenue from yacht club services comprise
mainly income from members and other
customers. Revenue from provision of yacht
club services to membership holders are
recognised over the membership period in
which the yacht club services are performed.
Payment for the membership therefore is
recognised as a contract liability over the
membership period. Revenue from yacht
parking services is recognised over the time
of the services performed to customers.
Revenue from provision of yacht club services
to other customers is recognised when
services are rendered to the customers.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.12 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group's
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

Contract asset is recognised when the Group has the
right to consideration under the contracts with customer
from the sale of automated production related products
but not billed because the rights are conditioned on the
Group'’s future performance in achieving specified
milestones at the reporting date on the product
certification. Any amount previously recognised as a
contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables at the
point at which it is invoiced to the customer. If the
considerations (including advances received from
customers) exceeds the revenue recognised to date under
the output method then the Group recognises a contract
liability for the difference.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.12 Revenue recognition (Continued)
Contract costs

The Group recognises an asset from the costs incurred to
fulfil a contract when those costs meet all of the
following criteria:

(@) the costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the entity can specifically
identify;

(b) the costs generate or enhance resources of the
entity that will be used in satisfying (or in
continuing to satisfy) performance obligations in
the future; and

(c)  the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset recognised is subsequently amortised to profit
or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customer of the goods or services to
which the cost relate. The asset is subject to impairment
review.
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4,

120

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.13Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period. The amount of
current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of
the tax amount expected to be paid or received that
reflects any uncertainty related to income tax.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
goodwill not deductible for tax purposes and initial
recognition of assets and liabilities that are not part of
the business combination which affect neither accounting
nor taxable profits, taxable temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries and associates where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised, provided that the deductible
temporary differences are not arises from initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction other
than in a business combination that affects neither
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. Deferred tax is
measured at the tax rates appropriate to the expected
manner in which the carrying amount of the asset or
liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of reporting period,
and reflects any uncertainty related to income taxes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o V5 e A B

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. ERSEFHBE#)

(Continued)

4.13Income taxes (Continued) 4.13 FTE% (&)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income tax levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities
on a net basis.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

An exception to the general requirement in determining
the appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax
amount is when an investment property is carried at fair
value under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the
presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts on
these investment properties are measured using the tax
rates that would apply on sale of these investment
properties at their carrying amounts at the reporting
date. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all the
economic benefits embodied in the property over time,
rather than through sale.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are
also recognised directly in equity.
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4,

122

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.14 Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group
(i.e. the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group) that either has
been disposed of, or is classified as held for sale, and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single co-
ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the component meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, if
earlier.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, which comprises:

— The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

— The post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on
the disposal, of the assets or disposal group
constituting the discontinued operation.

4.15Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which it/they operate(s) (the “functional
currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and
liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff & @EBHER A A

4, ERETHE#E)

414 RIEBE G

ERIEREXRBRAEEN —EE
R (BNE R KBS RER A
EALEEMEBPIRBERE) - E1%
HESXWROPBEAREFE  LARK
REBNEBEXHAHE S I
i ERNEEEFEEXEKH
BRGSO —BoKNELERH
BEE - ERESEEMKRED
MEBAE e

h 3 75 00 L 8 AR AR B B B TS R 5
BB SR T B L BIE A
2B (BT ) - A5 B ARIE
BT -

WEBWDOBARILEEE  BER
BRXRE-JEHE) EPes

— EBRUEEEEBZBRBIEER
HEE K

— BRRRERERBCEEN
HEAS  FFEQAFEREE
AR SRR R

18es

4.15 Hhi&

SEHERBAELEMENTBER
RREH ([ eEE%R ) AN EE
ETORIRRXFEERNERA
iR INEEREERABRESH
ROWBERERGE o LINEFHER
RFEIIENIFEERBRAFE
BEBRHMNRTERENBRE - U
SNEEESE R AETEREERIRER B
AEHME o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o V5 e A B

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. ERGFTBER &)

(Continued)

4.15Foreign currency (Continued) 4.15 S (&)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income, in which case, the
exchange differences are also recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case,
the rates approximating to those ruling when the
transactions took place are used. All assets and liabilities
of foreign operations are translated at the rate ruling at
the end of reporting period. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as exchange reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Exchange differences recognised in profit or loss of group
entities’ separate financial statements on the translation
of long-term monetary items forming part of the Group'’s
net investment in the foreign operation concerned are
reclassified to other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the exchange reserve
relating to that operation up to the date of disposal are
reclassified to profit or loss as part of the profit or loss on
disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.15Foreign currency (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign
operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in the exchange
reserve.

4.16 Employee benefits

0]

(ii)

(iii)

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that are
expected to be settled wholly before twelve months
after the end of the annual reporting period in
which the employees render the related service.
Short term employee benefits are recognised in the
year when the employees render the related
service.

Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
when the services are rendered by the employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.17 Impairment of assets (other than financial

assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of the following assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

o property, plant and equipment;
° intangible assets; and

. investments in subsidiaries and associates.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use) of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under
that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset or cash generating
unit (see note 4.4), discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset or CGU.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.18 Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on those
assets is deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

4.19Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which it is
probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits
that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

4.20Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o V5 e A B

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, ERETHE#)

(Continued)
4.21Segment reporting 4.21 EHE

REDFMRET A BERM T E

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the executive directors of the Company
that make strategic decisions.

4.22 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable. Such grants
are presented under other income, rather than reducing
the related expense.

4.23 Share-based payments

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-
based compensation plans.

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
and other providing similar services is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.23 Share-based payments (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expenses, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest.

The fair value of the options granted is considered by:

— including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price);

— excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time
period); and

— including the impact of any non-vesting conditions
(for example, the requirement for employees to
save).

Non-market performance and service conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to vest. The total expense is recognised
over the vesting period, which is the period over which all
of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

In addition, in some circumstances employees may
provide services in advance of the grant date and
therefore the grant date fair value is estimated for the
purposes of recognising the expense during the period
between service commencement period and grant date.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.23 Share-based payments (Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
vest based on the non-marketing performance and
service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision
to original estimates, if any, in the income statement,
with a corresponding adjustment to equity. The
cumulative expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve
a market vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the
options, measured immediately before and after the
modification, is also recognised in profit or loss over the
remaining vesting period.

4.24 Client trust bank balances

The Group maintains trust and segregated accounts with
authorised financial institutions to hold clients’ deposits
arising from normal business transactions. The Group has
classified the clients’ monies as client trust bank balances
under the current assets in the consolidated statement of
financial position as the Group is allowed to retain some
or all of the interest income on the clients’ monies and
recognised corresponding accounts payable to the
respective customers in the current liabilities clients on
grounds that it is liable for any loss or misappropriation
of clients’” monies. Under the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571), the Group is not allowed
to use the clients’ monies to settle its own obligation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.25Fiduciary activities

Apart from the client trust bank balances as mentioned
above, the Group provides brokerage and asset
management services and the Group acts in a fiduciary
capacity which results in the holding or placing of assets
on behalf of its customers. These assets and any gains or
losses arising thereon are not included in these
consolidated financial statements as the Group has no
contractual rights to these assets and its gains or losses
under fiduciary activities.

4.26 Service concession arrangements

Service concession arrangements are accounted for as
follows if:

a.  the grantor controls or regulates what services the
operator must provide with the infrastructure, to
whom it must provide them, and at what price; and

b.  the grantor controls through ownership, beneficial
entitlement or otherwise any significant residual
interest in the infrastructure at the end of the term
of the arrangement.

The Group's rights over the infrastructure

Infrastructure constructed by the Group under service
concession arrangements is not recognised as property,
plant and equipment of the Group because the
contractual service arrangement does not convey the
right to control the use of the infrastructure to the
Group. The operator has access to operate the
infrastructure to provide the public service on behalf of
the grantor in accordance with the terms specified in the
contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o V5 e A B

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. ERSFHBER )

(Continued)

4.26 Service concession arrangements (Continued) 4.26 HEFRBEHE (&)

Consideration received or receivable by the
Group for the construction services

Consideration received or receivable by the Group for the
construction services rendered under service concession
arrangement is recognised at its fair value as a financial
asset or an intangible asset.

An intangible asset (other intangible assets) is recognised
to the extent that the Group receives a right to charge
users of the public service, which is not an unconditional
right to receive cash because the amounts are contingent
on the extent that the public uses the service. The
intangible asset (other intangible assets) is accounted for
in accordance with note 4.8.

4.27 Related parties

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

() has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is @ member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company’s parent.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.27 Related parties (Continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions apply:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.27 Related parties (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4, EREFBE®E)

4.27 FAEE R (&)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

(a) Critical judgements

(i)

Assessment of fund investments as
structured entities

Management has assessed whether the funds in
which it invests should be classified as structured
entities. Management has considered the voting
rights and other similar rights afforded to investors
in these funds, including the rights to remove the
fund manager or redeem holdings. Judgement is
made on an individual investment in each fund
where the Group has ownership interest or acts as
fund manager or both. Management has evaluated
whether these rights of investors are the dominant
factor in controlling the funds, or whether the
contractual agreement with the fund manager is
the dominant factor in controlling these funds.
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134

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a) Critical judgements (Continued)

(iij) Deferred tax for investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
liabilities or deferred tax assets arising from
investment properties that are using the fair value
model, the directors of the Company have reviewed
the Group’s investment property portfolios and
concluded that the Group’s investment properties
situated in Hong Kong are not held under a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties over time rather than
through sale whereas those situated in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") are held under such
a business model. Therefore, the presumption that
the carrying amounts of investment properties are
recovered entirely through sale is rebutted for
properties situated in the PRC but is not rebutted
for properties situated in Hong Kong. As a result,
the Group has not recognised any deferred taxes
on changes in fair value of these investment
properties located in Hong Kong as the Group is
not subject to any income tax on disposal of these
investment properties. The presumption that the
carrying amount of the Group’s investment
properties in the PRC is to recover through sale
rather than through use has been rebutted and
deferred tax on the changes in fair value is
recognised according to the relevant tax rules.
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5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a) Critical judgements (Continued)

(iii) Principal versus agent consideration

Significant judgments include determining whether
the Group is acting as the principal in a transaction.
The Group is a principal in a transaction if the
Group obtains control of the products sold or
services provided before they are transferred to
customers. If control is unclear, when the Group is
primarily obligated in a transaction, is subject to
inventory risk, has latitude in establishing prices and
selecting suppliers, or has several but not all of
these indicators, the Group records revenues on a
gross basis. Otherwise, the Group records the net
amount earned as commissions from products sold
or services provided.

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In addition to disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, other key sources estimation
uncertainty that have a significant risk of resulting a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within next financial period are as follows:

()

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

The Group assesses whether there are any
indicators of impairment for property, plant and
equipment at the end of the reporting period. The
property, plant and equipment are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the
purposes of impairment testing, assets are allocated
to its respective CGUs. Management judgement is
required in the area of asset impairment particularly
in assessing: (i) whether the carrying amount of an
asset can be supported by the recoverable amount,
being the higher of fair value less cost of disposal
or value in use; and (ii) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate
rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o V5 e A B

5.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount of the
CGU to which goodwill has been allocated. For the
purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to its respective CGUs. Management
judgement is required in the area of goodwill
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether the
carrying amount of an CGU can be supported by
the recoverable amount, being the higher of fair
value less cost of disposal or value in use; and (ii)
the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate.

Impairment allowances of financial assets
and contract assets

The measurement of impairment losses of financial
assets and contract assets requires judgement, in
particular, the estimation of the amount and timing
of future cash flows and collateral values when
determining impairment losses and the assessment
of a significant increase in credit risk. These
estimates are driven by a number of factors,
changes in which can result in different levels of
allowances.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
for exposures since initial recognition by comparing
the risk of default occurring over the expected life
between the reporting date and the date of initial
recognition. The Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort for this
purpose. This includes quantitative and qualitative
information and also, forward-looking analysis.
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(iv) Estimates of current tax and deferred tax

The Group is mainly subject to income taxes in
jurisdictions in PRC. There are certain transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current tax and deferred
income tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax
("LAT") in the PRC. However, the implementation
and settlement of these taxes varies among various
tax jurisdictions in cities of the PRC, and the Group
has not finalised its LAT calculation and payments
with any local tax authorities in the PRC.
Accordingly, significant judgement is required in
determining the amount of the land appreciation
and its related taxes. The Group recognises these
LAT based on management’s best estimates
according to the understanding of the tax rules, by
using a single best estimate of the most likely
outcome approach. The final tax outcome could be
different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, and these differences will impact the
income tax expense and deferred tax provisions in
the periods in which such taxes have been finalised
with local tax authorities.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(v)

(vi)

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based
on the valuation performed by independent
professional valuers. In determining the fair value, the
valuers have based on a method of valuation which
involves certain estimates of market condition. In
relying on the valuation report, the directors of the
Company have exercised their judgement and are
satisfied that the assumptions used in the valuation
are reflective of the current market conditions.
Changes to these assumptions would result in
changes in the fair values of the Group's investment
properties and the corresponding adjustments to the
amount of gain or loss reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Net realisable value of inventories of
properties

Included in the consolidated statement of financial
position at 31 December 2022 is inventories of
properties with an aggregate carrying amount of
approximately HK$547,031,000 (2021:
HK$798,535,000), which is stated at the lower of
the cost and net realisable value. Based on the
experience of the directors of the Company and the
nature of the subject properties, the directors of
the Company determine the net realisable value of
the underlying properties by reference to the
estimated market prices of the properties under
development and completed properties held for
sale, which takes into account a number of factors
including the recent selling price of the properties
and the prevailing real estate market conditions in
the PRC. If the actual net realisable values of the
underlying inventories of properties are more or
less than expected as a result of change in market
condition and/or significant variation in the
budgeted development costs, material reversal of
or provision for impairment losses may result. The
directors of the Company estimate the costs to
completion and costs necessary to make the sale by
reference to the actual development cost of other
similar completed projects of the Group.

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff & @EBHER A A

5.

BEESATTRHE 2

(b) fEFTAEEM 2 EEREFE)

)

(vi)

REWEL R FE

REMETRBILZXRMAER
ETZEERAFENR - R
EERQFER - HETIKE
WhET MR ZEET
A o KRB ERSE - A2
AERETEREHEL SR
EFARKRRRIRE TR ° %
ERRZEHEE ﬁ$ﬁl&
EMENRTHERS - WAH
Wé%ﬁ%@%ﬂ%ﬁmwm
KEBRSBIELAEHE -

YR FE L &5 FE

BE_ZT-_—F+-A=+—
HEARE AR ERATE - 9
X¥XFEMNMREEES
547,031,000 ;L ( = T = —
£ : 798,535,000 7T ) © E LA
PR ZN B2 A IR FHE M E R AR
EEIR - RIEBEARRESH
KB RABEEMLE A2
REEL2ERRTPYWERE T
Ih¢ﬁ¢%¥mﬁﬁﬁﬁ

WHEZEEFEINBEYEN RO
%ﬁu&#lﬁ TRHEMS
RS - RERRBE Y SR ] BIR
BEFE - WhmREEH KK
TEEZERNALIRERNE Ebﬁﬁ
NEEMEFE 2 BRI EIR
%@%mﬁ@mﬁ%-ﬁég
BMEANREBER D -
KAREENREREBEAM
FUSETIEE 2 ERERAA
&RI5E TR AS IR B ESH & HIAK
$ °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company (the “CEO") that are used to make strategic
decisions.

The reportable segments were classified as follows:
Continuing operations:

— Automation segment represents the trading of
automated production related equipment trading
business in Hong Kong and the PRC;

—  Financial Services segment represents regulated business
activities in respective to financial services under the
Hong Kong Securities and Future Ordinance (“SFO") in
Hong Kong;

— Property Investment and Development segment
represents the properties investment activities, property
development project, hotel and restaurant operations
and provision of construction works in Hong Kong and
the PRC; and

—  Securities Investment segment represents the investment
activities through direct investments in listed and unlisted
securities.

Discontinued operations:

—  Trading of Commodities segment represents trading of
commodities in the PRC;

—  Yacht Club segment represents operation of a yacht club
in the PRC;

—  Training segment represents provision of training services
in the PRC; and

—  Others segment represents operation of golf practicing
court, children playroom and fitness room, karaoke box
and trading of home appliances and building materials in
the PRC.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
identified its yacht club operation and the provision of training
services as discontinued operations upon disposal of
subsidiaries (Note 9(a)) and trading of commodities, operation
of golf practicing court, children playroom and fitness room,
karaoke box and trading of home appliances and building
materials as discontinued operations upon distribution in specie
(Note 9(b)).

The revenue from external parties is measured in a manner
consistent with that in the consolidated financial statements.

Inter-segment pricing is based on similar terms as those
available to other external parties.

Revenue from Automation segment are derived from the sales
of automated production related products net of returns and
installation and maintenance income. Revenue from Securities
Investment segment is derived from realised and unrealised
gains/(losses) of financial assets at FVTPL and commission
income on dealing in securities. Revenue from Financial Services
segment includes commission and brokerage income on
dealings in securities and future contracts, interest income from
money lending, management fee and performance fee income
from financial services. Revenue from Property Investment and
Development segment is derived from the sale of properties,
hotel and restaurant operations and rental income. Revenue
from Trading of Commodities segment is derived from trading
of commodities. Revenue from Yacht Club segment is derived
from operation of a yacht club. Revenue from Training segment
is derived from provision of training services. Revenue from
Others segment is derived from operations of golf practising
court, children playroom and fitness room, karaoke box and
trading of home appliances and building materials in the PRC.

The CEO assesses the performance of the operating segments
based on a measure of operations, which is in a manner
consistent with that of the consolidated financial statements.
The measurement of segment results excludes the effect of
unallocated corporate income and expenses, as these type of
activities are managed by central finance and accounting
function, which manages the working capital of the Group. In
addition, share of results of associates, fair value gain on
derivative financial assets, gain on disposal of subsidiaries and
gain on reclassification of exchange reserve from equity to
profit or loss in relation to the distribution in specie are not
allocated to segments.
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6.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results

Year ended 31 December
2022
Revenue

Inter-segment revenue

Revenue from external
customers

Segment results

Share of results of associates

Unallocated impairment losses
on financial assets and
contract assets — net

Unallocated other gains — net

Unallocated other income

Unallocated administrative
expenses

Unallocated finance costs — net

Loss before income tax

AHELRE

RESNBEF HaE

i

i NGO E S
ADENEREER
AHEERERR

AR B E A
—F8

AR EAEAMBA

ADENTHER

AR BB A

— F8

BRATEHATER

Automation

HE1

HK$'000

TR

574,660
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6. DEER(#)
DU R L

Property

Investment

Financial and
Services Development
RERE
HK$'000
TER

Securities
Investment Total

SREH
HK$000
TR

HK$'000
TRR

HK$000
TR

49,650 261,162 (70,033) 815,439

(2,170) (1,880) = (4,050)

574,660

47,480 259,282 (70,033) 811,389

25,655

(118,439) (82,400) (71,192) (246,376)

(109,490)

(254,080)

53,742
604

(47,923)

95,563

(507,960)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

DEER (&)

Segment revenue and results (Continued) DEBUN IR N KA ()
Discontinued operations Continuing operations

RIHEERT REEERE

Property

Investment

Trading of Financial and Securities

Commodities ~ Yacht Club Training Others Sub-total  Automation Services  Development  Investment Sub-total Total
Angs i3 -{i S ifp It adt  SREKH RER 2R st &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T TR TR TR

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000. HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000

TR TR T T T T

794,032 178130 1,767,692 (49627) 2690227 6734027

= (75,386) = = (75,386) (75,386)

794,032 102,744 1,767,692 (49627) 2614841 6,658,641

Yearended 31 December ~ HE=F-—Ff=

201 A=T-HIL5E
Revenue s 3,948,164 6,568 - 89,068 4,043,800
Inter-seqment revenue s - - - - -
Revenue from external REMERHNE

customers 3,948,164 6,568 - 89,068 4,043,800
Segment results e (27,301) (15,486) 62,639 18,607 38459

46,233 (181917) 97,952 (67,845) (105,577) (67,118)

Share of results of associates & W‘“TE’J%?
Fair value gain on derivative Niémﬁéﬁz

financial assets ELGa
(Gain on disposal of LEMEAR Y
subsidiaries

Unallocated impaiment ~~ RAR&IEREER
losses on financial assets ~ AHIAERERE

and contract assets—net  — 38
Unallocated otherlosses ~~ RARAEREE
— et — 58

Unallocated otherincome ~ RAEBEEtAA

Unallocated administrative KR THER
expenses

Gain on reclassfication of  FEEMIATEHER B
exchange reserve from BEERENIE
equitytoprofitorlossin - EE&EMKE

relation to the distribution
in specie

Unallocated finance costs ~~ RPEABIERA
—net —58

Profftbeforeincome tax~ BRATE AR

The Group's revenue derived from external customers located
in Hong Kong and the PRC, is approximately HK$472,652,000
(2021: HK$242,575,000) and approximately HK$529,629,000
(2021: HK$6,594,861,000) respectively. The remaining
balances of the Group’s revenue represented securities trading
in Financial Services segment and Securities Investment
segment, represents securities investment loss of approximately
HK$190,892,000 (2021:HK$178,795,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Other segment information

Year ended 31 December 2022

Depreciation and amortisation

(Provision for)/reversal of
impairment losses on financial
assets and contracts assets
— net

Written off of loans and advances

Written off of intangible assets

Write-down of inventories of
properties

Finance income

Finance costs

Finance income/(costs) — net

Additions to non-current assets
(other than financial assets and
deferred tax assets)

HE-Z-—F+-f
=t+-ALEE
FEREH
CRHEERANEENT
EEE (BE) /AR —
4

B R B A
B AENH

FIA
BHTERAR

BBRA/ (KA) — 58

FRPEENE (TRE
ERERRAEERI)

Automation

BB
HK$000
TiEn

6.

Financial

f 3 SO 265 e A B

DEER (&)

Property

Investment

and

Services Development

SRR
HK$'000
TER

RER
HK$000
TER

Ht o HBEHR

Securities

Investment Unallocated Total

RERE
HK$000
TER

AP E
HK$'000
TER

@zt
HK$'000
TER

3,838 17,501 24,189 132 729 46,389
(4,922) (30,012) - 5193  (254,080)  (283,821)
- 53,397 - - - 53,397

- 8,100 - - - 8,100

- - 106,203 - - 106,203

423 4,915 263 2,408 131,626 139,635
(480) (5,649) (55,369) (526) (36,063) (98,087)

(57) (734) (55,106) 1,882 95,563 41,548

9,608 3,507 168,023 - - 181,138
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEBEFR )
Other segment information (Continued) Hitn HER (&)
Discontinued operations Continuing operations
RIEAEET HERERT
Property
Investment
Trading of Financial and  Securities
Commodities ~ Yacht Club Training Others  Sub-total ~ Automation Services Development  Investment ~ Unallocated ~ Sub-total Total
NERE
ARgs  BESRH 5 ity It BBl LERE RER  FHRE AR st it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn TEn THT Tin Tin Fin Fin Thn THx THn Thn TEn
Yearended 31 December ~ HE-F-—F1-
201 RB=t+-RLLFE
Depreciation and amortisation 78 i #3 (2,155) 238) - (12,755) (17.25) (2,514) (13,544) (38,712) (7,061) (4.274) (66,105) (83,357)
(Provision for)/reversal of SREERAY
impairment losses on BEMREER
financial assets and (Bi&)/30
contracts assets — net —58 (26) (488) (231) (@n) (1222) 85 (1944160  (22,540) (7528 (168698)  (393,097) (394319
Impairment losses on FeRERRERE
non-financial assets - (5,620) (4,591) (35,755) (45,966) - - - - - - 45,966)
Write-down of inventories of ~ 1377 £ 45
properties - - - - - - - (172,6%) - - (172,694)  (172,694)
Finance income BMA 36 4101 9 38 4184 1,119 120 10,362 28 31,565 43190 47374
Finance costs SBRA 21,397) (11,314) (4,293 (2,905) (39,909) 433) (27,519) (13,389) (10,847) (57,062)  (109,310) (149,219
Finance incomeflcosts) —net BT/ (%)
i (21,361) 1213 (4,284) (2,867) (35,725) 686 (27,459) (3,027) (10823) (25,497) (66,120)  (101,845)
Additons tonon-curent~~ EREIEERE
assets (other than financial (S BEER
assets and deferred tax ELhREE
assets) B = 133 - 32,682 32815 5291 119 623313 962 - 629,685 662,500
Segment assets and liabilities ITHEEREE

The information provided to the CEO with respect to total
assets and liabilities are measured in a manner consistent with
that of the consolidated financial statements. Segment assets
comprise all assets exclude assets held by head office and the
inactive subsidiaries and other unallocated assets that are not
directly attributable to the reportable segments. Segment
liabilities comprise all liabilities exclude liabilities held by head
office and the inactive subsidiaries and other unallocated
liabilities that are not directly attributable to the reportable

segments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o V5 e A B

DEER (&)

PMEEREEE)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

REBREE  ERBEE(EREER
BEEMBEERIN BB NN A
3,480,867,000/8 w( = T = — &
3,610,432,0007% 7T ) K 688,409,000 % JT

The total amount of non-current assets (other than financial assets
and deferred tax assets) located in the PRC and Hong Kong is
approximately HK$3,480,867,000 (2021: HK$3,610,432,000) and
approximately HK$688,409,000 (2021: HK$934,905,000)

respectively. —Z——4 934,905,000 T ) °
Reportable segment assets and liabilities are reconciled to total ARENHEERABEREELREREA
assets and total liabilities as follows: BREREERNT
Property
Investment
Financial and Securities
Automation Services Development Investment Total
YERE
Bk EA RER BHERE Fob
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FHT FHT FaT FHxT FaT
As at 31 December 2022 R-B=-—F
+=A=+—H
Segment assets SWEE 483,183 1,133,537 4,559,282 223,219 6,399,221
Unallocated assets: ROBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MEE 1,998
Investments in associates REE R RRIRE 135,985
Financial assets at FVOCI BAFET AEAM
EHEEZEREE 15,441
Prepayments, deposits and other BRI FIE ~ 124 &
receivables H A U R E 212
Loans and advances BERRBHK 1,324,559
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReZEY 63,099
Total assets EEHAE 7,940,515
Segment liabilities AHEE 140,618 194,796 1,712,927 20,748 2,069,089
Unallocated liabilities: ROBALE :
Accruals and other payables FEET B A R E MR
FIE 77,323
Borrowings =3 678,868
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIEA E 3,811
Total liabilities BEMEE 2,829,091
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

6. DEER(#)

ITWMEEREEE)
Discontinued operations Continuing operations

ALHEERE REEERE

Property

Investment

Financial and Securities

Yacht Club Training Others Sub-total  Automation Services  Development — Investment Sub-total Total

VESES
EREeR sl Efy gt gEf  SERK RER  EFRA At ey
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL FEL FER FiEn FiEn Fin TiEn TiEn TiEn TER

As at 31 December 2021

Segment assets

Unallocated assets:
Property, plant and
equipment
Investments in associates
Financial assets at FVOCI

Prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

Loans and advances

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Segment liabilities

Unallocated liabilties:
Accruals and other
payables
Borrowings
Current tax liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Total liabilities
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ANEEE:
ER e

REEARNEE
RAVEARR
ENEZER
AE
RIHE - RER
Ao
BRREH
RERRESEN

AEEE

AALER:
EERRALE
508
&R
ROHERE
EEHRAR

B4R

= 557513 2293438 4973528 17814 7942293 7942293

2,11
295,49

55,489

74022
1486873
27,63

9,884,162

= 181,222 776013 1773228 19850 2750313 2750313

108,886
675,082
12,022
3810

3,550,113



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o V5 e A B

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.

Disaggregation of the Group’s revenue from major products or

service lines:

Continuing operations:

Revenue from contracts with customers
within the scope of HKFRS 15
— Sale of goods
— Sale of properties
— Installation and maintenance income
— Commission and brokerage income
— Management fee and performance

fee income

— Others

Revenue from other sources
— Securities investment loss
— Interest income
— Rental income

Revenue from continuing operations

Discontinued operations:
Revenue from contracts with customers
within the scope of HKFRS 15
— Trading of commodities
— Yacht club services
— Others

Revenue from other sources
— Rental income

Revenue from discontinued
operations

Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time
Transferred over time

DEE R (@)
AEBREFTEERIRGLE 2 WA
4
2022 2021
—E-= T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHETT
BEREEK .
BB R & ERIE 155 #
ALZ KB BLE A& A9
— HmHE 558,509 771,105
— WIEHE 112,704 1,604,144
— ZRREEWA 5,011 5,250
— Be RELBA 38,884 81,438
— EEBREREBERA
25,261 48,048
— HAfth 1,569 13,103
741,938 2,523,088
H b 27z Was
— BAHEEEER (190,892) (178,795)
— F A 111,836 101,667
— e WA 148,507 168,881
69,451 91,753
HEKERA 811,389 2,614,841
IR
BB IR EERE 15 5 [F
RAZKEEEFRE AT s
—HEmE S - 3,948,164
— RS TR - 291
— HAp — 89,068
= 4,037,523
H b 272 W zk
— e WA - 6,277
RIEEE RN
= 4,043,800
WS R
RE—REZh 711,666 6,512,272
BE RS R 2 30,272 48,339
741,938 6,560,611
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAN
o V5 e A B

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in HKFRS 15 to
all its contracts such that no information regarding revenue
expected to be recognised in the future arising from contracts
with customers in existence at the reporting date is disclosed
because either the remaining performance obligation is part of
a contract that has an original expected duration of one year or
less or the Group recognises revenue at the amount to which it
has a right to invoice, which corresponds directly to the value
to the customer of the Group’s performance completed to
date.

Information about major customers
For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there is no

major customers contributing for 10% or more of the Group’s
revenue.

7. OTHER GAINS — NET AND OTHER INCOME 7.

CIAL STATEMENTS

DEER (&)

AEBECDHEMBEEHNERRATEN KR
EERNFISHEMATER L Bl
BRENREANTE  REFEFAON
BN ARRERN KD ER - RESFER
BHOEERRERFHA—FHATH
BRN—E  AAREBREEEFAR
SN EERNE - AEREAKELS
ExKBEONTFEBEERYE -

FEEFER
BE_2_—_Fk-_FT-_—F+=_A

=+ HALEEE BEXEFFPAERMEE
KBS REER 10% KA FE) SR o

Hftzd — FREREMAKRA

2022 2021
—EB-_—F —EB-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FAT
Continuing operations: HERSEER
Other gains — net Hith W sm— F5E
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & BT B A B P AS W e
(Note 42(c)) (B 42(c)) - 296,542
Fair value gain on derivative financial PTHESREE < A TERE
assets = 1,313
Recovery of bad debt written off 38 1 F 2 Y [B] 55 AR 1 5
in prior years 53,307 —
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEME - WEREER
plant and equipment Wz, (&518) 48 (1)
Loss from derecognition of derivative RIFERITE SR EER
financial assets E1E = (33,357)
Loss from derecognition of subsidiaries RIFTERHEB A R REE - (999)
Others At 444 (9,039)
53,799 254,459
Other income Hipg A
Dividend income &% B U A 1 5,139
Government subsidies (Note) R 4R Bl (B 5E) 3,295 3,295
Others HAh 49,484 43,218
52,780 51,652
Note: BiisE

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the government subsidies
represented the encouragement of development of culture and creative
companies and the support of the Group’s automation business from the relevant
government authorities. The Group has complied with the requirements set out
in the subsidy notice or relevant law and regulations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING

OPERATIONS

8.

Loss for the year from the continuing operations is arrived at

after charging/(crediting):

f 3 SO 265 e A B

FARBLEEBBRENR,GA)

Auditor’s remuneration
— Audit services
— Non-audit services

Cost of inventories and inventories of
properties recognised as expenses

Amortisation of intangible assets

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment*

Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments

Employee benefit expenses

Net foreign exchange loss/(gain)

Gain on reclassification of exchange
reserve from equity to profit or loss in
relation to the distribution in specie

ZEEN 2
— ZER
— FEBRT
BRARAXNEFERNESF
PR
A ERH
M - BB RREITE*

EENTREARIHE

BERA
SMERER,(Yeas) FHE

LB 0 IR B S R R i

EF D EE BRI

Short-term lease expenses REHEER
Written off of loans and advances EEVSEE i
Written off of intangible assets A M
Impairment losses/(reversal of impairment £ EIEE K& HEERRE
losses) on financial assets and contract 8, OREE B R )
assets — net: — FE
— loans and advances — BERRBIR
— trade receivables — BB Z RN
— other receivables — E UK
— contract assets — AWEE
* Depreciation for the year amounting to approximately HK$19,220,000

and HK$20,810,000 are included in cost of sales and administrative
expenses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,

respectively.

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
2,200 6,130

- 938

=1

573,233 1,928,359
6,359 6,782
40,030 59,323
7,448 13,069
88,123 261,753
60,440 (59,864)
- (69,232)

6,234 9,221
53,397 -
8,100 -
292,567 370,669
189 (99)
(8,925) 22,588
(10) (61)
283,821 393,097

* £ ¥ & 49 19,220,0007% 7T 520,810,000 7
TR AGRE B EURE R KIS KA RAT
WEA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o V5 e A B

9.

150

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

(a)

9. ARIEEHEK

On 23 July 2021, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the @ RZE-_—FtA=-+=H A2

Company entered into an agreement with an
independent third party in relation to the disposal of the
entire issued share capital of Yue Jin Asia Limited (“Yue
Jin Asia”). Yue Jin Asia and its subsidiaries were
principally engaged in operation of yacht club as well as
provision of training services. The results and cash flows
of the discontinued operations of yacht club and

AIFEEMB AR R —RBIE=
TR g AR BRHEERS
MERAR([BHREMN])NEED
BTN - BERTM S B Fff 8 2 7]
TERFERESMKEARIEHR
IR o BEAE S AT ANSE Bl AR 75 4%
IHREXRBZEZERRSREME

provision of training services as well as the gain on ERSWE 2 FBRT -

disposal are as follows:

2021
=B —F
HK$'000
FAT
Revenue Wz 6,568
Cost of sales HEMA (6,233)
Other loss — net and other income HAbEE — FE R A A (4,114)
Impairment losses on non-financial assets EemMEERMERBE (10,211)
Impairment losses on financial assets — net SREERRERE — F8 (725
Distribution costs SaR Iz IDN =
Administrative expenses T E A 7,522
Loss from operations REREEBHEE (7,193)
Finance costs — net BhERK AR — 558 (11,497)
Loss before income tax FREFB B AR A (18,690)
Income tax credit Pt e =
Loss after income tax from discontinued REARLREERNRAEHEER
operations (18,690)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 42(b)) S B A RIS Yas (B st 42(b)) 65,843
Profit for the year from discontinued IR B 4 L AR 2R 9 5 R F
operations 47,153
Profit attributable to: PEAE SR
Owners of the Company PIN/NGIE 2=/ 27,165
Non-controlling interests FEPERR R = 19,988
47,153
Cash flows from discontinued operations: HREKIBELEEBNRESRE :
Operating cash flows KEBEME 3,163
Investing cash flows KEBRERE (128)
Financing cash flows BMERERE 4,692
Net cash flows HemnE T8 7,727

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff & @EBHER A A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

A gain of approximately HK$65,843,000 arose on the
disposal of Yue Jin Asia. No tax charge or credit arose
from the disposal. Details of the assets and liabilities
disposed of and the gain on disposal of Yue Jin Asia is
disclosed in note 42(b).

On 18 November 2021, the board of directors declared
an interim dividend that was satisfied by way of
distribution in specie of shares in Glory Sun Land held by
the Group to shareholders of the Company. The
distribution in specie was completed on 28 December
2021. Upon completion of the distribution in specie, the
Group ceased to engage in trading of commodities,
operation of golf practicing court, children playroom and
fitness room, karaoke box and trading of home
appliances and building materials. Details of the assets
and liabilities distributed are disclosed in note 43.

The results and cash flows of the discontinued operations
of trading of commodities, operation of golf practicing
court, children playroom and fitness room, karaoke box
and trading of home appliances and building materials
are as follows:

f 3 SO 265 e A B

NN i%%&%i%(ﬁm

(a)

(%)

& B 85 58 M 2= 4 49 65,843,000 58

TLHRES - ZEEWAREAEF BN

BretiftiR - HEMEERARBUK

tlj BRI 2 Was 2 s BT R
b) P # FE o

RZZEZ—F+—A+N\A EF
CRAABRESRTHRS  Z
FHIRR B A B R DR A S E AT
HENEMEMZIRG - BWDIK
R-_FBE-_—F+-_A=-t+/\B=E
Ko BYDIRTENE  AEBTH
HEEREIHELEaMAERE
5 REEEERREEE FﬁOK
BHTERENEEMEESD - DIk
MEERBBEZHBEERNZE
43 °

EmEZESBARES REE
BENEZEE - RN OKSMEZKE
BEMESRIEREXRBIEERA
EREBRMAT

2021

—E_—4F

HK$'000

FAT

Revenue Yoz 4,037,232

Cost of sales HEMA (3,950,063)

Other gains — net and other income* HAbas— FEREARA 3,590

Impairment losses on non-financial assets FEEREERMERE (35,755)
Impairment losses on financial assets and TRIEENRESNEENRERE

contract assets — net — FEE (497)

Distribution costs 7 SERCAS (1,131)

Administrative expenses THRER (33,587)

Profit from operations R K& ELHREF 19,789

Finance costs — net BT AN — JF R (24,228)

Loss before income tax FRETEH ATES 18 (4,439)

Income tax credit FTiSTiE % 9,230
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9.

152

(b)

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 9. RIKEXEK#®)
(Continued) (b) (&)
2021
—E-—F
HK$'000
T
Profit after income tax BRETBH&RR 4,791
Loss on reclassification of exchange reserve BB IR E IR N FE RS
from equity to profit or loss in relation to the DIEEIBRAEE
distribution in specie (4,255)
Profit for the year from discontinued RELIEREEBNFRRT
operations 536
Profit/(loss) attributable to: FEAEER(EE) :
Owners of the Company ZIN/NETE 2= D/N (1,531)
Non-controlling interests SEFE R 2,067
536
Cash flows from discontinued operations: HREKILZEEEBNRERE :
Operating cash flows KEBEME 75,039
Investing cash flows KEBRSME 15,787
Financing cash flows BMEREME (97,367)
Net cash flows REMEFHE (6,541)
& Including the gain on disposal of Shenzhen Xinpeng Fresh Food * BEHERITHBEAHERLEEGRAT

Industry Company Limited of HK$1,806,000 (Note 42(a)).

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff & @EBHER A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (EXCLUDING
BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS)

f 3 SO 265 e A B

Continuing operations: REREHER
Wages and salaries TE& RH
Other employee benefits Hb 8 TR

Pension costs-defined contribution plans
and social security costs

B RERA

(i)  The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to
join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”), which is a defined contribution scheme
managed by an independent trustee. Under the MPF
Scheme, each of the subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong
(the employer) and its Hong Kong employees make
monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund legislation. The monthly contributions of
each of the employer and the employee are subject to a
cap of HK$1,500 and thereafter contributions are
voluntary.

(i) As stipulated by the rules and regulations in the PRC, the
subsidiaries operating in the PRC contribute to state-
sponsored retirement plans for its employees. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and has no further
obligations for the actual payment of pensions or post-
retirement benefits beyond the contributions. The state-
sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to the retired employees.

BARESRAN — EHE

10. éI?EiUF‘aﬁEZ (T EEEER
FR )
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
77,836 223,054
2,638 13,144
HREEI &
7,649 25,555
88,123 261,753

iy AEBELHEREEBS RS
MABSFE([BESE) H
BHABMY I AT EN T ARG
gl o BIERESTE - RBEBLEE
WEWNBAR(EEX)BESHES
EEBASES AR EELRAER
EEAB(EERAFEAE®ZE
1) 5% MER - EEHEESHN
& AHEZHGLA1,5008 5 LR
MR ERRAESRAIB B RS -

(i) FEERAFAEOIFIH  RPEE
BB AR SEERRBEZRE MR
ZRIRGHEIEL R - ZEMB A
Bl BEANE T BIE B TE AR
B BERHESIN - A E|ER MR
REREREBANEAMEME
£ BxRERZERARFAEARMN
N TERAEEZZHEARS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fo 3 SO 265 e A B

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (EXCLUDING

10. ETRFAX (T REESERE

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS) MEER)#E)
(Continued)
(iiiy  Five highest paid individuals (i) RAEZ@FAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group include two directors (2021: two directors),
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
in note 12. The emoluments payable to the remaining

AEELERRHFALEEMEE
2T —F WMEREF) HM
TERME 122500 RER - 7B
FRENTFHRT=ZBAL(ZT=_—

three individuals (2021: three individuals) during the year
are as follows:

F:=ZBADHBMESEINT

BEAR#FH& 84 - BRI R
EWFla
RIREHM — ERMKEE

Basic salaries, bonuses, other
allowances and benefits in kind

Retirement benefit-defined
contribution scheme

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT FHET

5,534 6,196

149 54

5,683 6,250
BB IA T8 ¢

Number of individuals

Emolument bands Bl <& &5 B
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000

HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000

No inducement for joining the Group or compensation
for loss of office was paid or payable to any five highest
paid individuals during the year (2021: nil).

154

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#f€m&EBEER A A

1,500,001 % T = 2,000,000 7 7T
2,000,001 % 72 2,500,000 7 7T

AE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o V5 e A B

11. FINANCE COSTS — NET 1. BB A& — 35
2022 2021
—E== —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHETT
Continuing operations: EREER
Finance income: BAFSURA
— Interest income on bank deposits — RITERFEWA 1,222 11,753
— Interest income on financial assets — RN EN SR
at amortised cost BEZHBHA 138,413 31,437
139,635 43,190
Finance costs: TSR AN
— Bank loans — RITEK (53,294) (423,405)
— Trust receipt loans — =R IBEER = (222)
— Obligation under repurchase — BB R EE
agreements (2,799) (9,111)
— Margin loans —HFERER - (21,105)
— Corporate bonds — REESH (30,396) (96,848)
— Other loans — HMEK (8,959) (300,420)
— Lease liabilities —HEAE (2,639) (6,024)
(98,087) (857,135)
Less: Interest capitalised on o BARMEFE
— investment properties under — ERIEEMHE
construction - 169,928
— properties under development — BRPYE - 577,897
(98,087) (109,310)
Finance costs — net BITSR AN — JF 58 41,548 (66,120)
Note: BiaE -
The weighted average capitalisation rate for the year on fund’s borrowed is at a EeBRNFEMETHERNM EREFEHZT
rate of nil% (2021: 6.9%) per annum (ZZE=—F:69%) °
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12. EERANRER
EERTRARCHE

12. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

BE_E-_—_F+-A=+—HIFE -
AEEBRN NN AARSEES LT
BRAAE R BT

The remuneration of each director and the chief executive of
the Company paid/payable by the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022 is set out below:

156

Salaries
allowances Employer’s
and benefit Discretionary contribution
in kind bonuses  to pension
Name of directors EEEE Fees (Note a) (Note b) scheme
0 =i
RENEF BiEEA EXEAKE
He (FtzEa) (KfzED) SRR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT THET THERT TET
Executive directors HITES
Yao Jianhui iR 600 1,677 - 29 2,306
Li Minbin £y 540 1,444 213 149 2,346
Huang Wei BE 360 - - - 360
Lau Wan Po (Note ¢) 2= (st o) 330 502 - 837
Non-executive director  F#TEE
Zhang Chi SRt 312 210 - 73 595
Independent non- BYFHTES
executive directors
Wong Chun Bong TR 420 - - - 420
Lee Kwan Hung (Note d)  Z197 (FizEd) 195 - - - 195
Lee Kwok On, Matthew TEZ 360 = - - 360
Zhao Yizi (Note e) AT (fizte) 29 - - - 29
3,146 3,833 213 256 7,448
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o V5 e A B

(Continued)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(Continued)

12. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

12. EER/ARER @)

The remuneration of each director and the chief executive of
the Company paid/payable by the Group for the year ended 31

ESRTHRARCHE (&)

HEZ-_—F+-_A=1T—HILFE -
AEBEN /AN RRABGEREERIT

December 2021 is set out below: BAAENEF AT
Salaries
allowances Employer’s
and benefit  Discretionary  contribution
in kind bonuses to pension
Name of director BEE2E Fees (Note a) (Note b) scheme Total
E2dl) =zl
REMEH BB EERAEE
we GET) (Ft5ED) SRR Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAEL FAL FAET FAL
Executive directors HITES
Yao Jianhui B 600 1,032 351 18 2,001
Li Minbin ZHUR 824 1,081 981 102 2,988
Huang Wei BE 360 - - - 360
Lau Wan Po (Note c) 2125 (o) 1,860 2,831 950 18 5,659
Non-executive director ~ F#TEE
Zhang Chi Rt 312 212 66 71 661
Independent non- BYKHTES
executive directors
Wong Chun Bong FiRA 660 - 20 = 680
Lee Kwan Hung (Note d) ~ Z=#5% (BffzEd) 360 = = = 360
Lee Kwok On, Matthew ~ ZE% 360 - - - 360
5,336 5,156 2,368 209 13,069
Notes: BiaE -

(a) Being salaries, allowances and benefits in kind paid or payable in
connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and its

subsidiaries

(b) Discretionary bonuses are determined on the performance of the

employees

Resigned on 7 March 2022
Resigned on 17 July 2022

Appointed on 3 October 2022

ERARBERAMBRAEANEHEEFHNE

N EfFE R EYER

BBTEALR IR IE B ORI ORE

RZZE-_—F=AtHEHE
R-ZT-_—F+A++tHEITE

RZE-_—F+A=HEZE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o V5 e A B

12.

158

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there were
no arrangements under which a director waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments. No inducement for joining the Group
or compensation for loss of office was paid or payable to any
directors during the year.

The remuneration shown represented remuneration received
from the Group by these directors in their capacity as employee
to the Group and/or in their capacity as directors of the
Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group does not
pay consideration to any third parties for making available
directors’ services (2021: Nil).

As at 31 December 2022, there is no loans, quasi-loans and
other dealing arrangements in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and connected entities with such directors
(2021: Nil).

Save as disclosed in note 48, no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Group was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
(2021: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13.

Income tax has been recognised in profit or loss as following:

f 3 SO 265 e A B

P x

PIEHENBRERTERNT

2022 2021
—E_— —_E_—
HK$'000 HK$'000
THxT T
Continuing operations: HEREER
Current tax BIHARH IR
— Hong Kong Profits tax — BBNEN 4,504 11,583
— PRC enterprise income tax — PRI EREH 2,097 91,222
— PRC LAT — B LI ER 30,628 88,902
37,229 191,707
Under/(over) provision in prior years BAFEEBETR/
(FRRERE) 4,618 (963)
41,847 190,744
Deferred tax IREFIA (12,455) (86,787)
29,392 103,957
Discontinued operations: HIEREET
Current tax BIHARH IR
— PRC enterprise income tax — R EMSH - 83
Deferred tax RIEFT IR = (9,313)
- (9,230)
Total income tax expense from REFEKLERK I REER
continuing and discontinued HIFrIS BB X A5
operations 29,392 94,727
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13.

160

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Hong Kong Profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
on the estimated assessable profit for the year (2021: 16.5%),
except for one subsidiary of the Company which is a qualifying
corporation under the two-tiered Profits Tax rate regime. For
this subsidiary, the first HK$2 million of assessable profits are
taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable profits are taxed
at 16.5%.

The statutory income tax rate applicable to the subsidiaries
operating in the PRC is 25% (2021: 25%).

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on
the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of
properties less deductible expenditures including leasehold land
payments and all property development expenditures. The
Group has estimated the tax provision for LAT according to the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and
regulations.
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13. FMEHBEX &)
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FE16.5% (ZF=-—F : 16.5%) 1 & -
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13.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to loss
before income tax in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income at applicable tax rates as follows:

f 3 SO 265 e A B

13. FTEHBExX &)

AEEEHRALAJEERE ZEBER
3% 3 B A5 SR R A B T AS AR A B 1R
BROATE ¢

(Loss)/profit before income tax
— Continuing operations
— Discontinued operations

Tax calculated at domestic tax rates
applicable in the respective jurisdictions

Tax effect of revenue not taxable for tax
purposes

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
tax purposes

Tax effect of share of results of associates

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Utilisation of tax losses previously not
recognised

Provision for LAT

LAT deductible for calculation of income
tax

Under/(over) provision in prior years

Others

Income tax expense

2022 2021
—E-= —E %
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAET
BrETSRLAT (E518), 7
— BERLE (507,960) (12,494)
— R ET - 38,459
(507,960) 25,965
ZEAR AR R AR
EMBERGE < FIE (98,653) 51,115
BENTHN S 2 RS &
(32,275) (150,835)
T AENRAS 2 RISHE
99,511 67,324
DR E R RIEE BT E 18,067 2,037
RERHEEB BT E 22,718 61,920
A LI AR TR 2 BB & 18
(6,104) (2,547)
T HbIRE R 30,628 88,902
ST EFT SRR AT 3005 2 L4
EER (7,657) (22,226)
BAEFERETR,(BREEE) 4,618 (963)
Hih (1,461) =
FRefifsZ 29,392 94,727
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14. DIVIDENDS

162

(a)

Dividends attributable to the year

Interim dividend A HEARR B
No interim dividend was proposed during the year ended
31 December 2022.

On 18 November 2021, the board of directors proposed
an interim dividend that was satisfied by way of
distribution in specie of approximately 3,154,445,000
Glory Sun Land shares held by the Company on the basis
of 402 ordinary shares of Glory Sun Land for every 4,000
ordinary shares of the Company. The proposed interim
dividend was approved on the Company’s extraordinary
general meeting on 17 December 2021 and the
distribution in specie was completed on 28 December
2021. The distribution by the Company was recognised
at the carrying amount of the net assets of Glory Sun Land
and its subsidiaries of approximately HK$4,910,191,000, of
which approximately HK$1,803,913,000 was attributable
to owners of the Company as the directors of the
Company considered that Glory Sun Land was ultimately
under the control of the same party before and after the
distribution.

No final dividend was proposed during the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021.
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15. LOSS PER SHARE 15. BRER
The basic loss per share for the year is calculated by dividing FRNEREABEDRBERARRES A
the loss attributable to owners of the Company by the EEBERUAFRNEBTETARDY
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (excluding MEFHHE(TEEAERFENET
treasury shares held by the Group) of 31,387,512,000 (2021: f% 15 )31,387,512,0008 ( = & = — F :
31,387,512,000) during the year. There were no potential 31,387,512,000/% ) 5t & - BN FAHE
dilutive ordinary share outstanding for both years and therefore HMABTECE SRR - ATk
the dilutive loss per share is the same as basic loss per share. E e G R AR EIBAR
The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to RRFHEE ABREBREREBEIRE
owners of the Company is based on the following data: ATIEREEH
2021
— T —F
‘000
FR&
Weighted average number of ordinary MENGREREBADET
shares in issue (excluding treasury TR g (R atE
shares held by the Group) during the REEFAREHETRD)
year for basic loss per share 31,387,512 31,387,512
(a) From continuing and discontinued (a) REFELERRIEREEK
operations
The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to RABIHEE ARBEBREXRERT)
owners of the Company is based on the following: BIBATERETE -
2022 2021
—ES-—F —T-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Loss attributable to owners of the RARHE AEIEERE
Company (551,522) (188,957)
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15. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)

164

15. BREE &)

(b) From continuing operations (b) REFEREXK
The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to REFBEEEBORRREARA
owners of the Company from continuing operations is B ERERERTIRBENATNER
based on the following: FHE
2022 2021
—E-—fF —T-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FET
Loss attributable to owners of the RARHEE AEIEERE
Company (551,522) (214,591)
(c) From discontinued operations () REFERKREXEK

The calculation of the basic earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company from
discontinued operations is based on the following:

Profit attributable to owners of the KRaHEA AR R
Company

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#f€m&EBEER A A

BT R A A T EA A
FE (5 SRR B AR B Th R IE A T AR
5

2022 2021
—E-= —E—F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET FET
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ¥ - BENRKE

Ownership Leasehold
interestsin  improvement,

landand ~ furniture and Land and
buildings ~fixtures and Machinery properties
held for office  and factory Computer Motor  Construction- leased for
ownuse  equipment  equipment  equipment vehicles  in-progress Yacht own use Total
HENE
KRR %8 ZER
THERTH KRB MR REEER HEkER

GRRRE MOERE EERAE EMRA RE  REEIE BE  NIBENE it
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
THT ThT TRT TR THT TR TRT THT TAL

(Note (b))
(Bf3E ()
For the year ended HEZB=-f%

31 December 2021 toA=t-ALEE
Opening net book amount ERETE 328193 45312 4490 2816 4136 5928 1,287 172,126 564,348
Additions hE - 34,704 - 141 1,087 - - 13,769 49,701
Transfer from construction-in-progress ~ EAEER T2 - 6,059 - - - (6,059) = = =
Transfer from investment properties ~ EEERAME (H17)

(Note 17) 66,100 - - - - - - - 66,100
Disposal of subsiiaries (Note 42) HEMBAT () = (3,550) = = (685) = (1,231) = (5,466)
Distribution in specie (Note 43) ENAR (7 a3) (5,056) (43.420) - - (799) - - (87,841) (137,116)
Disposals L - (104) - 0 = = = = (106)
Depreciation i (23,265 (19.915) (502) (1,086) (942) - (80) (26,482) n2m)
Termination of leases RHHRE = = = = = = = (35) (35)
Impairment HE - (10,025) - - - - - (25,730 (35,759)
Exchange realignment ERRE 18,673 1,605 124 19 8 131 % 4401 25,080
Closing net book amount ERBETE 384,645 10,726 4112 1,888 2,880 - = 50,228 454479
At31 December 2021 RZB=-F+Zf=1-A
Cost o 429,651 21932 2314 13,982 6,738 - - 72,982 573,599
Accumulated depreciation and ZEERAE

impaiment 45,006) (17,206) (18,202) (12,094) (3,858) - - (22,754) (119,120)
Net book amount FEFE 384,645 10,726 4112 1,888 2830 - - 50,228 454479
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

166

16. V¥ - BERRE @

(Continued)
Ownership Leasehold
interests in  improvement,
landand furniture and Land and
buildings  fixtures and Machinery properties
held for office  and factory Computer Motor leased for
ownuse  equipment  equipment  equipment vehicles own use
HENZ
BEER %8 RAR
THREFH  RE MR REESER HEEEA
BERREE BOZERB BERE BRRE AE BTERWE &zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TR TER TR TR TR TR TR
(Note (b))
(W& (b))
For the year ended BE-8--%

31 December 2022 +ZA=+-HLEE
Opening net book amount FNEEEFAE 384,645 10,726 4,112 1,888 2,880 50,228 454,479
Additions E = 2,143 9,467 128 13 1377 13,128
Transfer from investment properties &% B & 9% (Hiz£17)

(Note 17) 37,725 - - - - - 37,725
Disposals HE - (6) - = (177) = (183)
Depreciation & (24,667) (3.098) (1,331) (694) (484) (9,756) (40,030)
Termination of leases KIFHRE - - - - - (37,659) (37,659)
Exchange realignment B (16,142) (188) (218) (45) 43) - (16,636)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 381,561 9,577 12,030 1217 2,189 4,190 410,824
At 31 December 2022 R-Z-=£+-A=+-8
Cost KA 448,002 29,897 31379 13,903 5,724 6,647 535,552
Accumulated depreciation and ZHTERAE

impairment (66,441) (20,320) (19,349) (12,626) (3,535) (2,457) (124,728)
Net book amount EEFE 381,561 9,577 12,030 1,277 2,189 4,190 410,824
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y% - BMERR®E #)
(Continued)
Notes: B aE
(a) Ownership interests in land and buildings held for own use with carrying (a) BR T 8 49216,529,000%8 ;T (=T = — F ¢

value amounted to approximately HK$216,529,000 (2021:
HK$184,307,000) have been pledged to bank to secure the Group’s bank
borrowings (Note 33).

(b) Right-of-use assets (b)

The analysis of the carrying amount of right-of-use assets by class of
underlying asset is as follows:

184,307,000 7T ) K FE B A - RIEFH)
BHEEZCEAREBRRITE AR (H
F£33) ©

EREEE

ZERAERANE S NERERAEREES
e

2022 2021
—=E—= —T-—fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT

Ownership interests in land and buildings held for — #{EH A it MAZFH A HEAERS

own use, carried at depreciated cost, with RITERASYRE - A THEEWT -
remaining lease term of:

— 50 years or more - 5045

— between 10 and 50 years -10E504

Land and properties leased for own use, carried at ~ FAEEE AR L R E - UFE
depreciated cost (see note (i) below) AAFIR (R SXHFEG))

216,529 184,307
156,032 200,338
381,561 384,645

4,190 50,228
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16.

168

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) Bfizx - (&)
(b) Right-of-use (Continued) (b)

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised in profit or
loss is as follows:

16. ¥ BMEKRRE#)

ERELE (&)

BERRTRIANEEFENASIRE ST
LINNE

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets by class &G BEEER B D OFEREEE

of underlying asset: WITEERA :
Ownership interests in leasehold land and buildings ~ # & + b A& F H) % B g 25
Land and properties leased for own use THEEE BRI L R
Interest on lease liabilities HEARNES
Expense relating to short-term leases EHEEER

The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 December 2022
was HK$19,589,000 (2021: HK$37,174,000). Details of the maturity
analysis of lease liabilities are set out in note 27(a).

Note:
(i) Properties leased for own use

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has obtained the right to use
properties as its various offices through tenancy agreements with
independent third parties and a related party, a company in which
Mr. Yao has significant influence over the related party. The leases
with independent third parties typically run for an initial period of
2 to 6 years (2021: 2 to 6 years). The lease with the related party
runs for an initial period of 20 years (2021: 20 years).

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#f€m&EBEER A A

2022 2021
—E-— —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAT

24,667 23,265
9,756 26,482
34,423 49,747
2,639 9,964
6,234 10,028

HE-_Z-_—_F+_A=+—HILFE #HE
7IR &M 455 19,589,000 L (ZF =—
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. REY=
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At 1 January ®w—A—H 3,629,657 9,301,747
Transfer to property, plant and equipment EEZE ¥ - B M RE
(Note 16) (Mtzx16) (37,725) (66,100)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 42) HE—MKBAR (FiiEd2) = (2,224,723)
Disposals HE - (415,604)
Distribution in specie (Note 43) Bk (ME43) - (4,063,202)
Capitalised subsequent expenditure HieRZBRER 168,010 612,671
Fair value gain N ERE 8,240 144,171
Exchange realignment PE 5 FE % (296,962) 340,697
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—H 3,471,220 3,629,657
The Group measured the deferred tax relating to the temporary AEBGAEKBZEREYEARS
differences of these investment properties using the tax rates AR ERRE  STEXFREMSE
and the tax bases that are consistent with the expected manner TR E RARIERIE -

of recovery of these investment properties.

Investment properties with carrying value amounted to 8K ™ B A& #91,749,311,000% (= &
approximately HK$1,749,311,000 (2021: HK$1,885,000,000) ——% :1,885,000,000%7T) 2 REWE
have been pledged as securities to secure the Group’s bank EERAERAEERITEENIER(H
borrowings (Note 33). £¥33)

(a) Amounts recognised in profit and loss for (a) FREVENRERERZSHE

investment properties

2022 2021
—E—_— T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Rental income HEUA 148,507 168,881
Direct operating expenses from EERSWAZYEZ
properties that generated rental BEELERX
income 12,744 40,402
Direct operating expenses from REEHSWAZMEL
properties that did not generate HELERX
rental income 2,152 5,037
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's investment properties measured at the end
of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail
to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not
available

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

170 GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B¢ REBEERA T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o V5 e A B

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. BEWHE &)

(b) Fair value measurement of investment

properties (Continued)

(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (i)

Fair value
measurements
at 31 December
2022
N=-T_——
+=A=+—8H
HENHAFE

Significant
unobservable
inputs (Level 3)

(b) REWMENLDTVETEE)

RFEERE)

Fair value
measurements
at 31 December
2021
R-T_—
+=-—A=+—~H
HENATE
Significant
unobservable
inputs (Level 3)

BEXRAH BEART
B ABE B st A SR
(F=EHR) (F=E#)
Description it HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Recurring fair value REMAFETE
measurements
Investment properties: KEME -
— Office, workshop, — AR I8
dormitory, shop, car parks, = J5H - 2%
hotel and shopping arcade BIE R BV S
— the PRC — 3,303,645 3,407,557
— Office —WAE
— Hong Kong — &8 167,575 222,100
3,471,220 3,629,657
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17.

172

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

There were no transfers among level 1, level 2 and
level 3 in the fair value hierarchy during the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the
date of the event or change in circumstances that
caused the transfer.

The fair value measurement is based on the above

properties’ highest and best use, which does not
differ from their actual use.
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. BEWE (®)
(b) Fair value measurement of investment (b) BEWMENLIFENEE)

properties (Continued)

(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (i) AFEZFRE)
Fair value measurements using significant (& BT ] B R o) A\ U5
unobservable inputs (Level 3) BN FEFE(F=Z/ER)
The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 REMENATERE=ER
recurring fair value measurement. A reconciliation KEMNTHERE - B R H
of the opening and closing fair value balance is RO D FEEHROFTRERN
provided below: T

2022 2021
—F=-= T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FET

Opening balance (level 3 recurring ~ EA¥45 64 (5 = AR H M4

fair value) NFE) 3,629,657 8,177,512
Transfer to property, plant EEEYE - E REE

and equipment (Note 16) (M=% 16) (37,725) =
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 42) HE—HEHEAR

(M¥zE42) - (2,224,723)

Distribution in specie Bk - (3,368,750)
Capitalised subsequent expenditure ~ E 1853 #Fc &R 168,010 612,671
Fair value gain AN EY 8,240 134,480
Exchange realignment R RES (296,962) 298,467
Closing balance HBioR 4554 3,471,220 3,629,657
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17.

174

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

(iij) Valuation techniques and inputs

Valuation processes of the Group

Independent valuations of the Group’s investment
properties located in the PRC were performed by
the external valuer, Valtech Valuation Advisory
Limited (“Valtech”) to determine the fair value of
the investment properties as at 31 December 2022
and 2021.

For the investment properties located in Hong
Kong, the valuations were performed by the
external valuer, APAC Asset Valuation and
Consulting Limited (“APAC”) as at 31 December
2022 and 2021.

Valtech and APAC are independent and
professionally qualified valuers that hold recognised
relevant professional qualification and have recent
experience in the locations and category of the
investment properties valued. For all investment
properties, their current use equates to the highest
and best use.

The Group's finance department includes a team
that reviews the valuations performed by the
independent valuers for financial reporting
purposes. This team reports directly to the chief
financial officer (“CFO"). Discussions of valuation
processes and results are held between the CFO,
the valuation team and external valuers at least
once every six months, in line with the Group’s
interim and annual reporting dates. As at 31
December 2022 and 2021, the fair values of the
properties were determined by external valuers.

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff & @EBHER A A

17. REWH*E &)
(b) REVWEWATENE(E)

(i) 1EELMREABIE
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17. REYH*E &)
(b) BEMEWATESEE)

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

(i) 1HEFMNREABE (&)

(iij) Valuation techniques and inputs (Continued)

Valuation processes of the Group (Continued)

At each interim and annual reporting periods, the
finance department:

A& B ERE (&

R A R 4 A0S - B
BHEFIE

o Verifies all major inputs in the independent s REBVGERSHA
valuation reports; BEEXE2HAHE

e Assesses property valuation movements when e HAFMHEMRSLER:
compared to the prior year valuation reports; HEMEGEER &
and

e Holds discussions with the independent o HFEN(HERIEE o
valuers.

Valuation techniques 1 1E

Completed properties in Shenzhen, the PRC RARBURIIEE T I

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the valuations RZE-_—_FR_FT-—F
were determined using income approach (term and +=ZA=+—8 HEFERK
reversionary method) based on the following NE (B RERE) REBIA
significant unobservable inputs: TERAA B RGE ABIRE

E e

Term and reversionary yield Based on actual location, size and quality of the properties and
taking into account market data (including vacancy rates) at the
valuation date.

E HA R 18 55 W a3 BRBEMEBR T EERER  WEENGEBRNTSH

B(BETZEX)ETE -

Current market rent unit rates Based on the actual location, type and quality of the properties
and supported by the terms of any existing lease, other contracts
and external evidence such as current market rents for similar
properties.

RIEMEERME - B3 BEET - WEEMHREAHEL K
o HAehE R RINDEREE (FIn R E R 1T ) (EEHR -
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

176

(b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

(iij) Valuation techniques and inputs (Continued)
Valuation techniques (Continued)

Properties under construction in Shenzhen, the PRC

17. BREWHE &)
(b) BEVMEWATLENE S

(i) 1HEFMNREABE (&)
e E# M (&)

R BRI YR

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the valuations N EBE - —FH T - —4%

were determined using market approach based on
the following significant unobservable inputs:

Accommodation value

EmEmE

Incurred construction costs
EEARE TR
Properties in Ganzhou, the PRC

Completed properties

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the valuations
were determined using direct comparison approach
based on the following significant unobservable

input:

Current market value unit rate
(RMB per square meter)

RITMEFELER
(BFIAARE)

TZA=1+—8  #HERER
AT EATNAI B EARE -
RATMISEREHR

Accommodation value represents the unit rate where the
transaction price is divided by permitted plot ratio gross floor area.
BEMEBRREMER  HEPARXFERBRUTTNDTEEREER
EE °

Incurred construction cost represented the accumulated
construction cost incurred as of date of valuation.

DEAMIRANED BANZAHIRAN - (EAAEEBRHRE -
AR BREE M B9 ) 2
DI YE

RZBEZZFR-ZFT=Z—F
+—A=+—H " HEKRE
AT E R ER o AR
REELBEMERE :

Taking into account the differences in time, location, condition,
size, age and other individual factors between the comparables and
the properties.

ERTAEERAGDEZMERER UE - MR- RE - FR
MEMENEZTEHNER -
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. BEWHE &)
(b) Fair value measurement of investment (b) BEWMENDFEEE)
properties (Continued)
(ii) Valuation techniques and inputs (Continued) (i) 1EEEWR A B (&)
Valuation techniques (Continued) & 1EFL T (4B)
Completed properties in Hong Kong REBNE TIYE
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the valuation MRZBE_—_FR-_F-_—F
of properties located in Hong Kong were +=—A=Z+—8  UREEN
determined using income approach, which had MEGHERBRAEEE - I
taken into consideration of existing tenancies. The EERRBMEA - ZEWERN
fair value measurement of these properties were ANEEHESERF=H I
classified as Level 3 with the following significant RN TEARTAE 28 AL
unobservable input: 1%
Term and reversionary yield Based on actual location, size and quality of the properties and
taking into account market data at the valuation date.
T B 1B BR e K BRBEMEBRIE EEMEE  WEERNGEBHNTSH
BETE -
Current market value unit rate Based on actual location, type and quality of the properties and

supported by external evidence such as current market value for
similar properties.

BiTmEELER REVENERUE  BRERERIABEUYENRTHES
SMNEPREIRIERIE ©
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. REWF @)
(b) Fair value measurement of investment (b) BREMENAFETEE)

properties (Continued)

(ii) Valuation techniques and inputs (Continued) (i) 1EEEWR A B (&)
Valuation inputs 1B EABIR
Below is a summary of the valuation technique TR ARFEERE=E
used and the key inputs to the valuation of R E Y EMLERTAGER
investment properties included in Level 3 in the fair MR EZHASEHE

value hierarchy:

Relationship of unobservable

Description Fair value at 31 December Valuation technique(s) Unobservable inputs Range of unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
i RTZB=+-BNATE  HERH TABRREAEE TAREA\YEEE TURREABBEATENEE
2022 2021 2021
—E-CE —E--& —EC-%
HK$000 HK$'000
TER TAL
Completed properties in 1,265,035 1,311,531 Income approach Term and reversionary yield 7-8% 7-8%  The higher the term and
Shenzhen, the PRC reversionary, the lower the fair
value
REERINETINE WK EAREERRE EARESYRENR  BIAT
{BHLE
Current market rent rates RMB29-RMB63 RMB31-RMB62  The higher the current market rent
per square meter  per square meter rate, the higher the fair value
per month per month
RiimsReEE BABTAK BABTAK  BimsleERHR A

AR¥297E AR¥E31TE ATEES
AREG3T ARE62T

Properties under construction 1,082,557 1,030,706 Market approach Accommodation value RMB1,333 RMB1,344  The higher the accommodation
in Shenzhen, the PRC persquare meter  per square meter value, the higher the fair value
REERIER NS M5k BENE BYARARE  BTHRARE  BEBLEES RIRTEHS
133371 13447
Incurred construction costs RMB2,701 RMB2,105  The higher the incurred
persquare meter  per square meter construction costs, the higher
the fair value
BELRIKA BYAAARYE  BTARARE  EELRIAFES AATE
2,017 2,1057T ot}

178 GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B¢ RiEEA R A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o V5 e A B

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of investment

properties (Continued)

(iij) Valuation techniques and inputs (Continued)

Description

it

Completed properties in
Ganzhou, the PRC

RPBEBMMERTI R

Completed properties in
Hong Kong
RERNERIYR

Valuation inputs (Continued)

Fair value at 31 December
Rt=A=t-ANAYE

2022
—EC-CF

HK$'000
T

956,053

167,575

Valuation technique(s)

fhERH

2021
—T--%
HK$'000
Fin

17. REWE &)

1,065,320 Direct comparison approach

ERUEE

222,100 Income approach

WAE

I EHAZE (&)

(b) REVMENDTETEE)

(i) 1HEFMRBAABE (&)

Relationship of unobservable

Unobservable inputs Range of unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
TUBERANE TUBEAABEEE TUBESABEEATENBE
2021
ka2
Current market value unit RMBS5,000- RMB5,000-  The higher the market value unit
rate (RMB per square RMB15,000 RMB15,800 rate, the higher the fair value
meter) per square meter  per square meter
BimEELE® YK BYRR  WEEE AATEES
(B¥ARARRE) ARM5007E  ARM5000TE
15,000 7% AR 158007
Current market value unit RMB110,000 RMB110,000  The higher the market value unit
rate (RMB per carpark) per carpark per carpark rate, the higher the fair value
RfimEENER BEEMLARY BEEARE  WEdS AATEES
(BEEMUARE) 110,000 7 110,0007%
Term and reversionary yield 1.7%-1.9% 1.7%-1.9%  The higher the reversionary yield,
the lower the fair value
EAREGNRE ERkEEER - AATELE
Current market value unit HK$36,318- HK$39,898-  The higher the current market
rate HK$37,778 HK$41,288 value unit rate, the higher fair
per square foot per square foot value
RmEELE® BYAR BYFR  ROTEENEESS BIAT
36318782 39,8988 E {ERES
31,718 % 41,288 7L

The valuation for investment properties under
construction was arrived at by making reference to
comparable sales as available in the relevant
market. The construction cost incurred as at the
date of valuation are also taken into account.

ERIREMEZEET2ER
AmS B L BHERSD ©

AN
E2=0) N
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

180

18. B EE

Contractual Other
Trademark customers Operating intangible
Goodwill  and patents  relationships License right assets Total
BE BEREHE ANEFBR R feR HtEREE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THx T T T THT THT
At 1 January 2021 R=2=-%¥-5-H
Cost AR 147,958 3,944 55,710 10,997 868,274 4,440 1,091,323
Accumulated amortisation  ZiHEERHE
and impairment = (3,944) (43,473) = (766,926) (3,144) (817,487)
Net book amount REFE 147,958 - 12,237 10,997 101,348 1,29 273,836
For the year ended Bz-3--%
31 December 2021 +=B=t-BLEE
Opening net book amount FNERFE 147,958 - 12,237 10,997 101,348 1,296 273,836
Additions hE - - - - 128 - 128
Amortisation B - - (6,339) - (4,303) (443) (11,085)
Impairment B - - - - (10,211) - (10,211)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR
(Note 42) (Firsta2) - - - - (88,851) - (88,851)
Exchange realignment RS - - - - 1,889 - 1,889
Closing net book amount FREEFE 147,958 - 5,898 10,997 - 853 165,706
At 31 December 2021 R-Z=-%
+=A=1+-H
Cost A 147,958 4,014 55,710 10,997 - 4,440 223,119
Accumulated amortisation and  2H 55 RAlE
impairment - (4,014) (49,812) - - (3,587) (57,413)
Net book amount FEFE 147,958 - 5,898 10,997 - 853 165,706
For the year ended BE-B-CF
31 December 2022 +ZA=+-BLEE
Opening net book amount ~ FHIREFE 147,958 - 5,898 10,997 - 853 165,706
Amortisation & - - (5,898) - - (461) (6,359)
Written off s - - - (8,100) - - (8,100)
Closing net book amount ERREFE 147,958 - - 2,897 - 392 151,247
At 31 December 2022 R-B-_%
+=B=+-H
Cost AR 147,958 4,014 55,710 2,897 - 4,440 215,019
Accumulated amortisation and R &TEH KRB
impairment - (4,014) (55,710) - - (4,048) (63,772)
Net book amount REFE 147,958 - - 2,897 - 392 151,247
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18. BILEE (&)

(a) BERERH

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(a) Impairment test for goodwiill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGUs that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Impairment testing is performed annually
on goodwill allocated to the CGUs included in the
Automation and Financial Services segments.

As of 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of goodwill
allocated to the Automation and Financial Services
segments amounted to approximately HK$43,722,000
(2021: HK$43,722,000) and approximately
HK$104,236,000 (2021: HK$104,236,000) respectively.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined
based on value in use calculations or fair value less cost
of disposal with reference to market price, whichever is
higher.

For value in use calculations, management estimates
discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the CGUs. The growth rates are based on
industry growth forecasts.

BFEEOIREAEEERZERE
AT RBRAME CREELSE
il - AEBEESFHOIREBBER
TRRGOMREELEMNEHE
EITRERF

R-BE-_—&F+-_A=+—H %
¥ B E ke RS DI EE
BRME{E D B4 A 43,722,0008 (=
T~ — 4 143,722,000/ T) B A
104,236,000 JL( = & = — F
104,236,000787T) °

ReEL BN KESETEE
EREEEH D FEREERA
(A= ERE)2RMIGERME
E o

SMEMREBEAENS  EEEER
R EERBEENEN ST
i o 3R & B A BB 5 TE L P O R A
AILL RAAETRRIR K - MRKRTHERN
TEERBAIMIED -
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(@) Impairment test for goodwill (Continued)

For Automation segment and Financial Services segment,
the Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the
most recent financial budgets approved by management
for the next five years with a terminal value related to the
future earnings potential of CGUs beyond the next five
years to determine the recoverable amount of CGUs. The
financial budgets and growth rates are estimated based
on past performance and its expectations of market
development. The key assumptions used for the value in

use calculations are as follows:

18. BILEE (&)
() BERENRE)

REBCDFRERRH DT
- AEERTELBGAAKDE
T ARERUEASREER -
TRE EEEHENRKAFNR
TP BRE  MERKEERBRAK
RKAFRBASEEBMHOREEF
&N - MIETRERIEREAREE
ERBEEMSERBAMA
EREEFEMBNEZMRAOT

For the year ended 31 December
2022

Growth rate

Discount rate

For the year ended 31 December
2021

Growth rate

Discount rate

Financial

Automation Services
BEt SERE

5% 5%

15% 11%

5% 5%

1% 1%

Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
carrying amount of each of the CGUs to exceed its

respective recoverable amount.
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 18. B EE )

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2021, the outbreak (b) Ht—TE-——F+—-_A=+—H1t

of Covid-19 pandemic have had negative impacts to the
global economy, business environment and directly and
indirectly affect the operations of the Group. The
financial performance of the operations of yacht club as
well as training services were adversely affected resulting
from the deteriorated economic environment and
uncertain outlook of the Group’s business following the
influence of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Accordingly, the Group assesses the recoverable amount
of the operating right allocated to its respective CGUs
and as a result the carrying amount of the operating right
was written down to its recoverable amount of
approximately HK$44,378,000 in the segment of yacht
club and approximately HK$44,473,000 in the segment
of training respectively. An impairment loss of
approximately HK$10,211,000 was recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income of
which the amount of approximately HK$5,620,000 arose
in the segment of yacht club and approximately
HK$4,591,000 arose in the segment of training
respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
recoverable amounts of the CGUs related to operation of
yacht club and training services have been determined
based on value in use calculations, which is arrived at on
the basis of valuation carried out by an independent
professional valuer. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on the most recent financial budgets
approved by the directors of the Company covering a
five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using an estimated weighted average
growth rate of 1%. The growth rate did not exceed the
long-term average growth rates for the business in which
the CGUs operate. The pre-tax discount rate used is
17.64% for the operations of yacht club and 14.17% for
training services respectively.

FE - 2019BRAEHREIEZBEE
HEHEE BERRELTER
e VYHEENMREZETAKE
ZEE - BREMM BRI MIE
AR TS 2 B 7 R IR X B 2019 B AR S
ERRBRERKBERRRANE
XA R TR AFEE -

EHit - AEEFEIREESBER
TEABMNLCERTIKESE -
HERE = P AP R I I D BB AR
WEEmEERAMmD B MR E E A
Uy @] 4 58 #944,378,0007%8 T K 49
44,473,000 7T - RérE 2 HE K &=
K ERBEEEA10,211,00075
JC » E P 495,620,000 JT 7K B #F
fE= FT > 30 494,591,000 78 JT 2K

BB -

RoB-—F+-_A=+—HIE
& RS AT R RIS S AR
ERREEEABMNMAIKESES
ERFEREEEmMETE  YhA
B BEGERMETHEMESL -
ZEFEFEAURAREREDIRE
FRERFHMASIHYKEE R
KIENREREEN - BEREFZ
REeEMmELRAFTMEFERE1%
Y SRRV EBBREE
EBMATETENRBAFEHER
I o R S AT K 4R I AR A
FrfE BT ARG IR K5 Bl 5 17.64%
¥ 14.17% °
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

19.

184

(b) (Continued)

(9]

The estimates would face a challenge due to the
Covid-19 pandemic, therefore management’s estimated
cash flows factor in possible cash flow scenarios.

The operating right was used in the Group’s operation of
a yacht club and provision of training service. During the
year ended 31 December 2021, the Group disposed of
these assets upon the disposal of subsidiaries disclosed in
note 42(b).

Amortisation of intangible assets of approximately HK$nil
(2021: HK$4,303,000) was charged to cost of sales and
approximately HK$6,359,000 (2021: HK$6,782,000) was
charged to administrative expenses for both continuing
and discontinued operations.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

18. BILEE (&)

(b)

(c)

(%)

B 2019 BB B RERE - L5
A EER DR - UL E IR B A Al e
MREREBR AT RERER
o

REERANASERLLEREH R
REEFIRE - BE2E-_FT=-—F
TZA=1t—BLFE XEER
FiFE42(b) WERH L EM B A RIR K
ELFEE °

BimPEAETRNTE (=2 =—
4 : 4,303,000/ 70) BT AEEK
R} #96,359,0008 (= F = —4F :
6,782,000 70) Bt A S B MR IE
ERTE 7ITIRER -

19. REFE DN TIMIRE

At 1 January ®n—H—H

Share of results of associates SaK(a) AN E

Share of other comprehensive loss DIRERE R R E M2 EEER
of associates

At 31 December R+=—A=+—8”

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#f€m&EBEER A A

2022 2021
—_=E__ —E=—
HK$"000 HK$'000
FET F&TT
295,495 317,524
(109,490) (12,345)
(50,020) (9,684)
135,985 295,495
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19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Note:

(@)

f 3 SO 265 e A B

19. REFEDNTINIRE (#)

B &E
Set out below are the associates of the Group as at 31 December 2022 (a) WTHEABREER "S- FR=_F=
and 2021. The associates as listed below have share capital consisting FH_A=T—HZEERA - TXEIH
solely of ordinary shares, which are held directly by the Group. BENANRAEATRRAK  BAKE
HERA
Country of Place of
Name incorporation business Ownership interest Principal activities
£ SEAR AR S B R S E BEERR TEEK
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
Advanced Radio Device Korea Korea 43% 43%  Research and development, manufacturing sales
Technologies, Inc. (“ARDT") and marketing of semiconductors for
communication and related equipment
#E B s - 8 HERTISEERARIEBRE
tEm
Tekmar, Inc. The United States of ~ USA - 37.76%  Research and development, manufacturing sales

America ("USA") of carrier grade wireless telecommunication

systems and components

EXFBERE E30 M RENHEETARRAIEREAZAR
([=E)) =
Yunnan International Holding Hong Kong Hong Kong 32% 32%  Investment holdings and trading
Group Limited (“Yunnan”)
ERRBRRNBRAR EE Eit REEBRNES

(=-:2)

ARDT, Tekmar, Inc. and Yunnan are private companies and there is no
quoted market price available for their shares. There are no contingent
liabilities relating to the Group’s interest in the associates.

The Group has fully impaired the interest in Tekmar, Inc. and ARDT in
prior years and did not have any unrecognised share of losses of
associates.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has disposed of its
entire interest in an associate, Tekmar, Inc. to an independent third party
at zero consideration.

All of the above associates are accounted for using equity method in the
consolidated financial statements.

#3907 B AR5 I & AR ARDT  Tekmar, Inc. &
THAMART  ERHOIETIHRE o 8
EARAAREEREE AR ZER I HABE -

BEFEAREBBLN Tekmar, Inc. &2 ARDT Z 1
wAEHB LR E - WA T ARERZ D (h
M/\j%?g

ﬁi:?::¢+*ﬂ*+—5¢¢§'$
S EEE S N E QR Tekmar, Inc. 22
a‘Wém%ﬁiﬁﬁfﬁ o

ERFARE R RDRBRERANGR S M
WA A
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19.

186

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19.

Summarised financial information for the
associates material to the Group

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of material associates, adjusted for any differences
in accounting policies, and reconciled to the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements:

Yunnan and its subsidiaries (“Yunnan Group")

REE NTINIRE (&)

HEEEBEACBHEQT ZUBE

TRINEZBE QR ZMBERGE -

EREHBRNEMEZFEHRABNAR
B A M HRRANEEESRK

ERRENBAR((Zrkesm])

As at 31 December R+=—A=+—8H
Current assets MBNEE

Current liabilities meaE
Non-current assets EMENE E
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE

Net assets BEFE

Group's share of net assets of Yunnan FRAEESLEREEEMN

Group for the year EEFE
Year ended 31 December HE+T_A=+—HILEFE
Revenue for the year REF W
Loss for the year FREEE
Other comprehensive loss for the year FAHMEEEER
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRNEEGERE

Group's share of total comprehensive FRAEBOGEEEEZH

loss of Yunnan Group for the year EiaEEE

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#f€m&EBEER A A

2022 2021
—E-= —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
554,401 960,499
(299,667) (310,608)
313,653 470,484
(143,433) (196,954)
424,954 923,421
135,985 295,495
(342,155) (38,577)
(156,312) (30,262)
(498,467) (68,839)
(159,510) (22,029)
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20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVOdI

f 3 SO 265 e A B

20. BAFPEFARMBEZEREZ
TRMEE

2022 2021

—s-= —E-—4F

Equity investments EERRAFETA HK$'000 HK$'000

designated at FVOC Hith2EmRSEWERIRE F#&x FHTT
Listed shares: WG

— Equity securities — Norway — RAES — BE 10,717 38,218

— Equity securities — the USA — BARES — EH 518 1,895

— Equity securities — Hong Kong —BRAESRE —BE 107,137 222,380

118,372 262,493

Unlisted shares FE LA 4,206 15,376

122,578 277,869

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at
FVOCI as the Group considers these investments to be strategic
in nature.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, unlisted securities which
quoted market price is not available of aggregated carrying
amount of approximately HK$4,206,000 (2021: HK$15,376,000)
are measured at fair value and determined by market approach
using backsolve method which are not based on observable
inputs.

The fair values of listed securities are determined on the basis
of their quoted market prices at the end of reporting period.

Changes in fair value of the above equity securities are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
within the financial assets at FVOCI reserve within equity. The
Group transfers amounts from FVOCI reserve to retained
earnings when the relevant equity securities are derecognised.

FRERRE TR HE NS E RIB AT
Bt ARMEERER  REEAEER
REEREBRBIEL -

RZEZZFR=ZF=_—F+=A=+—
B #H{E#4,206,008 (- = —
£ : 15,376,000 ) AT BARRME
MELETEEDUATFEAELRAE
AR A A B AR5 A (W IEF R A] B 2%
BABIB)ET °

MESHNAFERBRSHROTS

ERBRAESFNAFELSRNEMEE
Wt P ERL N D AR A FEGFAR
fEEK SN EREERKET R - KLE
EREERAEREK  ARERRAFE
AR EERENFEEERERER
Rl o
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20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVOCI (Continued) 20. ENFEFAHMEEREZ
TREE®)
Financial assets at FVOCI are denominated in the following EBEAFEFAEMEZERENESREE
currencies: LATRH| & MEEHE -
2022 2021
—E_— —E-—4F
HK$°000 HK$’000
THET FH&TT
NOK dollar A 10,717 38,218
US dollar ET 4,724 17,271
Hong Kong dollar BIT 107,137 222,380
122,578 277,869
21. INVENTORIES 21. &8

2022 2021
—E__F —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFHET FHTT
Finished goods FERK R 60,567 40,001
Others HAtb 183 202
60,750 40,203
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22. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 22. BRPYE

2022 2021
—E== —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBxT FET

Within normal operating cycle included ~ #E1E % 4B R EAAFIE

under current assets MmN EE = 319,572

The balance comprises: HRBEE
— Land cost — THIA AR = 67,363
— Construction cost — M LA - 234,390
— Capitalised interests — BAMEF B = 17,819
- 319,572

Expected to be completed and available ~ FEBEFR+ — @A RNTI X
for sale within 12 months A s = 319,572

The properties under development are all located in the PRC. BRAYEZINFHE o

23. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 23. ERIBEHEYME

2022 2021
—E-= T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Completed properties held for sale BRI ELEME 547,031 478,963
The completed properties held for sale are all located in the ExIHELEMEREMARTE -
PRC.
For the year ended 31 December 2022, write-down of BE_Z-_—F+-A=+—HItFE -
completed properties held for sale to net realisable value of EXTKFELEMEMBREATER
approximately HK$106,203,000 (2021: HK$172,694,000) was F{E %106,203,0008 (=T = —F :
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive 172,694,000/ 70) E R 4R & 2 H et &
income. TR o
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24. LOANS AND ADVANCES 24. EFRRBXN
2022 2021
—E=—= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Loans and advances ER R (a) 2,469,388 2,276,992
Margin loans receivables EHFRENR (b) 88,978 588,902
2,558,366 2,865,894
Less: Provision for impairment OB EEE (629,343) (375,743)
1,929,023 2,490,151
An analysis of the loans and advances and margin loans RBEHARERRBREERFRER
receivables (net of impairment), determined based on the time (1B mE) GRER R R D BARRE
to maturity of the loans and advances, as at the end of the ) ZDWEFIWT ¢

reporting period is as follows:

2022 2021
—E=E-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAT

To be due within: AT EARR 2 A -
Within 90 days or on demand 90 KA IZE K 1,255,529 1,404,904
91 days to 180 days 91 RE 180K 536,767 15,441
181 days to 1 year 181 K214 136,727 1,061,402
1 year to 2 years 1FE24F - 1,724
Over 2 years 2FME - 6,680

1,929,023 2,490,151
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. LOANS AND ADVANCES (Continued) 24. ERRBR (&)
An aging analysis of the gross amounts of loans and advances B mHE AR ERFRE SR AR
and margin loans receivables which had been past due based R 58 HA EI%(ZEE)JWIZHT :

on the number of past due days is as follows:

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Not past due 460 5 818,082 2,300,049
Within 30 days 30 KA - 6,012
31 days to 90 days 31 RE90K 11,566 367,503
91 days to 180 days 91 RE 180K 1,074,811 113,389
181 days to 1 year 181 RE1F 195,399 -
1 year to 2 years 1FE24 379,567 78,941
2 year to 5 years 2FESEF 78,941 =
2,558,366 2,865,894
Notes: Bt
(a) The gross amounts of loans and advances of approximately (a) B 3 A 3R 44 58 49783,466,00078 L ( = &
HK$783,466,000 (2021: HK$174,785,000) are secured by charges over — —4F : 174,785,000 70) R EE R AR ZE
the properties and listed securities of the borrowers, and/or backed by &J:T'E BAEEIT o K SHERAER R
guarantee. Credit limits are set for borrowers based on the quality of BRANKELREENERANTEE S
collateral held and the financial background of the borrowers. There is no HIERARTEERSE - MM ERS AR -
significant changes in the quality of those collaterals as a result of ZEEARNERTERNERBNERRBR
deterioration or changes in the collateral policies of the entity during both Bl EEimLRERES -

reporting periods.

The loans and advances are interest bearing at fixed rates, ranging from ERRBTIEN T 5% E18% (T ——4F :
5% to 18% (2021: 8% to 18%) per annum. 8%:|: 18% ) M EE FFIEE B ©
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24. LOANS AND ADVANCES (Continued)

4. €5

5E-TNE )

Notes: (Continued) FMisE - (&)
(b) The credit facility limits granted to margin clients are determined by the (b) BRFHTREFNEERE FIRBBAERE
discounted market value of the collateral securities accepted by the FH KRB A MBI TREES T -
Group.
The loans to margin clients are secured by the underlying pledged KFHREFPFHNES EH*HEETETEF BRI
securities and are interest bearing at fixed rates, ranging from 5.6% to };z N F5.6%Z18% T —F:29%%
18% (2021: 2.9% to 18%) per annum. The Group maintains a list of 18%)9‘3.;5$ﬂ QJFE o NEBEBE —HIK
approved stocks for margin lending at a specified loan to collateral ratio. RARMEE  WERBFEFERRERL RS
Any excess in the lending ratio will trigger a margin call and the clients %ﬁ)?é{a oo (I HBEENE L R B3 TT
have to make good the shortfall. BB - B VEBRHEER -
As at 31 December 2022, margin loan receivables were secured by EA,Z::iJr:F] =+—H8 BKHEE
securities pledged by the clients to the Group as collateral with RNERRFERTAEEEABERZE
undiscounted market value of approximately HK$284,470,000 (2021: FHER - RBFETERX284,470,0008 T (=
HK$3,661,111,000). There is no significant change in the quality of those T——4 :3,661,111,000/87T) - RMEHRS
collaterals as a result of deterioration or changes in the collateral policies B ZESEASNE 2T EREEAEE
of the entity during both reporting periods. mEREB S ESMERERES -
(a] Loans and advances and margin loans receivables are denominated in the () ERRSZ N EKRTFRERTIRATEE T
following currencies: g :
2022 2021
—E_—F —ZT——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHT
US dollar 7T 187 12,635
Hong Kong dollar BT 820,767 1,289,030
RMB AR 1,737,412 1,564,229
2,558,366 2,865,894
(d) Movements on the provision for impairment of loans and advances and (d) & REERFREFREREZS N
margin loans receivables are as follows: —F 3
HK$'000
FAT
At 1 January 2021 W-ZE-——F—A—H 5,074
Provision for impairment DERIEEEL] 370,669
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 KRB —F+-_A=+—HBk=FT==§—HF—H 375,743
Provision for impairment RAEREE 292,567
Written off s (38,967)
At 31 December 2022 RZB_=—F+=-A=+—H 629,343
(e)  There was bad debts written off on loans and advances of HK$92,364,000 (e) HREEBRRERRBRNREREHRE

192

(2021: Nil) due to outstanding balance deemed as irrecoverable in the
future by management. The receivables are still subject to enforcement
activity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES

f 3 SO 265 e A B

25. B E 5 R

Trade receivables FENE ZBRFK
Less: Provision for impairment OB

Trade receivables — net

At 1 January 2021, trade receivables from contracts with
customers amounted to approximately HK$384,856,000.

For customers of Automation, a credit period ranging from 30
days to 60 days (2021: 30 days to 60 days) after acceptance is
generally granted with exception of some trade customers
where the credit period of 12 to 18 months (2021: 12 to 18
months) are granted. For customers of Property Investment and
Development, the balances are due upon issuance of invoices
or within 2 days (2021: upon issuance of invoices or within 2
days). The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

The operations in yacht club, training services and trading of
commodities were discontinued during the year ended 31
December 2021.

The ageing analysis of gross trade receivables based on invoice
date are as follows:

FEUE BRRK —

2022 2021
—E== —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBxT FET
157,358 162,534
(3,137) (2,948)
154,221 159,586

R-ZEBE-_—F—FH—H RATFAAHN
JE U E 585 74 5 384,856,000 75 JT ©

HREBBENES  BEEEXENER
HA30OREOR(ZZE=—F :30KE
60K) BEETESEENEZRAHAE125
18EA(ZE_—%F: 12E18f@A) - &
RYERENBERNRE @ RSN ET
BERI2RAAN(ZE—F: HARE
Bk 2 KA BH - REBEWEHZEL
B3 A TR o

BE—_E-—F+-A=+—HIEE -
e BIIREERERE S EKE S
JJ:O

JEHSZT’Z%EE NABFEEN B ZE AR
TR

0 to 30 days 0z230H
31 to 60 days 31260 H
61 to 90 days 61290H
91 to 120 days 91&120H
Over 120 days 120 HBA E

2022 2021
—E-= T4
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FH&xT FHIT
60,467 68,076
25,623 17,940
17,972 18,135
12,468 11,276
40,828 47,107
157,358 162,534
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25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Trade receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

25. EWEZERF (&)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o V5 e A B

FEWE 5 BRRTIIRIA T EHEHE

Us dollar

Hong Kong dollar
RMB

Euro (“EUR")
Japanese Yen (“JPY")

Singapore dollar (“SGP”)

T

BT

ARE

BT ([&])
HE(RE]D
#onsgT (T#ix])

Movements on the provision for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows:

2022 2021
—E_— e
HK$°000 HK$'000
TFHET FH&T
65,897 67,099
28,299 39,778
59,105 26,527
999 1,870
3,055 27,255
3 5
157,358 162,534

FEWE 5 BRSO E R B Z B T

2022
—E-—

HK$'000

TET

At 1 January

Provision for impairment
Disposal of subsidiaries
Distribution in specie
Written-off

Exchange realignment

At 31 December

R—A—H
RER R
& 2 A
ENnik

bEE 5 B

R+=-—A=+—8”

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#f€m&EBEER A A

2021
—E-—1F
HK$'000
FAET

3,752
1,151
(1,284)
(697)

(6)
32

3,137

2,948




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES

(a) Contract assets

f 3 SO 265 e A B

26. EHNEEREGHNERE

Contract assets arising from: EHNEERE :
Sale of goods HEEm

Less: Provision for impairment

Notes:

B R ERE A

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract
assets are as follows:

Contract assets arising from sales of goods are initially recognised
for revenue earned from the sale of automated production related
equipment as the receipt of consideration is conditional on
successful completion of product certification by the technicians.
Upon completion of the product certification and when the rights
to consideration become unconditional, the amounts recognised
as contract assets are reclassified to trade receivables.

The Group's credit terms and credit policy with customers are
disclosed in notes 25 and 46.1(b) to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

() EHEE

2022 2021

—=E-— —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000

TExT FET

20,618 22,540
(103) (113)

20,515 22,427

P 3E -

0] TEANEESEN RN FKERMN

=

EmHEELENANEERVIAHE
BB A ER R AP ES A s R
7 ARRENRRBURREMAR
PRINTEPKEE iR AR o FE M aRaE STk IR -
EREERNARGHE  BRARAH
BEMSBREN D BERBIE SR

e
A °

AEEEAAT P HNEEFERK
FEEE D BIRLRE M5 HRE D BIK
25K 46.1(b) PR E -
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26. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 26. BRNEEREGHNEE®
LIABILITIES (Continued)
(a) Contract assets (Continued) (a) BREEE)
Notes: (Continued) MisE : (&)
(i) The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets (ii) AREERE S EHENTEHRRFELIAT

are as follows:

2022 2021
—E=-= —T-—fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year —F R 20,515 22,427
(i)~ Movements on the provision for impairment of contract assets are @iy AHNBEREZBEENEHNT
as follows:
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 January 2021 RZT=_—F—HF—H 4,140
Reversal of impairment B 61)
Distribution in specie BEYHIK (4,124)
Exchange realignment ME 3, R B 158
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 R=F=—F+=A=1+—HBK
—ZT__%—H—H 113
Reversal of impairment BEREME (10)
At 31 December 2022 WZE=——F+=-A=+—H 103
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26. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 26. EHNEEREGHNER®
LIABILITIES (continued)
(b) Contract liabilities (b) EHEE
2022 2021
=== —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T FHETT
Contract liabilities from customers REEZEFWEYNABELEH
arising from: UT&IE :
Sale of goods HEE M 23,234 12,100
Sales of properties VISEHE 46 40,557
23,280 52,657

The Group receives payments from customers based on
billing schedule as established in contracts.

Significant changes in contract liabilities were as follows:

The significant changes in contract liabilities as at 31
December 2022 are related to decrease in billing in
advance of sales of properties net of the impact on
revenue recognised related to those contract liabilities.

The following table shows the revenue recognised for the
year related to carried-forward contract liabilities:

AR BRI A& 497 L H SRR Al
LR R

BHMABNEAZEZINT

R=ZF-_—_F+-A=+t—H &
HWEENERBLLTTANBEYE
(MEBRZFE OB ERER A WS
XEE)NERRD

Revenue recognised during the year
that was included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the
year

= n\’]gLa?

FARRH ST AFH

TRER B RIAFEE N R
mHEAESNBERR

2022 2021
—=E-— —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHTT

(50,563) (918,531)
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27. LEASES 27. HE
(a) Lease liabilities (a) HEE®E
The following table shows the remaining contractual TREATREERE R HEHARE
maturities of the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the EABHNFRIBRSOTIER -

current reporting period:

Total minimum Present value of minimum
lease payments lease payments
RIEHENTRALHE BREHENRZRE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-—F = —E_— —E-—1F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
TET FHET TEx FHET
Within one year —FR 2,561 14,208 2,378 11,129
Later than one year and not ~ BR—F B NER
later than five years HF 2,086 47,367 1,962 43,009
4,647 61,575 4,340 54,138
Less: total future interest B RRFBRZ
expenses Rk (307) (7,437)
Present value of lease HEEERE
liabilities 4,340 54,138

The present value of future  RRAEFHAHRE
lease payments are DITET -
analysed as follows:

Current liabilities nEaE 2,378 11,129
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 1,962 43,009
4,340 54,138
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27. LEASES (Continued)

(b) The Group as lessor

(i)

(ii)

Operating lease

27. HE (#)

(b) AEEEHHEA

The Group’s investment properties are leased to a
number of tenants for varying terms. The future
minimum lease payments receivable under non-
cancellable operating leases of the Group were as

follows:

(i)

Within one year

Later than one year and not later
than two years

Later than two years and not later
than three years

Later than three years and not later
than four years

Later than four years and not later
than five years

More than five years

Finance lease

—FR
BER—FBATERME

S

ERAELTEN=4F
BN =B TRRIE
BRI B TRRASF

FELAE

The Group leases machineries to its customers.
These leases are classified as finance leases and
have remaining lease terms of 1 year to 3 years
(2021: 1 year to 3 years). The customers shall
purchase or have an option to purchase the leased
machineries at the end of lease terms of the finance

lease.

REBEWREMERAT R
REERFZHEE - AEER
AT RUH A A8 2 TH B R L) R 2R

SERERNKAT
2022 2021
—=E-— —E-—F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET FET
80,748 130,273
60,381 96,433
47,470 77,923
40,449 54,232
38,845 46,494
135,178 218,598
403,071 623,953

(i) HEHE

Finance lease receivables
— Non-current portion
— Current portion

BEMEERYGRIA
— JERE D

— mEED

AEEMERP HBEKES - %

FHERDBAMENE

St

|

HREEMRIFEIF(ZF
——F1FE3F) BPE
EREHENHERREESR

SRR EHERMES o
2022 2021
—=-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
2,866 18,310
16,610 30,282
19,476 48,592
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27. LEASES (Continued)
(b) The Group as lessor (Continued)

(ii) Finance lease (Continued)

27. HE (#)

The total future minimum lease receivables under
finance leases and their present values were as

(b) ZA&EEERHBEAE)

(i) MEHE (&)

BMEME THARRFEHRERE
Wk kAR ENT

follows:
Minimum Present value of minimum
lease receivables lease receivables
RIEHEEENRK RIEEEENSRZERE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-—= —E__ T —F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TExT FET
Within one year —FR 17,611 33,603 16,610 30,282
Later than one year BR—FHTE
and not later than GRS
two years 2,158 17,475 2,011 16,587
Later than two years BRMFEETE
and not later than R=%F
three years 886 1,754 855 1,723
20,655 52,832 19,476 48,592
Unearned finance REVSF A UA
income (1,179) (4,240)
Total net finance lease  JFRIETE
receivables FEW R 4B 58 19,476 48,592
Portion classified as DEERE
current assets BEMNI D (16,610) (30,282)
Non-current portion JEmEE 2,866 18,310
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28. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 28. AIMIE HERHMEWKR
RECEIVABLES i |
2022 2021
—ET_— —=EFE -

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B FHxT FHETT
Consideration receivables R E (a = 401
Prepayments and other deposits BN R R EAMAE S (b) 17,258 74,670
Interest receivable JEULFI B 24,834 3,842
Value-added and other tax recoverable — 32{& 7% [ H fb 7] iR B 51 18 13,350 20,327
Other receivables from related parties — E-fth fE Uk GBS 75 & 5178 48(b) 4,059 647
Other receivables H b e WA 30,947 88,695
90,448 188,582

Less: Non-current portion B IERBE S (3.440) (9,191)
Current portion mENED S 87,008 179,391

The directors consider the balances of prepayments, deposits
and other receivables are recoverable by reference to the
nature of these balances and credit history of counterparties
where applicable.

Notes:

(@) As at 31 December 2021, consideration receivables represented the
balance of the proceeds in connection with the disposal of financial assets
at FVOCI of approximately HK$401,000 in Hong Kong.

(b) As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the balances of prepayments and
other deposits substantially represented prepayments made to the
contractors of property development and investment projects of the
Group.

RERBBENA - Be MEMBRUKIALS
HROEERHFINEECER(MER)

& BEERRAREZES

BT -

°©
R

(@ RZTEZ—F+=ZA=+—8" ERAEHR
HBHERAFEFALMEARENETES
A& E#I401,00078 T B TS SUIBEREE -

b) RB_—_FRZF_—F+_A=+—81"
BNFREREMRENBBETEREAAEE
MEHRRBREREND BEX MK

I8 o
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28. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a] Movement on the provision for impairment of deposits and other
receivables are as follows:

28. ENRE - RERE MBI

I8 (%)
Wi : (48)

(0 HeRECRKFERERENZEHNT

2022 2021

B —E-—F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FExT FHT

At 1 January w—HA—H 8,928 40,151
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment BB (B[R, B (8,925) 22,560
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AT - (45,704)
Distribution in specie Bk = (9,607)
Exchange realignment b 5, A8 3) 1,528

At 31 December R+=—A=+—H — 8,928

29. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 9. RATEFABRNERMEE
2022 2021

—E-= —E-—F

HK$’'000 HK$'000

THET FAET

Listed securities: LFhES

— Equity securities — Hong Kong — RAFESH — BB 23,368 65,088
Debt investments at FVTPL BAFEGFABENERRE 124,367 261,412
147,735 326,500

The fair value of the listed securities are based on their current
bid prices in an active market.

As at 31 December 2022, no financial assets at FVTPL have
been pledged as securities for the Group’s other borrowings
(Note 33) (2021: HK$120,992,000 have been pledged as
securities for the Group's other borrowings).
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29. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continued) 29. RAFEFTABRHNEMEE
(&)
Financial assets at FVTPL are denominated in the following BEAFEFABENESREETZEUT
currencies: EEEH(E -

2022 2021
—E-= —E %
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
US dollar ETT 124,367 248,840
Hong Kong dollar ABIT 23,368 77,660
147,735 326,500

30.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, PLEDGED  30.
BANK DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED DEPOSITS
AND CLIENT TRUST BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand

Cash at banks

Short-term bank deposits with origina
maturity less than three months

Cash and cash equivalents

Pledged bank deposits and restricted
deposits

Client trust bank balances

FHAE

RITHRE

REIH A DR =& A e 8
RITRS

ReRBSEED

EEMIRITEREZ R HIFK

BPEFERITRER

BeRRESEY SHEAR
TEX XRFFREREFE

ERITEER
2022 2021
—E=-= T4
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
113 1,330
449,047 728,746
37,182 -
486,342 730,076
21,053 33,624
150,024 195,404
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30.

204

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED DEPOSITS
AND CLIENT TRUST BANK BALANCES
(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits, restricted
deposits and client trust bank balances are denominated in the
following currencies:

30 RERFSEEFEY - cEFR
TEX ZRFFRREFE

FLiR1T&E R ()

R MREEFEY  BERRTER X
R FRRELERRITERIIZAT

RMB AR
US dollar ETT
Hong Kong dollar BIT
Others EAth

The conversion of RMB into foreign currencies and remittance
of RMB out of bank balances in the PRC are subject to the rules
and regulations of the foreign exchange control promulgated
by the government of China.

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#f€m&EBEER A A

BHEHE -
2022 2021
—E-= B —4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FHET
237,583 283,535
51,325 118,969
331,007 501,360
37,504 55,240
657,419 959,104
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, PLEDGED

BANK DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED DEPOSITS
AND CLIENT TRUST BANK BALANCES
(Continued)

The Group maintains trust and segregated accounts of
approximately HK$150,024,000 (2021: HK$195,404,000) with
authorised financial institutions to hold clients’ deposits arising
from normal business transactions. The Group has classified in
the consolidated statement of financial position the clients’
deposits as client trust bank balances in the current assets
section and recognised the corresponding trade payables to the
respective clients in the current liabilities section, on the
grounds that the Group is liable for any misappropriation of
the respective clients’ deposits as stipulated under the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"). The Group is
not allowed to use the clients’ monies to settle its own
obligations under the SFO. As such, these monies are not
included in cash and cash equivalents of the Group for cash
flow purposes in the consolidated statement of cash flows.

The Group'’s pledged bank deposits represented deposits of
HK$nil have been pledged as securities for bank borrowings
granted to the Group (Note 33) (2021: approximately
HK$6,000,000 have been pledged as securities for bank
borrowings granted to the Group).

The Group’s restricted deposits represented the guarantee
deposits of approximately HK$21,053,000 (2021:
HK$27,624,000) for construction of properties. In accordance
with certain PRC regulations, property development companies
of the Group are required to place the proceeds received from
pre-sale of properties as guarantee deposits for constructions
of properties. The deposits can only be used to pay for relevant
property development projects when approval from the PRC
State-Owned Land and Resource Bureau is obtained. The
restriction will be released according to the completion stage of
the related pre-sold properties.

f 3 SO 265 e A B

30 RERBTEHEEY  SHEAR

TER ZRHEIEFEREREFRE
FLiR1T&E R ()

REBRLCEETS#HBERETRRE
B BR P 150,024,000 T (T = — 4 :
#7195,404,00087T) « AERFEF RN IE
BEBRXGHRMEEZTR - AEBERE
REMBRARFEREEFRY AR
BEDIDTNELELRITES  LER
BEBEBOEREERENESIRERTE
BE - AAREEEES KBS GKRGI([&
SRBE®RGDEE AEBEAHEA
ERFHEZFNBERLAS - AEETEER
BENRIBREITERES B E KD
TEEE - Al - BERETREELS
BeREXPARREREBNMAE
BReMRSEEY -

AEESHBRITERBEGFR) AT
EFEBIEAR TFTAEEMNRITEED
ER(MEE33) (=2 =—4F : 496,000,000
BILE FERBIEAR FTASEBMIRITE
BEMER -

AEENZRHGFERBEEMENRE
R & #921,053,0008 T(—ZF = — & :
27,624,000 7T) © BIFH THBER -
AEENYEZRARAGTHIEEME
SRR - tERERYERNERER - %
GRETRESYHEEE T HhEREE
BHERARI N BB EERIAR - %
REERIEAEREWENRTREET
LARRRR o
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31.

206

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

31.

Trade payables BT E SRR
Bills payables ENERE

The ageing analysis of trade and bills payables based on invoice
date is as follows:

ERESRIARESERE
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBxT FHET
500,374 603,744
10,266 28,874
510,640 632,618

REZZEHHENEZERIARENRE
MRREC DMTEAT

0 to 30 days 0z230H

31 to 60 days 31260H
61 to 90 days 61Z90H
91 to 120 days 91&120H
Over 120 days 120 B E

The average credit period of trade payables ranged from 30
days to 60 days (2021: 30 days to 60 days) for suppliers of
Automation; ranged from 1 day to 2 days (2021: 1 day to 2
days) after the trade date where the transactions are executed
in relation to provision of securities brokerage services; and
ranged from 7 days to 30 days (2021: 7 days to 30 days) in
relation to Property Investment and Development.

The operations in trading of commodities and home appliances
were discontinued during the year ended 31 December 2021.

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#f€m&EBEER A A

2022 2021
—F=-= T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHIT
459,025 544,859
3,883 27,505
8,011 7,260
3,851 4,747
35,870 48,247
510,640 632,618

BELHEENENBESERTEHEER
HNF30BE60B(=—ZE=-—4 :30H
£60H)  RATRHEBHFLLRBHR
Sms - ANTFRSHHE%BIBZE2H(Z
T-—%F:1HZE28): ERAPERER
ERMmMS  ANTF7BE308 (=T =—
#:7HE30H) -

BE_T_—FF+-A=t—HILFE"
ARESRRBEBSEBEEL



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o V5 e A B

31. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (Continued) 31. ERESRARESER @
The carrying amounts of the trade and bills payables are ENESERALENEBENREMETDE
denominated in the following currencies: INTE®EE

2022 2021
—=—-= —E -
HK$’'000 HK$'000
F#&T FHT
RMB AR 236,793 294,634
US dollar ETT 103,554 92,280
Hong Kong dollar BIT 157,518 215,514
EUR BT 2,059 1
JPY H 10,693 30,186
Others HAth 23 3
510,640 632,618
32. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 32. EEtEARHEMENRIE
2022 2021
—E__F -
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
B aE F#&x FHIT
Accrued operating expenses FEETEE S H 37,588 81,825
Other tax payables HAth fE(IFIIR 8,421 14,288
Deposits received BliEe 25,808 36,121
Payables for construction costs FE SRR AR 238,814 163,315
Interest payables FERTFILE 56,504 8,385
Other payables to a non-controlling  EL b~ FEFE AR A 25 AY
interest PERE] (b) 35,824 =
Other payables to related parties H b e BB 5 MO FOB (b), 48(b) 1,383 5,492
Provisions and other payables R & B Ath FE AN FRIE 83,107 84,862
487,449 394,288
Less: Non-current portion B IERENE (10,133) (17,906)
Current portion TENER S 477,316 376,382
Notes: B aE -
(a) As at 31 December 2022, approximately 78% (2021: 72%) of the (a) RIE-_—F+-_A=1+—H H78% (==
carrying amounts of accruals and other payables are denominated in Z—5F : 72%) FEETE A R LA IR FUE R BR
RMB, the remaining are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollar. HEAARBEE - mERAEZ BT
fg °
(b)  Other payables to a non-controlling interest and related parties are (b)y  HArpEIEERER R BT 2 RIERER
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. 1 BB RIZERERE -
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33.

208

BORROWINGS 33. f&&
2022 2021
—E-C—F T
Current Non-current Current  Non-current
E ¥R ik FERE
Notes HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt sE FTHExT TR FHET FHET
Secured BHEA
Obligation under repurchase  [B18& 175518 T A9
agreements HRHE (a) - - 338,063 =
Bank loans IRITE (b) 966,158 - 1,137,671 =
Margin loan HFREX - = 31,649 =
Trust receipts loans SR E R 8,768 - 14,768 =
Total secured borrowings BiRFEERRE (d), (e) 974,926 - 1,522,151 -
Unsecured Fugig
Corporate bonds EESH () 316,200 24,800 356,000 =
Bank loans IRITEK (b) - = 56,263 =
Other loans HEMER 92,538 - 71,929 =
Total unsecured borrowings &K IF (S E B %E 408,738 24,800 484,192 =
Total borrowings BEHARE 1,383,664 24,800 2,006,343 =

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#f€m&EBEER A A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. BORROWINGS (Continued)

The Group’s borrowings at the end of the reporting period

were repayable as follows:

f 3 SO 265 e A B

33. BE (%)

AEBRANBESHRNEERIZAT
EE

Bank borrowings

Other borrowings

Within one year or on —FRIREK
demand
More than one year, but not

HiB—F - EREB

exceeding two years RES
More than two years, but not 2B F {8 K BB
exceeding five years hF

RITEE HifEE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—=:=-= TE T —F [l —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TExT FET
974,926 1,208,702 408,738 797,641
- - 24,800 -
974,926 1,208,702 433,538 797,641

As at 31 December 2022, the effective interest rates of bank
and other borrowings ranged from 4.3% to 8.0% (2021:

ranged from 1.4% to 8.0%) per annum.

R-B-__H+_A=+—H RITEH

L B ) B R R

NF43%E80% (=

T — 4 .-.Eu?'] 4% Z8.0%) °

Notes:

(a)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group has entered
into repurchase agreements whereby listed securities of the Group’s
margin clients are sold to third parties with a concurrent agreement to
repurchase the securities at a specified date.

As at 31 December 2022, bank loans of approximately HK$890,639,000
(2021: HK$1,011,930,000) included in current liabilities are not scheduled
to repay within one year. They are classified as current liabilities as the
related loan agreements contain a clause that provides the lenders with an
unconditional right to demand repayment at any time at its own discretion.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, certain covenants of
borrowings were breached. The breach of the covenants constituted
events of default under the loan agreements, which caused the relevant
borrowings becoming immediately repayable.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has not breached any of the
covenants of the banking facilities.

BT -

(a) BE-_Z-_—FR-_T-_—F+=-—A=1+—
BIEFE - "EBTZEBERE - Bt - A%
BEFREFPZLMHE %Hj’i%% 75 »E
) FRF 127 5 A5 TE A °E A A 01 B 38

(b) R=ZZF-_=—F+=-A=+—H ' 4890,639,000
BITHRITER(ZZ=—4 : 1,011,930,000
;%ﬁ):ﬂkb.@jﬁfi BB —FRE

cWEDNNERTBARE  EHBERRD
%@mﬁﬁt%iﬁ%)\ﬁﬁﬂ*#%ﬂwﬁhw RTE
DB AER -

ﬁ?:?::¢+:ﬂz+*ﬁiig'a
BERETHEELDL ERELLBEHKER
BETHENEM  SEUEMEEARRER

RZZBEZ_—F+_A=+—H8 AEEIE
BREFERTTRVE 25 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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33. BORROWINGS (Continued)

210

Notes: (Continued)

()

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had corporate bonds denominated
in Hong Kong dollar with an aggregated amount of approximately
HK$341,000,000 (2021: HK$356,000,000) to several parties with coupon
rates ranged from 7.0% to 8.0% (2021: 7.0% to 8.0%) per annum and
repayable within 1 to 2 years (2021: 1 year) from the respective issue
dates according to the repayment schedule agreed between the Group
and the bondholders.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s bank borrowings of approximately
HK$974,926,000 were secured by:

(i) guarantee provided by the Company, certain of its subsidiaries
and related parties and shareholder of the Company;

(ii) the Group's property, plant and equipment (Note 16); and

(iii)

the Group's investment properties (Note 17).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s bank borrowings of approximately
HK$1,152,439,000 were secured by:

(i) guarantee provided by the Company, certain of its subsidiaries
and related parties and shareholder of the Company;

(ii) the Group's property, plant and equipment (Note 16);

(iii)

the Group's investment properties (Note 17);

(iv)

collateral of the Group’s margin clients amounted to
approximately HK$96,750,000; and

(v) the Group's pledged bank deposits (Note 30).

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#f€m&EBEER A A

33. BE (&)

BT -

()

(%)

R-ZTB-_—F+-_A=+—H A&EEHE
LA TTEHER A RIE S & $£49341,000,000 7
JL(=Z = —4 : 356,000,000/8 7T) BT T &
F75 BEFEEEFMENT7.0%ZE8.0% (=
T-—F:70%%E80%)  WiREAERE
BHEEARTHNERBBEXROMABETE
H#E1Z2F (ZE-—F: 15F)NEE -

RZZE-_—F+-_A=+—8 AEEMHRE
15 E#49974,926,000 BT A N ZEIEE A ¢

@) AR HETHEBARRB@E
VAR AR A AIBRSR AR RV HEAR

(i) AEENDE- BEEREHE
16) i}

@iy  AEEBBREDEHFE17)

RZZBE-_—F+-_A=+—H AEEHRE
1TEE#1,152,439,000/8 T A N ZIBIEIK R

0] ARE - HETHWEAR R
AR AR AR AR

(i) AEEBOYDE BERZEHF
16) :

(i)  AEEONREWECFEE17)

v AEBFREFPHNERRY
96,750,000/ 7T : K

v  AEESBEMRITFR(HFE30)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o V5 e A B

33. BORROWINGS (Continued) 33. BE (%)
Notes: (Continued) st - ()
(e)  Asat 31 December 2022, no other borrowings were secured. () M-TE_—F+_A=+—H HEAME
BEHRF
As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s other borrowings of approximately REZTE=Z—F+=-A=+—0 A5EEHEM
HK$367,712,000 were secured by: BB #367,712,000 BT A LA T S BRI
(i) guarantee provided by related parties, subsidiaries and shareholder (i) AR - B AR &AM
of the Company; R
(i) financial assets at FVTPL (Note 29); (i) HRATFEFABZOSHEE (M
29) ;
(i) collateral of the Group’s margin clients amounted to iy AEEBHHAFEZEFPERRLD
approximately HK$720,075,000. 720,075,000 7T °
The Group's borrowings at the end of the reporting period are REBRARERRNEFTIZATEE
denominated in the following currencies: FHE
2022 2021
—=E—= T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FH&TT
US dollar E - 46,807
Hong Kong dollar BT 672,215 1,158,127
RMB AR 736,249 801,409
1,408,464 2,006,343
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34. DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the relate to the same fiscal
authority. The following balances, determined after appropriate

34, EZERIE

BOA 7] 52 B 1T B0 #E N LA B HR A IR
BEERHINAHERE - ARFELHA
B[R - BREEERE - BARLERIBEE
?ﬁﬁLLﬁIEE% AN R T a1

offsetting, are shown in the consolidated statement of financial HIRETE - RNEFRa M BRI -
position:
2021
—E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Deferred tax assets LLEEEIE’QE 20,138 13,010
Deferred tax liabilities BIEFRIBA & (221,044) (234,117)
The net movements on the deferred tax liabilities/(assets) are as BEREFIEAE(BE)MEETFENT -
follows:
Unrealised profts
in finandal assets
Accelerated tax depreciation ~ Unrealised (profits)losses in at fair value through Intangible assets
allowance inventories of properties Tax loss Fair value gains/(losses) profit or loss identified in acquisition Total
b SUELT EATEABEN
NERENERE ()58 ] AVERE/ (58) SHEEZARRER IBRARNErEE
02 01 02 0 02 01 0 22 201 00 01 022 0
C2oCF Bl CE-CF Eebaidl CE-CF ebald “Eo-f Pttt -7 -7 Pt T Wbt -T--f
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tn T Thn Thn TR T Thn TR T Tn Thr Thn Thn
At 1 January #-A-1 26,062 16434 (13009) 320082 (9863) 78 195802 646,582 19,108 34563 3007 4118 1107 1023955
Charged(cedied) tothe 4B E/(A)ER
profitor loss 8,160 (450) (31,186) (67466) 4419 2039 6,261 (9579) 8n (15455) (1,041) (111 (12459) %6,100)
Diposalof subsidiaries i ENBAA
(Note 42) (Ka) - - - 16,79 - - (66,027) - - - - - (9229
Distibution n specie N7k
(Note 43) (it a) - (830) 291168) - - (33922 - - - = (685,520
Curtency tangition EHAEER
dfference (2.107) 508 484 8745 - - (10480) 18748 - - - - (7,746) 28,001
At 31 December MZA=1-A 115 26,062 (39,354) (13,009) (5.384) (9863 191583 195,802 19,980 19,108 1,966 3007 200,906 01107

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards to
the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through
future taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise
deferred tax assets in respect of losses amounting to
approximately HK$396,739,000 (2021: HK$350,923,000) that
can be carried forward against future taxable income due to
uncertainty of availability of future taxable income. Except for tax
losses of approximately HK$59,658,000 (2021: HK$12,964,000)
that will be expired in 5 years, the remaining tax losses do not
have expiry date.

212
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fisi AT BE 35 38 A 7K FE 2R Bt i FI B2 3R 48
A A EEHREERRERELT
HIEEE BHRARAUSERMBAT
ETEERZ AUk ASE Y&
&5 18 #9396,739,000/8 L ( = F — — 4 :
350,923,000 70) RELERIBEE -
2B TR TE A B 1] A8 B R R FEER B U
gﬁﬁ W 5 78 8518 49 59,658,000 78 7T ( —
T — —4F 12,964,000 7T ) R AFERN
ilJEﬂ&l\ - RERIBBELEREA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f 3 SO 265 e A B

34. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 34, EZERIE &)
As at 31 December 2022, the Group has deductible temporary RZE_—F+ZA=+—H0 ~&EBEH
difference of approximately HK$551,876,000 (2021: ERNBR  BREFEREZ  240EF
HK$455,102,000) relating to ECLs provision of loans and E - BN EIEN A EE R BB E
advances, trade receivables, contract assets, other receivables FiEAFEFAEMEERRZNAFE
and the fair value loss on FVOCI. No deferred tax asset has 548 HY A] H1 R, BT B Z= 58 494 551,876,000
been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary BT (ZE = —4% : 455,102,000 87T ) °
difference as it is not probable that taxable profit will be R K] B2 B AR FE AR A s I A VE R 8
available against which the deductible temporary differences AR ERERE - N ERZE AR
can be utilised. RERBRELEHIBEEE °
Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, REFPBRBEEEARER B2 \F—
withholding tax is imposed at 10% on dividends declared to A—HE - st B E A~ aHREE A E R
foreign investors in respect of profit earned by PRC subsidiaries INEIREE T H R IR B 10% ) TERR
from 1 January 2008 onward. At the end of the reporting oo RIEHR - ERBERRERIENS
period, the aggregate amount of temporary differences B B B8 A R A R o5 B Ui & AR B ) BT R
associated with undistributed earnings of PRC subsidiaries for =B B E X R534,061,0008 (= F
which deferred tax have not been recognised is approximately — —%F : 681,541,000/ 7T ) - HRAE
HK$534,061,000 (2021: HK$681,541,000). No liability has Eae st EiF 2 R8O MR - BiZ
been recognised in respect of these differences because the EERTNRANRRRAEISHED -
Group is in a position to control the timing of reversal of the I fEpz S E 2 ERAE o
temporary differences and it is probable that such differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
SHARE CAPITAL 35. g4
Number of Share
shares capital
REEE [N
(thousand) HK$'000
(Fh&) FAT
Authorised: EIE
Ordinary share of HK$0.10 each SREEE0.10 8 T E R
At beginning of year and end of year REI RFER 500,000,000 50,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EERTRHE:
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, RZ=ZZT—_—F—H—H -
1 January 2022 and —E-—%+-A=+—H8"
31 December 2022 —EoF—HA—HAK
T _F+_-HA=+—H 31,387,512 3,138,751
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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36. RESERVES

214

Details of the movements of the Group’s reserves are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial
statements.

(a)

Merger reserve represents (i) the difference between the
share capital of the Company and the combined share
capital of the subsidiaries (after eliminating intra-group
investments and share capital) acquired by the Company
pursuant to the Group reorganisation in 2009 and (ii)
impact on business combination under common control.

Capital reserve of the Group represents the net assets
attributable to non-controlling shareholders which were
acquired pursuant to the Group reorganisation in 2009,
and is treated as a deemed contribution from equity
holders and the release of share-based compensation
reserve upon the incentive shares under share incentive
scheme approved and adopted by the Group in 2008.

The PRC laws and regulations require companies
registered in the PRC to provide for certain statutory
reserves, which are to be appropriated from the net profit
(after offsetting accumulated losses from prior years) as
reported in their respective statutory financial statements,
before profit distributions to equity holder. All statutory
reserves are created for specific purposes. The PRC
company is required to appropriate 10% of statutory net
profits to statutory reserve, upon distribution of its post-
tax profits of the current year. A company may
discontinue the contribution when the aggregate sum of
the statutory reserve is more than 50% of its registered
capital. The statutory reserves shall only be used to make
up losses of the companies, to expand the companies’
production operations, or to increase the capital of the
companies. In addition, a company may make further
contribution to the discretional surplus reserve using its
post-tax profits in accordance with resolutions of the
board of directors.

Other reserves represented (i) share of other comprehensive
income of associates; (ii) gains/losses arising from changes
in Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a
loss of control; and (jii) revaluation surplus upon transfer of
owner-occupied properties to investment properties and
the tax arising from revaluation thereof.

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff & @EBHER A A

36. fEiE

rEBEFEE

HIBERMBHRER 247

ARBEZBE -

(a)

BHEEEOARRRE_ZFTH
FEESAE  WENAAFRASR
MEBARAMERRA(NEREER
RERIRAER) 2 6 2= 58 K (i) ¥
Rl —1EH T EBEHOTE

AEBARBIERE-FENT
5 B AR A TR IR R B A
FEL R R E D& - T
AEBER—FEF/\FLE KR
Rt SEBY 3t 8E T SRR RS
BRI AR5 A EE R ROTRAN G -

TEDERFOERMRE - EF B
MATNRE BEERERRAZH
EEME(REAEFENRETE
BR)TH RAERFEED KA
BRI D BRIE - AR S TR E R
e FTBEAERBHARITEREM
R - PERBRDIKE FENG
BB - BRDRERED DA
EAENEN10% - BERBEVEERE
HY 480 8 HL R 1 B AN #9 50% B
REAMEIEDE - R ERBR A B
EREARER BARRNE
ELESIRMARHER o tho -
RREZQHRER - AFAER
HEE BN ERBIE RS FHEEED
HE—FHR o

Hi G () TERABE AR
Hth 2 EWE : (N AEERMBLQ
AN NS G R R AR HIENED R
BFREEMRE B - R i) B
TERNNEERREMERNE
fhER R EAPTEERTIEA -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

36. RESERVES (Continued)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o V5 e A B

36. f#fE &)

Company ARTF
Share Capital Other Accumulated
premium reserve reserves deficit Total
RAD % B EARE HitfR Rt B4l met
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FHET FET
(Note)
(Bt &E)
At 1 January 2021 M_T——%
—H—H 5,064,575 34,750 (162,755)  (1,568,504) 3,368,066
Loss for the year FANEE - = = (121,348) (121,348)
Dividend by way of REMHIRSAE
distribution in specie KA B (611,067) = = = (611,067)
Share of other DIGHEE A R H Aty
comprehensive income 2 ERE
of associates — — (9,684) = (9,684)
At 31 December 2021 N-ZEBE-——F
and 1 January 2022 +=—A=+—H
E=—FT-——4&F
—H—H 4,453,508 34,750 (172,439) (1,689,852) 2,625,967
Loss for the year FRNEE - = = (172,672) (172,672)
Share of other DB E R A E A

comprehensive income ZEEE
of associates -

- (50,020) - (50,020)

At 31 December 2022 RN-ZB-—F
+-A=+—8~ 4,453,508

34,750 (222,459) (1,862,524) 2,403,275

Note: Capital reserve of the Company arising from the Group reorganisation in
2009 represents the difference between the nominal value of shares
issued by the Company pursuant to the reorganisation and the
aggregated net assets values of subsidiaries acquired.

M : —2RNFAEESHEENTDAE R
BEARFABEESEETHROEEREBA
MEBARBEEFEAEZEZR -
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

216

(@) Share option scheme adopted by the

Company

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 2 June
2020 (the “2020 Share Option Scheme”).

The 2020 Share Option Scheme remain in force for ten
years commencing on the adoption date. The number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted under
the 2020 Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes is not permitted to exceed 30% of the
shares of the Company in issue from time to time. The
maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options granted and to be granted pursuant
to the 2020 Share Option Scheme and any other share
options schemes of the Company to any person
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period up to the date of grant of options shall
not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue.

The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company at the time of the grant of the options and will
not be less than the higher of (i) the official closing price
of the Company’s share as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;
(ii) the average closing price of the Company’s share as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s share. The options are exercisable in ten years
starting from the date of grant. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle options
in cash.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no
share option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
under the 2020 Share Option Scheme and no
outstanding option as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff & @EBHER A A
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 38. A& A BB BARR TR

THE COMPANY

2022 2021
—_=E__ —_E_—
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T FHBxT FHETT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BE K& 1,916 2,553
Investments in subsidiaries RETB R RHILE - -
Investment in an associate R—REBE A RNIEE 135,985 295,495
137,901 298,048
Current assets REBEE
Loans and advances =E /U5 E N 646,446 656,059
Other receivables Hth e W R IE 428 1,596
Financial assets at fair value through ZAF(EF ABZMN SR
profit or loss BE 26 155
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE YR B A B FR0E 6,288,380 6,031,821
Cash and cash equivalents BeMIREEEY 60,180 23,179
6,995,460 6,712,810
Total assets EEASE 7,133,361 7,010,858
Current liabilities REBAE
Accrual and other payables FE T I B fth FE ST R I 25,733 15,372
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN ENGIE /e 934,506 555,686
Borrowings B8 631,096 675,082
1,591,335 1,246,140
Net current assets RBEEFHR 5,404,125 5,466,670
NET ASSETS EEFE 5,542,026 5,764,718
EQUITY =
Share capital [N 35 3,138,751 3,138,751
Reserves Gl 36 2,403,275 2,625,967
TOTAL EQUITY B 5,542,026 5,764,718

AMBHRRAEETERN _FT_=FMA
THABEHE  WHUATEERKRESE

The financial statements were approved by the board of
directors on 19 April 2023 and were signed on its behalf:

Yao Jianhui Li Minbin
PhE ZHOR
Chairman Director
FE EE
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 39. FEME QT

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2022
are as follows, which in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, principally affect the results, assets and liabilities of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, result in particulars of

excessive length.

R-ZBE-_—F+_-_A=+—BITEWE
ARNFHBNT  ARAREBERE @ %5
HETEREAEENELE BEKE
& ARREERE @ REHMHBAR]
ZHBEETERRRANTTE

Effective
Place of incorporation/ interest
Date of incorporation/ establishment/operation  Issued/fully paid up/ held by the
Name of subsidiary establishment and kind of legal entity  registered share capital Company Principal activities
AL/ R/ ERfT/E4R/ AATREH
WEAREH A/ A BepBREARE BETRE BRES TTER
Directly held:
EERE:
Great Sphere Developments Limited 3 July 2012 The British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of 100%  Investment holding
(The "BVI")Hong Kong, US$1 each
limited liability company
Great Sphere Developments Limited ~ ~F——%£+A=H iERaEE((2BRL  \REREEISTH 100% RERR
BR))/BRERLAR  LERERH
Success Charm Holdings Limited 11 May 2009 The BVIHong Kong, 27,774,264 ordinary shares of 100%  Investment holding
limited liability company US$1 each
BRARERART “ERAFRAT-B EBRAHB/BAAR  0TMa4BEREEIER 100% RARR
1] fERRRA
Indirectly held:
BRE
ACE Grand Limited 3 October 2012 Hong Kong, limited liabiity 1 ordinary share, HK§1 100%  Property investment
company
ACE Grand Limited “T-Z5+A=R ERARAT 1RERR - 18T 100% WFRE
Glory Sun Asset Management Limited 30 March 2012 Hong Kong, limited liability 14,000,000 ordinary shares, 100%  Providing asset
company HK$14,000,000 management services
BNEEERARAR ZE-ZEZRZHH BEARAH 14,000,000 £ - 100% HREAEERRE
14,000,000 %7t
Glory Sun Bullion Limited 4 June 2013 Hong Kong, limited liability 20,000,000 ordinary shares, 100%  Providing bullion trading
company HK$20,000,000 services
ENEXARAR “Z-=%AMA BEARAR 20,000,000 &5 100% RESREHRH
20,000,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o V5 e A B

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

39. FEMEBE LT (&)

Effective
Place of incorporation/ interest
Date of incorporation/ establishment/operation  Issued/fully paid up/ held by the
Name of subsidiary establishment and kind of legal entity  registered share capital Company Principal activities
HRARL/HY/ BRfT/E4R/ A ONGE T
WBARER A/ A BEREREAER BEERA ENES DX
Indirectly held: (Continued)
BERE: (8
Glory Sun Credit Limited 24 October 2014 Hong Kong, limited liability 553,333,330 ordinary shares, 100%  Providing money lending
company HK$553,333,330 services
ENREERRAR ZZ-METAZTER  EARRAR 553,333,330 R L @R - 100% HREEERS
553,333,330
Glory Sun Financial Investment 13 March 2014 Hong Kong, limited liability 4,000,000 ordinary shares, 100%  Investment holding
Limited company HK$4,000,000
ENoRRERRAT “T-IE=ATZR  EAERAA 4,000,000 B - 100% RERR
4,000,000
Glory Sun Securities Limited 30 October 1998 Hong Kong, limited liability ~1,003,347,067 ordinary shares, 100%  Providing securities
company HK$1,003,737,067 brokerage services
EHEFARAH “MNETAZTRE BEERAT 1,003,347,067 R MK - 100% RESHELRS
1,003,737,067 AT
Glory Sun Services Limited 28 October 2016 Hong Kong, limited liability 1 ordinary share, HK$1 100%  Providing hack office
company support to the Group
ENRBERAA “E-ETAZTNR BAERAF 1SR 1ET 100% RMASEREHRLE
EHRE
Glory Sun Wealth Management 30 March 2012 Hong Kong, limited liability 4,600,000 ordinary shares, 100%  Providing insurance
Limited company HK$4,600,000 Services
BN EERERAA ZE-ZE=A=TH  AHARRAF 4,600,000 % #fk - 100% RAERRIRE
4,600,000
Glory Sun Capital Limited 27 August 2018 Hong Kong, limited liability 15,000,000 ordinary shares, 100%  Inactive
company HK$ 15,000,000
BNHEARAH ZE2-NENAZTER  FAERAA 15,000,000 R & &k - 100% EEXH
15,000,000/ 7
Gallant Tech Limited 10 May 2007 Hong Kong, limited liability 5,000,000 ordinary shares, 100%  Trading of machines and
company HK$5,000,000 spare parts and
investment holding
ENHRARAR “ZRtERATH BEARAT 5,000,000 R EE K - 100% HRERTFHEZINR
5,000,000 %7 RERR
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. TEMBAT ()

Effective
Place of incorporation/ interest
Date of incorporation/ establishment/operation  Issued/fully paid up/ held by the
Name of subsidiary establishment and kind of legal entity  registered share capital Company  Principal activities
AR/ R/ BRf1/BHR/ ALAREN
WELRER B LS YT I il [ER-EH EREL IEER
Indirectly held: (Continued)
BEEE (8
Handmoon Investments Limited 31 October 2016 The BVI/Hong Kong, 1 ordinary share of US$ 1 each 100%  Property investment
limited liability company
ERREARAT TERETAST-B EBRLHR/EAAR  \REREE1ETHERK 100% #¥RE
N Htn
Harvest Joy Investments Limited 26 October 2016 The BVI/Hong Kong, 1 ordinary share of US$ 1 each 100%  Property investment
limited liability company
SREERRAH TERETACTAR EBRAER/EAAR  \REREE1ETHERK 100% #FERE
N Htn
Hong Kong Bao Xin Asset 23 April 2012 Hong Kong, limited liability 1 ordinary share, HK$1 100%  Investment holding and
Management Limited company securities investment
BEEMERERARAA ZT-ZEMAZTZR  BEARAT 1RERK 1B 100% REBRREFRE
Lahua TaiSheng Limited* 8 June 2011 The PRC, limited fiability Registered RMB1,650,000,000 100%  Property development
company
REZRARAA “2—%/ANR hEERAEAT EELAKRR1,650,0000007T 100% MERE
Laihua TaiFeng Limited* 10 January 2012 The PRC, limited liability Registered RMB 600,000,000 100%  Property development
company
REFIRRAT “2-—%-AtA hEERAEAT BB ARH 600,000,000 100% MxA%
Lin Dong Corporate Management 21 August 2017 The PRC, limited liability Registered RMB2,000,000 100%  Consultation on
Consulting (Shanghai) Co., Limited* company corporate management
FOCEEREA(LRERAR  —F-tFNA=T-B +EEREMAA EERARK2,000,0007T 100% GXERHD
Shanghai Chuangguang Electronics 7 April 2017 The PRC, limited fiability Registered RMB5,000,000 100%  Trading of machines and
Co., Limited* company spare parts
LRERETARAT “T-+EMALA hEERAEAT EEAR5,000,0007T 100% HERTHHES
Shanghai Hunlicar Investment 4 May 2014 The PRC, limited fiability Registered RMBS50,000,000 100%  Investment Management
Management Co., Ltd* company
LEkhRkAERARAA “F-RERARA hEERAEAT EETARH50,000,0007 100% RAEE
Shenzhen B&K New Energy Co,, 4 November 1999 The PRC, limited fiability Registered RMB720,000,000 755%  Property investment
Limited* company
MBS ERENERAT “IANET-ABE  HEAREEAR EEG AR 720,000,000 755% MERE
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. TEMBAT ()

Effective
Place of incorporation/ interest
Date of incorporation/ establishment/operation  Issued/fully paid up/ held by the
Name of subsidiary establishment and kind of legal entity  registered share capital Company Principal activities
ARRYL/ R/ ERfT/E4R/ AATREH
WEARER R/ R A BepBREARE 2EaRE ERES TTER
Indirectly held: (Continued)
BEEE: (8
Shenzhen Bangkai Commercial 26 February 2014 The PRC, limited fiability Registered RMB30,000,000 100%  Inactive
Property Co., Ltd* company
AHANEEARAT ZE-MECACTAR PEARERAR ERLARH 30,000,000 100% EEXH
Shenzhen Bao Da Financial Services 12 October 2015 The PRC, limited liability Registered RMB5,000,000 100%  Investment holding
Co., Ltd* company
MIHEELRREERAT ZE-REHATZR REERERAA EBLARH5,000,0007T 100% REARK
Shenzhen Gallant Financial Leasing 8 November 2016 The PRC, limited fiability Registered HK$500,000,000 100%  Finance leasing
Co, Ltd.* company
MIENRERERRAA Z2RET-ANE HEERERAR B&32500,000,000 %7 100% mMEEE
Shenzhen Gallant Tech Co., Ltd.* 23 June 2006 The PRC, limited liability Registered RMB260,000,000 100%  Trading of machines and
company spare parts
MITENRFSTHRARAT  —EEAFAAZTZE  THARARLA BB ARH 260,000,000 100% HERTHHES
Shenzhen Qianhai Bao Xin Equity 1 April 2017 The PRC, limited fiability Registered RMB50,000,000 100%  Investment management
Investment Fund Management company
Co., Ltd.*
AITHEEEREREESER —2-t¥MA-A HEARELAT BB AR 50,000,000 100% RAER
ARAR
Smart Riches Limited 13 January 2011 The BVI/Hong Kong, 1 ordinary share of US$ 1 each 100%  Inactive
limited liability company
Smart Riches Limited ZE—F-f+t=R  EBRAES/EHER  \REREEIETHLER 100% E&EEH
1] ki
Ultra Glory Investments Limited 17 May 2016 The BVI/Hong Kong, 1 ordinary share of US$ 1 each 100%  Property investment
limited liability company
BRRERRAR “E-RERATERE RERAER/FEER  1REREEIETNLER 100% W%R3
1] ki
World Fair International Limited 27 December 1996 Hong Kong, limited liability 10,000 ordinary share, 100%  Inactive
company HK$10,000
HRERARAT “ANRETZAZTER EEARAR 10,000 R &% - 10,0007 100% EEXH

*  For identification purpose only
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40. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 40. FEIERRER
(@) Material non-controlling interests () EARIFERER
Summarised financial information on BEEAFEZREZKEB L
subsidiaries with material non-controlling ZHBEREE

interests

Set out below are the summarised consolidated financial IATHIEHEAREE S B EAIFE
information for subsidiaries that have non-controlling REZNSMHBRARZGEMEE
interests that are material to the Group. The information R E - LTAE5ER BRI ER
presented below represents the amounts before any NRIBEIHAT 2 £ 58 ©
inter-company elimination.

Summarised consolidated statement of HEHBREREE
financial position
As at
31 December
2022
N-—E_——
+=-B=+—H
Shenzhen B&K
New Energy
Co., Limited
RN FB S FHBETR
R EPRA A
Percentage of equity interests held by R E R
non-controlling interests Bkl 24.50%
HK$’000
THT
Current assets mBEE 34,947
Current liabilities mEaE (962,021)
Non-current assets IEMBNEE 2,335,734
Non-current liabilities IERBAEE (157,470)
Net assets BEFE 1,251,190

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#f€m&EBEER A A
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40. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) 40. FEEZERER (@)
(a) Material non-controlling interests (Continued) () EXRFERERE)
Summarised consolidated statement of GETHEKEREE

comprehensive income

For the
year ended
31 December

Shenzhen B&K

New Energy
Co., Limited
R B SN RER
BREBERAA
HK$'000
FHBxT
Revenue W #5 121,885
Profit for the year FE 57,837
Total comprehensive loss 2 HEEERE (92,225)
Total comprehensive loss allocated to non- DT IR E 2
controlling interests BB B (22,595)
Summarised consolidated statement of cash HEBELREREE
flows

For the
year ended
31 December

Shenzhen B&K

New Energy
Co., Limited

R Y| F S F B TR
R BRAF]
HK$'000
FEx

Cash flow from operating activities BEETHELENHREESRE 110,386
Cash flow from investing activities REFDHEENRERE (70,893)
Cash flow from financing activities MEEHELNRESRE (50,988)

Net cash outflows REmH 5 (11,495)
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40. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

40. FEIERERS (&)

(a) Material non-controlling interests (Continued) () ERIFERERE)
Summarised consolidated statement of LEBREREE
financial position
As at
31 December 2021
R —%F
+—A=+—8
Shenzhen B&K
New Energy
Co., Limited
FIFBENFT LR
B BERA A
Percentage of equity interests held by BRI E R
non-controlling interests Btk 24.50%
HK$'000
T
Current assets MENEE 31,085
Current liabilities meaE (904,478)
Non-current assets IEMBEE 2,329,314
Non-current liabilities IERBERE (112,506)
Net assets BEFE 1,343,415
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40. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)
(@) Material non-controlling interests (Continued)

Summarised consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

f 3 SO 265 e A B

40. FEIERERS (&)
(a) EARFEZRER )

HETHEREEHUE

For the year ended
31 December 2021
BT ——F
TZA=1+—HILFE
Shenzhen B&K

New Energy
Co., Limited  Glory Sun Land
FEINF S FTaER
BB ER AR ENEM
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FET
Revenue Weas 111,040 5,510,909
Profit for the year FEHEF 141,834 249,022
Total comprehensive income EHEN =B 179,595 426,736
Total comprehensive income allocated B¢ FIEIERER N ZE
to non-controlling interests W ek 42 zm 44,000 221,971
Summarised consolidated statement of cash HEREEREXRHE

flows

For the year ended
31 December 2021
BT ——F
TZA=1T—HLFE
Shenzhen B&K

New Energy
Co., Limited  Glory Sun Land
FRINFBHLFTRE R
BHBERAFA BB
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T
Cash flow from operating activities KETEHELENIIRESRE 468,765 1,742,340
Cash flow from investing activities KRETHELENIRESRE (249,638) 513,283
Cash flow from financing activities BEEHEEANRERE (233,041) (2,575,995)
Net cash outflows M FRE (13,914) (320,372)
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40. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

226

(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests

The following transactions with non-controlling interests
were accounted for as equity transactions as the changes
in the Group's ownership interest did not result in a loss
of control over its subsidiaries.

(i)

On 15 January 2021 and 18 January 2021, a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
Shenzhen Yuejin Sports Company Limited has
disposed its entire equity interest in Shenzhen
Ruiteng Enterprise Management Company Limited
("Shenzhen Ruiteng”) and Shenzhen Qianhai
Virdom Education Investments Company Limited
(“Shenzhen Qianhai”) to a non-wholly owned
subsidiary at a consideration of RMB 1. Upon the
completion date, the Group's effective equity
interest in Shenzhen Ruiteng and Shenzhen Qianhai
decreased from 69.13% to 58.76%.The changes in
the ownership interest do not result in a loss of
control over Shenzhen Ruiteng and Shenzhen
Qianhai. Shenzhen Ruiteng and Shenzhen Qianhai
will remain as a subsidiary of the Company and its
financial results and financial positions will continue
to be consolidated in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. The Group recognised a
decrease in non-controlling interests of
approximately HK$3,502,000 and an increase in
equity attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$3,502,000.

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff & @EBHER A A

40. FEIERERS (&)

(b)

BFERERRS

RRASEM BRSNS &
BHAEHMB AR ES#E - &
AT BB SRR AR a5 ) X 5 A HE 2
LB °

(i)

RZZE-—F—A+HAKZ
T2-—F—A+/\H  &AAA
2 EMBARIFYIBRES
ERARUKREARE 1 LH
EERNFIIREEEEEER
AR R BB ) ZOFIIAT
BEBHEREBRAR(R
YIFIE ) B2 PR IE T — M
BB AR - KT A H
1% REERGFY I ROFRY
B A BB IR 69.13%
DE58.76% ° %A S
BE T SEIRERYIIGE
KORINBTGHIEHIRE o R E
B RRYIBTEE N ABARR R
BEAR - BHBEEE M
Bk SEEN AR ENGE
SRR ANEGEAEAR - AEE
BRIEEREZE R DY
3,502,000 7T R AR B H A
A FE (5 #E 22 38 AN 49 3,502,000
BT °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests
(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

On 18 March 2021, Glory Sun Land, a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
placing agreement with Glory Sun Securities
Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, pursuant to which Glory Sun Land
allotted and issued 910,020,000 new shares at a
placing price of HK$0.3 per share to the
independent third parties. The placing was
completed on 7 April 2021 and gross cash proceed
of HK$273,006,000 have been received by the
Group. Upon the completion of the placing, the
Group's effective equity interest in Glory Sun Land
decreased from 69.13% to 57.61%. The changes
in the equity interest do not result in a loss of
control over Glory Sun Land. Glory Sun Land will
remain as a subsidiary of the Company and its
financial results and financial positions will continue
to be consolidated in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. The Group recognised an
increase in non-controlling interests of
approximately HK$376,801,000 and a decrease in
equity attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$103,795,000.

During the period from 25 June to 27 July 2021,
the Company acquired additional 0.19% equity
interests in Glory Sun Land with cash consideration
of approximately HK$2,843,000 from independent
third parties. Upon the completion of the
acquisition, the Company’s interest in Glory Sun
Land increased from 57.61% to 57.80%. The
Group recognised a decrease in non-controlling
interests of approximately HK$8,492,000 and an
increase in equity attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$5,649,000.

f 3 SO 265 e A B

40. FFIERRBER (&)

(b) HEIEZERERETRS (&)

(ii)

(iii)
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40. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

228

(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests
(Continued)

(iv)

(vi)

On 30 July 2021, Golden Affluent Limited (“GAL"),
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
allotted and issued 6,936,376 ordinary shares to
GSF Holdings, a subsidiary of the Company.
Besides, GAL applied and PPL to allot 138 ordinary
shares. The Group recognised a decrease in
non-controlling interests of approximately
HK$4,977,000 and an increase in equity
attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$4,977,000.

On 23 November 2021, Shenzhen B&K New Energy
Co., Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose 100% equity interest in
Shenzhen Bangkai Commercial Property Co.,
Limited and B&K Rechargeable Battery Holding (HK)
Limited to a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. The Group recognised an increase in
non-controlling interests of approximately
HK$658,000 and a decrease in equity attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$658,000.

On 28 January 2022, Glory Sun Financial Holdings
Limited (“GSFHL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a share transfer
agreement with an independent third party to
acquire additional 14.73% equity interest in GAL, a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, at
the consideration of HK$110,000,000. Upon the
completion date, GAL became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of GSFHL and the Company. The Group
recognised a decrease in non-controlling interests
of approximately HK$64,939,000 and an decrease
in equity attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$45,061,000.
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40. IR ER (B)

(b)

B ERERETRE (E)

(iv)

RZBE-_—F+H=+H" &
RAIMFEEEWBAREINE
RBARI([EBERAIT M
EA e TR (AR E — B
B A7)k K %17 6,936,376
fRELBmAR - BEAN - SR BRA
7] B2 25 30 Z S PPLD 3% 138 %
TIRAR o AN B R IEE A AE
R A #94,977,000 78 TT K AR
NEEE ANEEERIE N
4,977,000 7T ©

RZE-_—F+—RA=+=
B KARBEEMB AR
FENF R IR B R A AE]
M EBE W - RIS
EABR AR RPN F e RIER
(BB)ERABIREEARE L
EFARRIZEMBARR - &
& B TR IR 4 IR R 254 0 49
658,000/ L R AR AR A
FE(EREZTR > 49658,00078 7T °

RZZB-_—_F—A=+N\8"
EemERAERAR(E
HFEMER] AR2F2EH
BAR)BE—&BIE=Z ]
SRR E R ARESR
BRAR(KRRABEEENE
N A BEINLSTI%RRAE - A
& /110,000,000 7 ° R 5%
B H%E  @MBRATIKE
EFERIEREARNTNEE
M AR - ALk BRI
1 25 58 ) 964,939,000 JT
KA DB ARG R
#945,061,000 7T



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

Reconciliation of loss before income tax

for the year to cash generated from

41. e iﬁ%l)lbi%ﬁﬁ-ﬂ

() RNFEERFEBABERELE

EBAENREIHR

operations:

Loss before income tax from continuing operations
Profit before tax from discontinued operations

Adjustments for:

— Interest income

— Finance costs

— Dividend income (Note 7)

— Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 16)

— Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 18)

— (Gain)loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
(Note 7)

— Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 42)

— Gain on early termination of lease

— Fair value gain on investment properties (Note 17)

— Fair value gain on derivative financial assets (Note 7)

— Loss from derecognition of derivative financial assets (Note 7) — & I-ERATA £ BAE 2 BR (1 7)

— Loss from derecognition of subsidiaries (Note 7)

— Written off of intangible assets (Note 18)

— Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment
(Note 16)

— Impairment losses on loans and advances (Note 24)

— Impairment losses on trade receivables (Note 25)

— (Reversal of impairment losses)/impairment losses on
other receivables (Note 28)

— Reversal of impairment losses on contract assets (Note 26)

— Write-down of inventories of properties

— Release of exchange reserve upon distribution

— Share of results of associates (Note 19)

— Written off on loans and advances (Note 8)

QOperating profit before working capital changes

2022 2021
—E-C —EC-&
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tign Thr
REBECEERRNRAEHIER (507,960) (12,494)
RERIHEEEBRBHAR - 38,459
(507,960) 25,965
{EHAT AR -
— FSHA (251,471) 47,374
— BBNA 98,087 149,219
— R (3ET7) () (5,139)
— 0% BERXENE(FizE16) 40,030 72,12
— BBl EE (W) 6,359 11,085
— HENE  BRRXEN (kE)/ BB
(zE7) (48) 1
— HENBA RGN (Hza2) - (364,191)
— AR LR E R (4,327) )
— REWNE 2 DA (F:17) (8,240) (144,171)
— S REAENATERE (T - (1313)
- 33,357
—RIFEAB AR BB (HE7) - 999
— B EENE(H:18) 8,100 10211
— 0% - BER&EHESR (i 16)
- 35,755
— ERRBFAESE (W 2) 292,567 370,669
—J*E%z‘ﬁ%ﬂﬁ TR ERE (3 25) 189 1,151
— HH RN (REFRER) /HESE
(Rz£28) (8,925) 22,560
— ANEEREFEED (i 26) (10) (61)
—MRnERE 106,203 172,694
— R BRI E R - (64,977)
— PEEE R RIRE (W3 19) 109,490 12,345
— HEEFR BN (38 53,397 =
EEESRURINEEET (66,560) 291,055
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41.

230

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

Reconciliation of loss before income tax
for the year to cash generated from
operations: (Continued)

(a)

41.

RERERERMT 2

() RNFEERAEHABERELE
E3E YRS

MRS 2HE (&)

2022 2021
—E=-= —E_—4F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FE&T T
Changes in working capital: LEESEE) -
— Inventories —FE (20,547) (14,212)
— Loans and advances — BEREBR 424,007 (710,508)
— Client trust bank balances — B {ErtiRIT# 45,380 59,382
— Completed properties held forsale ~— B ITHFEMERERES
and properties under development bIES 85,957 (1,395,012)
— Trade and other receivables and — EUE Z RS E A E U
contract assets HEREGHEE 138,742 337,192
— Finance lease receivables = ﬁu&%ﬂﬁfﬂg%’( 34,360 77,779
— Financial assets at FVTPL — EBEATEGFAEENSH
BE 178,765 148,556
— Trade and other payables and — BN E SRR R E AR
contract liabilities FHEREHNAE (245,947) 3,128,418
Cash generated from operations KERERE 574,157 1,922,650

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#f€m&EBEER A A




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o V5 e A B

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 41. ZEREREBRMT )

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
METBFELEEBEIHER:

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b)

financing activities:

RENE & 2 RME R E BB E
EREZESHHN -

This section sets out an analysis the movements in
liabilities from financing activities for each of the periods

presented.
Other
payables Other
Bank and toanon-  payables
Corporate other Interest Lease  controlling to related
bonds borrowings  payables liabilities interest parties
(Note33)  (Note33)  (Note32) (Note27(a))  (Note32)  (Note32) Total
HffER  EfEH
BIR FER BEn
tEEF  HtfEE  EMFE BERE  ERFE g
(WaE33)  (W&E33)  (WE32)  (WEare)  (MEE32)  (HEEE32) &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TATL TATL TATL TAT TATL TATL
As at 1 January 2021 WZE-—F—-A—-H (1,020,000) (12,371,91) (207,838) (119,905) (46,916) (105,451)  (13,872,071)
New leases g - - - (13,769) - = (13,769)
Termination of leases KIHAE = = = 37 = = 37
Financing cash (inflowsy ~ BERE (AA)/ il
outflows (16,0000 2,154,613 813,839 27,146 230 97,062 3,076,940
Finance costs BBRA - - (874070) (9,.964) - - (884,034)
Disposal of subsidiaries i EHBAR - 2,719,048 32,119 - - - 2,751,167
Distribution in specie BN 630,000 7,362,974 255,830 64,544 48 554 5271 8417223
Others Eftr - (1,165,550) (24,589) - - - (1,190,139)
Exchange realignment ~ EXHE - (349,467) (3,776) (2,227) (1,868) 2378 (359.712)
Asat31 December 2021 RZZZ—%
and 1 January 2022 TZA=+-RER
“F--F-f-H (356,000)  (1,650,343) (8,385) (54,138) - (5492)  (2,074,358)
New leases g - - - (1.377) = = (1,377)
Termination of leases RIHE - - - 41,986 - - 41,986
Financing cash (inflows)/ &R (FA)/ it
outflows 15,000 514,998 37,984 13,355 35,060 - 616,397
Finance costs BBA - - (95,448) (2,639) - - (98,087)
Others £t = = = = (72,500) 3,808 (68,692)
Exchange realignment ~ EXHE - 67,381 9,345 (1,527) 1,616 301 77,616
Asat 31 December 2022 RZZ-ZF
+ZA=t-H (341,000)  (1,067,464) (56,504) (4,340) (35,824) (1,383)  (1,506,515)
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fo 3 SO 265 e A B

42. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES/
DEREGISTRATION OF SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 31 December 2021

42. HEMRBAR FZHEKNEQAE

BE-ZE-_-F+-A=1+—HL#F

E
(a) Disposal of Shenzhen Xinpeng Fresh Food (a) HEFRITHBEHRRE
Industry Company Limited (“Shenzhen BR 2 & ([JRY )
Xinpeng”)
On 23 June 2021, the Group disposed of its 51% equity RZZEZ—FA=-+=0 &%
interest in Shenzhen Xinpeng which was principally = LAIR & K E A K% 15,000,000 7T
engaged in trading of seafood for a cash consideration (FBE R 4918,270,00087T) HEH
of RMB15,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RRIIFTIEHI 51% A - ZARE
HK$18,270,000). ENFEEHES -
Net assets at the date of disposal were as follow: REERBMNEEFENT :
2021
—E-—F
HK$'000
FHT
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB KREE 44
Cash and cash equivalents ReERFASEEY 2,483
Trade and other receivables FEW B 5 BR 5k I B th FE U R IR 25,215
Net assets disposed of EREEEFE 27,742
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HEME AW !
Cash consideration H"eRE 18,270
Net assets disposed of EREEEFE (27,742)
Release of exchange reserve R BRE 2,759
Release of non-controlling interests BRI R = 8,519
1,806
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEMEENRERAEE
Cash consideration received EWIRERE 18,270
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of It ERR e RESEEY (2,483)
15,787

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff & @EBHER A A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES/
DEREGISTRATION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Continued)

(b) Disposal of Yue Jin Asia

On 23 July 2021, the Group disposed of its entire equity
interest in Yue Jin Asia which was principally engaged in
operation of yacht club as well as provision of training

f 3 SO 265 e A B

42. HEWE LR, FEHMEDH

(&)

BE-%

E (&)

——§+=-A=t+—HL¥F

(b) HEZFIN

B —F+A-+=H &%
B S H S B8R T Y 2 AR ARHE
SZABEBREERESAEEINR

services. R R o
Net liabilities at the date of disposal were as follow: REERBNEEFENT ¢
2021
—E-—F
HK$'000
T
Property, plant and equipment M - BB RZE 1,403
Intangible assets B EE 88,851
Trade and other receivables JEUE 5 BR R N E b R MR 10,957
Current tax recoverable AU e B EARR 18 9
Cash and cash equivalents Be MRS EEY 3,737
Trade and other payables JEN B 5 BR R N B b fE S F0E (15,762)
Consideration payable FERRE (179,826)
Borrowings EE (52,800)
Current tax liabilities BNEAfRIB & (& (4,725)
Amount due to the Group FEfS A S BI5RIE (305,346)
Net liabilities disposed of EHEAEFE (453,502)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HEHMBE QRN :
Cash consideration HeRE —*
Non-cash consideration JEREKE (79,128)
Net liabilities disposed of BHEEAEFE 453,502
Assignment of amount due to the Group R ENAEEKIE (305,346)
Release of exchange reserve iR [ 0E 5 R (3,185)
65,843
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEFREENBRE SR L FE
Cash consideration received BWHEeRE —*
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of It ERRe RESEEY (3,737)
(3,737)

*  Represents the amount less than HK$ 1,000

* RAEFE/NN1,0008 7T
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42. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES/
DEREGISTRATION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

(%&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Continued)

42. HEWEL R, FEHEME DR

BE-E-_—H+Z-HA=1+—HIL*E

E &)
(c) Disposal of Shenzhen Xinhengchuang Industrial () HEFRINHEAEXFRA A
Company Limited (“Xinhengchuang”) & ([ #T1EAl1)
On 22 December 2021, the Group disposed of its entire R-ZT-——F+-F-+-H K

equity interest in Xinhengchuang. Xinhengchuang was
principally engaged in property development and

investment in the PRC.

Net liabilities at the date of disposal were as follow:

BE -

SEHEERHERAN Bk -
MEAEERTEEEMEERK

REERMNEERFENT

2021
—E-—F
HK$'000
F&T
Property, plant and equipment W - B RS 4,019
Investment properties WEYHE 2,224,723
Deferred tax assets ERERIEE EE 39,069
Inventories of properties MEGFE 3,219,639
Trade and other receivables FEU B 2 BR 5k T2 E A FE UL SRIE 385,126
Current tax recoverable BNEA AT Uy (B F TR 27,155
Pledged bank deposits and restricted deposits EEBRITFR IR G T 68,180
Cash and cash equivalents Re KA EEY 54,527
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 BR 5k I B fth FE < 5/ 1B (1,353,920)
Contract liabilities EHBE (1,823,945)
Borrowings BE (2,666,248)
Current tax liabilities BT IR A & (111,835)
Deferred tax liabilities RETIEA & (88,298)
Net liabilities disposed of EHE&EFE (21,808)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HEME QTS :

Cash consideration HERE 367,500
Non-cash consideration FRERE (89,628)
Net liabilities disposed of BEHEEBEFE 21,808
Release of exchange reserve AR BRIE 5 E (3,138)
296,542

Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEMEENESRAFE
Cash consideration received EWIR e RE 220,500
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of FrHEMERE MREEEY (54,527)
165,973

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff & @EBHER A A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES/
DEREGISTRATION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Continued)

(c) Disposal of Shenzhen Xinhengchuang Industrial
Company Limited (“Xinhengchuang”) (Continued)

The consideration has been partially received of
approximately HK$220,500,000 and the remaining of
approximately HK$147,000,000 was included in trade
and other receivables under the distribution in specie in
note 43.

(d) Deregistration of subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
derecognised the Hunlicar All Weather CTA No.1 Private
Equity Investment Fund, Hunlicar Debt-equity Swaps
Strategy No.1 Private Equity Investment Fund, Hunlicar
Equity Choice No.1 Private Equity Investment Fund and
Hunlicar Quantitative Hedge No.1 Private Equity
Investment Fund (the “Private Equity Investment Funds”).
After the derecognition of the Private Equity Investment
Funds, the Group de-recognised the respective non-
controlling interest of HK$1,464,000.

f 3 SO 265 e A B

42. HEMBAR,FHMHEAH
(%)

BE-E-_—F+ZH=1+—HL#F
E#E)

(0 HEFRIFEANEXERAA
Al ([#riafl)) (&)

ZAREE WA —56949220,500,000
77T 0 Mgk T 49147,000,00078 7T
BIRIBM 5T 43 B Y 9 IR ET AFEUL
B 5 IR N L Ath R R o

(d) E#HEHE LA

REBEE=_ZET=-_—4F+=-H=+—H
WEFEE AEBFHERSKE
CTA 1SRFLEREREES - Hf
BREEBRREIRLERERER
- BEHREBEIRLERER
BEES MRS 1RAER
BEREES(LEREREER
©])c RIRIETERLEREREE
©1% 0 AEBERIEERAREIEER
251,464,000 78 7T ©
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43. DISTRIBUTION IN SPECIE

On 28 December 2021, the Company distributed an interim
dividend that was satisfied by way of distribution in specie of
shares in Glory Sun Land held by the Group to shareholders of
the Company. The distribution in specie was completed on 28
December 2021.

The carrying amounts of net assets of Glory Sun Land Group at
the date of the completion of distribution were as follow:

43. EY D

\:‘_:t\(

R-ZBE-_—F+-A-+/1\B ARQRE
AR RREIREF RS - 2P HRE
NEMHAD EASERBENENE
2R e EMDIRER—E=-—F+=
A=+ NHZEK °

ENENEEEEFER D IKTKBH
MBRmEEDT

2021
T4
HK$'000
F&T
Property, plant and equipment Wz - BB REE 137,116
Investment properties KB 4,063,202
Financial assets at FVOCI BAFEFAEMEEREZ S /M
BE 4,800
Inventories EE 452
Inventories of properties MEFE 10,175,785
Contract assets ABHEE 34,619
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 R 51 R H A JE IGR IR 5,118,073
Current tax recoverable BNEA AT U 2] §5 1B 53,487
Pledged bank deposits and restricted deposits EHEMRITERRZ R TR 430,531
Cash and cash equivalents HekIReEEY 259,155
Trade and other payables FE 1T E 5 BR 51 I B Ath FE < 5K I8 (4,046,840)
Contract liabilities AHAaE (2,335,646)
Borrowings g (8,042,974)
Lease liabilities HEaE (64,544)
Current tax liabilities BEffIE & & (101,877)
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIAEE (685,520)
Financial guarantee BT &R (89,628)
4,910,191
Non-controlling interests FEFERT M = (3,106,278)
Net assets distributed under distribution of specie BREEMDIRE DIREEFE 1,803,913
Net cash outflow arising on distribution in specie: BY 9 IRELMNRSHH EE .
Cash and cash equivalents distributed ENRBEERBEEEY (259,155)
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. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS 44. EXR R HERE
Capital and other expenditure contracted for at the end of the REBRFREFTHNERREENER
year but not yet incurred by the Group were as follows: REMMAZAT
2022 2021
—=E_— B —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Contracted but not provided for: BRI AEREE -
Investment properties and property RENMERYFEBRSZ L
development expenditures 424,050 1,424,352
Investment in an associate & — &N F) 215,158 215,158
639,208 1,639,510
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45. REHETHNEREER M
AEHE

AEBRFRERNEREENABD
FREER THIDRIEL DM - BRASET
BN BEHERTENTE - F2HME
4 9HIRLEA

45. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities as recognised at the end of the year are analysed into
the following categories. See note 4.9 for explanations about
how the category of financial instruments affects their

su bsequent measurement.

2022 2021
—F=-= T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FHET
Financial assets tREE
Measured at fair value BAFEFZE
— Financial assets at FVOCI — EBAFEFAEMEZERE
TREE 122,578 277,869
— Financial assets at FVTPL — RAFEFAEBZNESHEE 147,735 326,500
Measured at amortised cost biog: 3]0 PN =)
— Trade receivables — EE F IR 154,221 159,586
— Finance lease receivables — BB EER A 19,476 48,592
— Loans and advances — BERRBXK 1,929,023 2,490,151
— Deposits and other receivables — e N EMEKERIE 67,153 118,630
— Client trust bank balances — BPEER1TTER 150,024 195,404
— Pledged bank deposit and restricted ~ — BIRFIRITFR R Z R HFH
deposits 21,053 33,624
— Cash and cash equivalents —HekReFEY 486,342 730,076
3,097,605 4,380,432
Financial liabilities sRas
Measured at amortised cost I NG E
— Trade and bills payables — BNESRFLENERE 510,640 632,618
— Accruals and other payables — BT ER R HAMENFIE 487,449 394,288
— Borrowings —BE 1,408,464 2,006,343
— Lease liabilities —HESE 4,340 54,138
2,410,893 3,087,387
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
46.1Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group's overall risk management program focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. Risk management is carried out by
the senior management of the Group under policies
approved by the directors of the Company.

(a) Market risk
Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates principally in Hong Kong and
in the PRC. It is exposed to foreign exchange risk
primarily with respect to Hong Kong dollar and
RMB denominated transactions. Foreign exchange
risk arises where future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities are denominated in
currency that is not the respective Company’s
functional currency.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group's
cash and bank balances, deposits and other
receivables and loans and advances are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollar, RMB and US
dollar other than the functional currency of the
relevant group company. Since Hong Kong dollar is
pegged to US dollar, the Group believes the
exposure of transactions denominated in Hong
Kong dollar which are entered into the Group to be
insignificant.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, if RMB had
strengthened/weakened by 5% with all other
variables held constant, loss after tax would have
been approximately HK$36,492,000 lower/higher
(2021: HK$25,779,000).

f 3 SO 265 e A B

B EREER
46.1 BT RAREE

NEBERASZIAMERER - B
M5 R R (2 EINER R - EEE
B RAMERR) FEERBRREE
ﬁﬂM REBENEERERREER
RERSR TS DA TEAER -
BOBIEE AR EE SRR E
THFE - REENRREERET)
BIBEAQRESHAENBERETR
REIR o

(a) WEEE
SHME R

AEEXEREFERTEEE
55 o REBAZHIMNER R
ZENBTRARBHERD
Q%ﬁ%°%$Xﬁ¥§%
BEEREEMBEUARR
REE R LASNE Jﬁ&ﬂr@ﬂv @
SELIMNERR

RZEZZFR-ZT=—F
+=—A=1+—8 KHEBEEEHE
UNSIEIE é%%'$$@m
Re RIBITHER R REA
FEUGRIB R B R B EB L
B ARBKRETFME - A
SR TTEND - FIL AR E
ER{E - AEERT S ABITE
ENRFHRBRITTNERX -

RZBEZZFR-ZZT-—F
+=-A=+—8 " MAREFH
B/ B21E5% ' FEFT B E &
BTENBERT  BEEER
e iR, 1 IN%) 36,492,000
B (ZE=—4 : 25,779,000
/%TE)
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

240

46.1Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

The Group manages its exposures to foreign
currency transactions by monitoring the level of
foreign currency receipts and payments. The Group
ensures that the net exposure to foreign exchange
risk is kept to an acceptable level from time to time.
The Group also regularly reviews the portfolio of
suppliers and the currencies in which the
transactions are denominated so as to minimise the
Group's exposure to foreign exchange risk.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price change arising
from its financial assets at FVTPL and financial
assets at FVOCI. The Group’s financial instruments
are equity securities which are subject to change in
market prices of the securities. To manage its price
risk arising from investments in equity securities,
the Group diversity its portfolio.

For those equity investments at FVTPL and FVOCI
with quoted market price. The sensitivity analyses
below have been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risk at the end of the
reporting period. If equity prices had been 10%
higher/lower (2021: 10% higher/lower):

— loss after tax for the year ended 31 December
2022 would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$2,337,000 (2021:
approximately HK$6,509,000) due to the
change in fair value of financial assets at
FVTPL; and

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff & @EBHER A A

46. I EMRERE &)

46.1 iR REZE (&)

(a)

5 m B ()

A ER B B R N WU I A K
FooREUNEERIIERZHE
R o A ERERFTAS K INE
B 7 R N A R IR AT 2K
F o A - AEEE R
EAKERIMNERK

B8R

REBAZ RN HER AR
& BEE MR A FEFFAR
2 E WS RUEE S| R
BEERER - REBEHDE
TARBERESFMEZBHRA
EF o REERRENBRERE
FMELNERRR  A&EH
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BREMEDT - RRBREHE
% (B B 37 0 R SR FEE AY © fied
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 46. B EKRERE &)
46.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 46.1 B EREZE (&)

(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) TEEEE(E)

Price risk (Continued)

— other comprehensive loss (2021: other
comprehensive income) for the year ended
31 December 2022 would decrease/increase
by approximately HK$11,837,000 (2021:
increase/decrease by HK$26,249,000) as a
result of the changes in fair value of financial
assets at FVOCI.

The Group is not exposed to significant commodity
price risk as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

Interest rate risk

Except for the cash held at banks, loans and
advances and financial lease receivables, the Group
has no other significant interest bearing assets. The
Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates. At 31 December 2022, if interest
rates on cash held at banks, loans and advances
and finance lease receivables had been 25 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, post-tax loss for the year would have
been approximately HK$1,692,000 lower/higher
(2021: HK$7,360,000 lower/higher), mainly as a
result of higher/lower interest income on cash at
banks, loans and advances and finance lease
receivables.
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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46.1Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group's interest rate risk arises from bank and
other borrowings which are interest bearing at
floating rates and are repayable based on the
repayment schedules. Borrowings issued at floating
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate
risk.

At 31 December 2022, if interest rates on bank and
other borrowings had been 25 basis points higher/
lower with all other variables held constant, post-
tax loss for the year would have been approximately
HK$2,437,000 higher/lower (2021: HK$4,018,000
higher/lower), mainly as a result of higher/lower
interest expense on floating rate borrowings.

Credit risk

Credit risk mainly arises from financial assets at
amortised cost.

As at 31 December 2022, the top five debtors and
the largest debtor accounted for approximately
32% (2021: 24%) and 11% (2021: 7%) of the
Group's trade receivables balance, respectively. The
Group has policies in place to ensure that sales of
products are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history. The Group normally
conducts credit checks on new customers and
requires them, and other customers with credit
histories that the management is not satisfied with,
to pay a deposit, or to provide the Group with a
letter of credit when placing orders.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) HMEERER®)

46.1Financial risk factors (Continued) 46.1 I EREZE (&)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EEREE (&)

The Group provides clients with securities
brokerage and margin financing for securities
transactions, which are secured by clients’ securities
or deposits held as collateral. Each client has a
maximum credit limit based on the quality of
collateral held and the financial background of the
client. Management has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken overdue
debts. The overdue balances for margin clients are
reviewed daily, and force-sell action may be taken
against clients with overdue balances on case by
case basis.

For other loans and advances, prior to the lending
of loan, the financial strength, purpose of the
borrowing and repayment ability of the borrower is
reviewed to ensure the default probability is
acceptably low.

Except for the financial guarantee given by the
Group as set out in note 47, the Group does not
provide any other guarantees which would expose
the Group to credit risk. The maximum exposure to
credit risk in respect of these financial guarantees
at the end of the reporting period is disclosed in
note 47.
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

244

46.1Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk of the Group,
the management has implemented internal control
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts.

Impairment and provision policies

The Group's impairment requirements under HKFRS
9 are based on an expected credit loss model. The
Group applies simplified approach to measure ECL
on trade receivables and contract assets; and
general approach to measure ECL on loans and
advances to customers and other financial assets
accounted for at amortised cost. Under the
simplified approach, the Group measures the loss
allowance on trade receivables and contract assets
at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. Under the
general approach, financial assets migrate through
the following three stages based on the change in
credit risk since initial recognition: Stage 1:
12-month ECL, Stage 2: Lifetime ECL — not credit-
impaired and Stage 3: Lifetime ECL — credit-
impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 46. B EKRERE &)

46.1Financial risk factors (Continued) 46.1 B EREZE (&)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EEREE &)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the risk of default has
increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis based on the Group's
historical experience and expert credit risk
assessment, including forward-looking information.
The loan and advances use different indicators,
including but not limited to the number of days
past due and loan-to-collateral value to determine
significant increase in credit risk. Credit risk is
deemed to have increased significantly if the credit
rating has significantly deteriorated at the reporting
date relative to the credit rating at the date of
initial recognition.

The Group rebutted the presumption of default
under ECL model when the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Financial assets with credit risk exposure

(@)  Bank balances and client trust bank balances

The counterparties of all client trust bank
balances are located in Hong Kong and the
majority of cash and bank balances are
located in Hong Kong and the PRC. The
credit risk on cash and bank balances and
client trust bank balances are limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit-
rating assigned by international credit-rating
agencies or with good reputation.
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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46.1Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Financial assets with credit risk exposure (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets

The counterparties of the majority of trade
receivables and contract assets are mainly
located in Hong Kong and the PRC. As the
Group trades with a large number of
diversified clients, in the opinion of the
directors, the concentration of credit risk of
trade receivables and contract assets is
manageable.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets at an amount
equal to lifetime ECL, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group's
historical credit loss experience does not
indicate significantly different loss patterns
for different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.

As at 31 December 2022, ECL rate of
contract assets with a gross carrying amount
of approximately HK$20,618,000 (2021:
HK$22,540,000) is assessed to be 0.5%
(2021: 0.5%). The loss allowance provision
for contract assets was approximately
HK$103,000 (2021: HK$113,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o V5 e A B

46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

46.1Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Financial assets with credit risk exposure (Continued)

(b)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(Continued)

The following table provides information
about the Group's exposure to credit risk and
ECL for trade receivables as at the end of

46. B EKRERE &)

46.1 B EBEE (&)

(b) EEmEBEE (&)

Ekgls ERSRr % 8 A ()

E (&)

() EUEEZERRANE

TREHBBAREH
RAAEENEERR A
K Y E 5 AR A

reporting period: FEEEBBRMNER
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
ZE-CEtZAZT-R ZB--#tCA=t-H
Gross Gross
Expected carrying Loss Expected carmying Loss
loss rate amount EllENE loss rate amount allowance
kil ipE HE#E kG e FHLE BRER
HK$'000 HK$'000 % HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén TR % TERL TEL
Current (not past due) ~ FE (K814) 0%-2.60% 78,893 81 0.31%-34.60% 129,174 40
1-30 days past due 8812308 0%-0.02% 36,346 2 041%-34.60% 11,720 48
31-60 dayspastdue 315 60A 0%-0.07% 10121 1 0.79%-34.60% 5,554 4
61-90 dayspastdue ~ BH61E90A 0.01%-0.12% 2,459 2 0.94%-34.60% 4132 39
91-120 days pastdue ~ BEIIE1208  0.01%-0.22% 6,822 2 036%-34.60% 5,028 18
121365 days past due ~ BE1212365A  0.01%-52.90% 2,17 3,049 34.60% 6,926 2397
157,358 3,137 162,534 2,948
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss TEHEBEXDERBE

experience over the past 5 years. These rates
are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over
which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives
of the receivables.
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

248

46.1Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Financial assets with credit risk exposure (Continued)

(0

Loans and advances

The counterparties of the majority of loans
and advances (including margin loans and
other loan financing) are mainly located in
Hong Kong and the PRC. The management
prepares an analysis of key margin clients to
avoid excessive concentration of risk. As at 31
December 2022, the credit risk of the Group
on loans and advances are concentrated on 3
(2021: 3) customers with gross aggregate
carrying amount of HK$1,760,274,000 (2021:
HK$1,826,229,000). The remaining
customers are diversified into a large number.

The Group measures loss allowances for loans
and advances on either 12-month or lifetime
basis depending on whether a significant
increase in credit risk has occurred since initial
recognition or whether an asset is considered
to be credit-impaired. ECL is calculated using
the key parameters include probability of
default (“"PD"), loss given default (“LGD"),
exposure at default, time value of money
with reference to the quantitative analysis of
historical statistics (such as ratings of
counterparties and types of collaterals).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

46.1Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Financial assets with credit risk exposure (Continued)

(0

Loans and advances (Continued)

The Group considers the probability of default
from initial recognition of loans and advances
and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis. To
assess whether there is a significant increase
in credit risk, the Group compares the risk of
a default occurring on the loans and
advances, generally on individual basis, as at
the reporting date with the risk of default as
at the date of initial recognition. It considers
available reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information. The following indicators
are generally incorporated: (i) external credit
rating (if any); (ii) actual or expected
significant adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant change to the
counterparties’ ability to meet their
obligations; and (iii) significant actual and
expected changes in the performance and
behaviour of the counterparties, including
changes in the payment status of
counterparties in the Group and changes in
the operating results of the counterparties.

For margin loan receivables, credit
assessments are part of the normal process
before approving loans to applicants. The
Group considers that the credit risk arisen is
significantly mitigated by the collaterals.

There have been no significant changes in
estimation technique or significant
assumptions made during the reporting
period.
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 46. BIEKMER &)

46.1Financial risk factors (Continued) 46.1 BIEEKBER (&)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERE (%)
Financial assets with credit risk exposure (Continued) EfG s BE G % m & E ()
()  Loans and advances (Continued) (0 ERERBHE)
The following table provides information Ti%k{#ﬁﬁ%%m
about movement of allowance for = EQ#E%,HHEEE’ME!ZTEJE?
impairment losses on loans and advances as BREZHHNER

at the end of reporting period:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
1B F2EE EIRR st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEn  Fan 0 TR FER

At 1 January 2022 R-ZZ-_—_F—A—H 10,641 38,772 326,330 375,743
(Reversal of)/provision for  J5if& (#[l) /Bl
impairment (10,641) 34,013 269,195 292,567
Written off s - - (38,967) (38,967)
At 31 December 2022 RZZE-—F
+-A=+—-H - 72,785 556,558 629,343
Gross amount as at R-—Z-——#+-H
31 December 2022 —t—HRNELE 34,212 838,549 1,685,605 2,558,366
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F1RE F2RER E3RE a@st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR TAT THBR TR

At 1 January 2021 \_Z_—F—-H—H 51 5,023 = 5,074
Transfer to stage 3 EREEIMEE = (1,578) 1,578 =
Provision for impairment  JEi{E B & 10,590 35,327 324,752 370,669
At 31 December 2021 R-Z-—F
+-A=t-B 10,641 38,772 326,330 375,743
Gross amount as at RZE-—F+-A
31 December 2021 —t—BNELE 847,776 626,022 1,392,096 2,865,894
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

46.1Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Financial assets with credit risk exposure (Continued)

(0

Loans and advances (Continued)

The significant changes in the loss allowance
in loans and advances are as follows:

31 December 2022

Transfer of loans and advances of
approximately HK$1,151,270,000 from
stage 1 to stage 2 and stage 3, resulting
in an increase in loss allowance of
approximately 288,287,000.

31 December 2021

(ii)

Upon the completion of distribution in
specie, Glory Sun Land ceased to be a
subsidiary of the Company. The loans
to Glory Sun Land Group with gross
carrying amounts of approximately
HK$1,224,000,000 remain outstanding
after the completion of distribution and
were classified as loans and advances
during the year resulted in an increase
in loss allowance; and

Origination of new loans and advances
net of settlement resulted in an increase
in loss allowance of approximately
HK$370,669,000.

46. BIEKMERE &)

46.1 B EEE (&)

(b) EEmBE (%)

Elals B m % 8 A ()

(0
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

252

46.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(c)

Financial assets with credlit risk exposure (Continued)
(d)  Other receivables and deposits

In respect of other receivables and deposits, the
Group monitors the exposures and manages
the other receivables and deposits based on
historical settlement records and past
experience. At the reporting date, the credit risk
on other receivables and deposits have not
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group measures loss allowances for other
receivables and deposits at an amount equal to
12 months ECL.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes
maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities,
the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities and the ability
to settle the payables of the Group. Due to the
dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, senior
management of the Group aims to maintain flexibility
in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.
In addition, due to the conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government management aims to monitor and
manage its operating cashflows and transactions
denominated in RMB regularly to minimise the
respective liquidity risk.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
Group'’s liquidity reserve which comprise undrawn
borrowing facilities and cash and cash equivalents on
the basis of expected cash flows. The Group aims to
maintain flexibility in funding while minimising its
overall costs by keeping a mix of committed and
uncommitted credit lines available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

46.1Financial risk factors (Continued)

f 3 SO 265 e A B

46. BIEMERE &)

46.1 B EBREE (&)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) () mEBELEEE)
The table below analyses the Group’s non- THRAENEBRIETESRE
derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity BEoIr BERHEHARES
groupings based on the remaining period at the NEHI B R EHIEEE Y
end of the reporting period to the contractual BLEI B BRI AR R o RAPTH
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table BeHEACAXREERESR
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. & o
Withinone  Between Between
yearoron oneand twoand Over
demand two years five years five years Total
—FRH
REX -ZME WERLF HBEIE st
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FHT THT FHT THT THT
At 31 December 2022 N-E-_F
+=A=+-H
Trade and bill payables BB SERR
ANES 510,640 - - - 510,640
Accruals and other payables Bzt &R KA
FERTRIE 477,316 2,537 1,981 5615 487,449
Borrowings BE 1,396,341 30,917 - - 1,427,258
Lease liabilities ME&E 2,561 1,099 988 - 4,648
2,386,858 34,553 2,969 5615 2,429,995
Financial guarantee issued 2 #{7THIHSER
Maximum amount R EER
guarantee 3,223 - - - 3,223
At 31 December 2021 R-E-—&
tTZHA=+—-H
Trade and bill payables ERTE SRR K
ANES S 632,618 - - - 632,618
Accruals and other payables  fEZTE A & E Al
e 5RIE 376,382 3,834 7,855 6,217 394,288
Borrowings f&E 2,166,475 = = - 2,166,475
Lease liabilities MEEE 14,208 15,749 31,618 - 61,575
3,189,683 19,583 39,473 6,217 3,254,956
Financial guarantee issued & {TBBER
Maximum amount Ta e BER
guarantee 54,615 - - - 54,615
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

46.1Financial risk factors (Continued)

46. BIEKMER &)

461 IR EE (&)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) () mEBELEEE)
Where the loan agreement contains a repayable on HWERHERNEERZEERA
demand clause which gives the lender the WA BRI RET e 2
unconditional right to call the loan at any time, the SRIE R &R ERE G -
amounts repayable are classified in the earliest time BEE s RIBIRER AT ESK
bracket in which the lender could demand BN xERRAMSE R
repayment. Based on the internal information BEEEMREHEAISER - 8
provided by management, it is expected that the HE AL D17 EREF A
lender will not exercise its rights to demand EREEDIE - KREEXWH
repayment. The expected cash flows with reference EETEE S EREE - BHRe
to the schedule of repayments set out in the loan MEOT
agreements are as follows:
Between  Between
Within oneand  twoand Over
oneyear twoyears fiveyears five years Total
—-fR -EmF WERF BBIF @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THT THT THET THT THET

At 31 December 2022 R-E-Z&
+=A=t-8H
Borrowings fEE 1,183,403 181,345 81,253 26327 1,472,328
At 31 December 2021 RZZ_—F
+=R=1+-H

Borrowings BE 1,291,293 56,440 755,354 24341 2,127,428
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 46. BIERAMEE &)

46.2 Capital risk management 46.2 EXE R EE

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or dispose of assets to
reduce debt.

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings
and shareholder’s equity. Capital is managed so as to
maximise the return to shareholders while maintaining a
capital base to allow the Group to operate effectively in
the marketplace and sustain future development of the
business. Consistent with others in the industry, the
Group monitors capital on the basis of gross gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided
by total equity.

The Group's total borrowings and total equity and gross
gearing ratio at 31 December 2022 and 2021 were as
follows:

AEBEBHEERNURRAEERE
WIFELE  RERRREHED RN E
BamAEESNG  RAERFR
B R EBIARIEEARKAE -

RAFBHABELGEHE  A&EHA
EERFBRN TERRMNRE S - &
TRk E B E BRETR »

AEENEXASEBEREEIER
#a - EAXE R AR B MR
R M B AR LAE N E B
WEMS EEREERFEETR
KEBER - AKEABRELX
ERER BEAHMRAT -
ZLETIREERER AR AR

| A
ATH °

AKEBR-_ZBE_—_FR-_ZT_—F
+—A=+—HBNEEEERER
WEEPA B EEL RN

Total borrowings BEBRE
Total equity e m R
Gross gearing ratio (%) BEBLE(%)

2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHTT
1,408,464 2,006,343
5,111,424 6,334,049
27.6 31.7
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

256

46.3 Fair value estimation

The fair value measurements of financial instruments of
the Group that are measured at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position are disclosed
by level of the following fair value measurement
hierarchy:

—  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

— Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (level 2).

— Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the end of
the reporting period. A market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s
length basis. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1. For the year ended 31
December 2022 and 2021, instruments included in level
1 comprise listed investments classified as financial assets
at FVTPL and financial assets at FVOCI.

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff & @EBHER A A

46. BIEKMER &)

46.3 A {EfERT

A5 A IRR R M5 A F &R
EARENSRIA  BETHIA
FEEEBRT AR

— REEEMSTHHEREELR
BEOREARREE —E
AR

— F-EBAMERNREAING
BARE - BRBABESA
BH#Z (BB ) skHEZ (B A
BRUTE)REEXABESR
FH(EZER) -

— BEERTERAUBRMSZ
FMEEXRBRBABET
AERBARR) (F=ER) -

RRIEERMSEBESHTANA
FE - REREEBHATHRMETHE -
REMEEEEHARZIGHM - X5
EERBESRE  AEMSAH
HAEERER MABEBERRREA
FEEEITER N ERETHNTS
R REBBFENSREEMA
MEREAEREAEB ZEIT A
WAFE—EBR - HEZT-_ZFR
—E -+ -_A=+—HItHF
B F—ERNIABEREAR
ANEEFAEBERNESBMEERIEQ
FEFAEMEERENEREE
B EMRE -
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 46. B EKRERE &)

46.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 46.3 AP EMGE (&)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use
of observable market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.
Instruments included in level 2 comprise certain debt
investments classified as financial assets at FVTPL.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in
level 3. Instruments included in level 3 comprise unlisted
investments classified as financial assets at FVOCI that do
not have a quoted market price in an active market as of
31 December 2022 and 2021.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include: Quoted market prices or dealer
quotes for similar instruments. Other techniques, such as
discounted cash flow analysis, are used to determine fair
value for the remaining financial instruments.

WHRRBEBNSEENERT
AMAFELIBEERDERE °
ZEHETEZAREMER T A
ESmABREmSRE  thaX
BRIZ 1R B T B R RE b At VIR
HEIZE - MIRAFEFE-BAIA
MABEEABABBEOABERE
B AZEITAESRIIAE -E
M-FAE_EBENTABREIE
REAFEFABRSNEREER
ETEBRE -

st — 1 8% 2 {8 &= KX 85 A BB 3R AR
BRI EBRMIZEEET - AZEL
BEeWIAE=BL -IAF=E
BT ABESBEARAFERA
HtermlkasNemEEMELT
WE HE_E-__FR_FT_—
FE+-A=+—BIEERTHR

-

RUABESR T ABENSTEMRE
TEBRRE  ARRIANTSRENL
RHERE - B 775 - HIIARLR
RenEni  HRAREEHR
TRTANRFE-
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 46. BIEMERE &)

46.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 46.3 A FEMGE (&)
The following table presents the Group’s financial assets TRAE_SE_—_FER-_FT-—F
that are measured at fair value at 31 December 2022 and + A=+ BBRAFEFENE
2021: SEEREE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—EBR EER E=EH Fo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHT FHET
As at 31 December 2022 R-EBE-—F
+=A=+-H
Assets BE
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEF ABEN
SREE 137,082 10,653 - 147,735
Financial assets at FVOC| BAFEFAELME
BElR&H eMEE 118,372 - 4,206 122,578
255,454 10,653 4,206 270,313
As at 31 December 2021 R-B=-—£
+=A=+-H
Assets BE
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEF ABEN
EREE 310,955 15,545 = 326,500
Financial assets at FVOC| BAFEFARLME
Bz eMEE 262,493 - 15,376 277,869
573,448 15,545 15,376 604,369
There were no transfers between level 1, level 2 and level MEEEANTESE— —R=BH
3 during the years. v o
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
46.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the changes in level 3
financial assets:

f 3 SO 265 e A B

R RER &)
46.3 AP EMGE (&)

TREIF=-ELEREEZZE) :

Derivative
Financial asset financial assets
at FvodCl — put option
RAFETA
Hit 2wk TEEMEE
ZEMEE — RhHRE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT
At 1 January 2021 R—E-_—4F—HF—H 27,244 32,044
Fair value loss of financial assets at A FEFF AR M2 EWEHFEE
FVOCI recognised in FVOCl reserve  LAIRAFEFT AE M 2R
SREENATEERTE (11,868) —
Disposal HE - (33,357)
Fair value gain of derivative financial ~ $TASREE 2 A FERZE —
assets — put option recognised in R HIRE R ER
profit or loss - 1,313
At 31 December 2021 and at RZZE_—F+-A=+—HK
1 January 2022 - —F—HF—H 15,376 -
Fair value loss of financial assets at AT EFAH M2 EWEHFEE
FVOCI recognised in FVOCl reserve  LAIRAFEFT AR M2 E MR
SREAENATEEBEZ (11,170) -
At 31 December 2022 R =F+=-A=+—H 4,206 -
Note: As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group valued its iz R FE R —_FE-_—F+=-A4
investments in unlisted shares classified as financial assets at =t+—H x&EEUSERERLTE
FVOCI using back-solve method which is not based on observable FAREMEERERNEREEZIE
inputs. ETRGEEFERYIEENAIBRE
ABRR EIHEEITIEE -
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

260

46.4 Fair value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs (Level 3)

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer. The following table summarises the quantitative
information about the significant unobservable inputs
used in recurring level 3 fair value measurements.

Fair value at
Description 31 December Valuation technique(s)
Rt=A=+-H
i WATE HhERE
2022 2021
ZECCE ke
HK$'000 HK$'000
T Fin
Unlisted shares 4,206 15,376 Market approach using Volatility
back-solve method
E SRl RRRMEEE MRE it

46.5Group's valuation processes

The Group’s finance department performs the valuations
of financial assets required for financial reporting
purposes. The level 1 and level 2 fair values of financial
assets are measured by reference to quoted market
prices. For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
the Group has engaged independent professionally
qualified valuer, Kroll (formerly known as Duff & Phelps),
to assist the Group in determining the fair value of
financial instruments in level 3 for financial reporting
purposes. The responsibility for determining the fair value
rests with the Group.

At each financial year end, the finance department
reviews all significant unobservable inputs and valuation
adjustments used to measure the fair values of financial
instruments in level 3. Changes in level 2 and 3 fair values
are analysed at each reporting date. As part of that
discussion, the finance department presents a report that
explains the reasons for the fair value movements.

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#f€m&EBEER A A

BMERRER &)

464 FREARTA B R AEBEN

Unobservable inputs

TRRAARE

DV EFE(F=ZER)

AEEHNBRRESHEBHNEMF
HIENBE LRz HEREBANE
HAREERER TREREEE
FEZERATFEEMEANEKR
TRBRBABBNE(LER

Relationship of
Range unobservable
(weighted average)  inputs to fair value
i LB ¢
(METHE)  ATENEE
2021
—E--E

Volatility 50% 55%  The higher the volatility, the
higher the fair value
Ri RiEdE - AATEES
46.5 AEB 2 HERF

NEBE 2 A PETI ERE B
HEeRMEERBE - F—EBAR
—EREREELAFENRET
BHREHFE -BE-_T-_—_FK=
T F+-_A=+—HLFE"
$$@E§%ﬁiﬁ¥Aﬁ%ﬁﬁ
BiKroll B AR (AIBEE R FE
%%ﬁ@ T)%%$EIE%%
W¢EMF**_FW%ﬂIﬂm
AEE - EELAFENETERADN
£5 -

REMBRFEER  H5EHFIEEHN
ERRFEAES=EREBRTAR
FENAEEAFABENBIER
HERAR -F_ERRE=EHA
FYEEIXREBEREEHMETH
o tEREmZ — 8D - H5EM
SERX—MBREATEZHREDN

W& o



46.

47.

48.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

46.6 Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities measured at amortised cost

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost approximate their carrying
amounts.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

The Group provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities
granted by certain banks relating to mortgage loans arranged
for certain purchasers of the Group’s properties in the PRC of
approximately HK$3,223,000 (2021: HK$54,615,000).
Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default in
mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group will be
responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage principals
together with accrued interest and penalty owed by the
defaulted purchasers to the banks whilst the Group will then
be entitled to take over the legal title and possession of the
related properties. Such guarantees will terminate upon
issuance of the relevant property ownership certificates. The
directors of the Company consider that the likelihood of default
in payments by purchasers is minimal.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial
and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be
related if they are subject to common control or common
significant influence.

Save as those disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements,
the Group had the following significant related party
transactions during the period.

47.

48.

f 3 SO 265 e A B

R RER &)

46.6 ZBMHERNETENEMEER
TREENAFE

HREEKNATENEREEN SR
BEMQFEEERTERS

B RR

AEEBE AR TRITHAEERFRHZ
¥ % 5 493,223,000 T (Z 8 = — 4
54,615,000 7L) 2 & TEXRMIZBER
BT 2 RERBREREER - BRIEER
B WZEERRERBN L TIRBR
B ASEEEAERRITEEENER
MAREEZIRBAS - EREF B R
& ERAEEEEREEREYECE
RERFTARE - FIHBEY c EREZRZEL
% ZEERINEKEILE - ARAIESR
% BRI B AR -

BEBE RS

NEENERXEEES S T REM
BREERREH S T REBEEATE
HE  EHEBREE - BEXHLRES
FHREATZEETEF M

BRAMB MR AT AREEIN A%

BARHAEBELEATERRBB RS °
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48. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

262

(a) Key management compensation

Key management includes the board of directors and the
chief executive, and their compensation disclosed as

follows:

48.

BEAERZ &)
() TESEEHH

TZEEABBRESERITHAE
& HEmmimEmT

Directors’ fees

Basic salaries, housing allowances, other EA¥ & - FE285 -

allowances and benefits in kind
Contributions to pension plans

(b) Related parties balances

2022 2021
—E-= —E—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHBT FHET

EEME 3,146 5,336
H b2 R EWF = 4,046 9,634
BIREFTEIHER 256 227
7,448 15,197

(b) FEAHETERER

Other receivables from related
parties
Other payables to related parties

Loan and advances to related
parties

Corporate bonds subscribed by
a shareholder of the Company/
a director of the Company/
a director of a subsidiary of the
Company

Notes:

Hofth FE UL BRESE T 1
IR

H b &~ BEHSE J7 &Y
IR

45T REEE T N E K
R EAFR

ARE—HBBRR
ARA—BESR/
AR RN E
NAZ—RER
RBHORRES

(i) A director, Mr. Yao, has significant influence over the related

parties.

(i) The transaction were entered into at terms mutually agreed with
the related party in the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#f€m&EBEER A A

2022 2021

—=—= —E—

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt = THET FAT
(i), (i) 4,059 647
(i), (ii) (1,383) (5,492)
(i), (i) 1,010,441 995,414
(ii) - (227,000)

BT

() ERgELHEB T AEEAYE -

(i)  ZEZERSTHRERBE S LR ENIK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

f 3 SO 265 e A B

48. B B X5 (&)

(c) Related parties transactions (0
Notes
B &
Interest expenses on corporate RNAEEHFFERE
bond (i)
Rental income e WA @), (i)
Distribution costs P2k i=|DN (i), (i)
Administrative expenses TR E R (i, (i)
Interest income on loans and BRI BIA B UA
advances @), (i)
Property management services ) E IR AR TS (iif)
Notes:
(i) A director, Mr. Yao, has significant influence over the related
parties.

(ii) The transaction were entered into at terms mutually agreed with
the related party in the ordinary course of the Group's business.

(iii) During the year ended 31 December 2022, these transactions
constituted continuing connected transactions of the Group under
the Listing Rules. Further details of these above transactions of
continuing connected transactions are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 14 April 2021.

RS

2022 2021
=== —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FETT
4,515 4,883
(625) (1,104)

- 4,046

497 9,400
(114,188) -
488 2,048

B 3E -

(ii)

(iii)

BERgEEHEE T AFEATE -

%L 5 TR AR 77 R W E B 16
FRAEE A BEEBBEPRIL ©

HE-_T-_—_F+-A=+—HILF
B REETRA ZEXSHBRA
SENFERERS - Ll ERE
RHGME—FPHBEARARITBEHA
ZE-—FHATMHENRE -
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49.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
Acquisition of Equity Interest in a PRC Company

On 19 October 2022, the Company procured Shenzhen Baokai
Investment Holding Company Limited*, an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company CFYIIE R B A R A
A]) (the “Purchaser”) and Glory Sun Land Group procured
Shenzhen Hong Jia Xin Technology Limited*, an indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of Glory Sun Land Group (& 3Il 7= 1=
FEHEABR AR (the “Vendor”) to enter into an agreement,
pursuant to which the Purchaser conditionally agrees
to acquire, and the Vendor conditionally agrees to sell, 100%
of the total equity interest and actual paid-up registered capital
of Shantou Taisheng Technology Limited* (3l 38 7 % &% &l &
BBRA7]) (the “Target Company”) in two tranches. The 1st
tranche acquisition (representing 51% of the total equity
interest and actual paid-up registered capital of the Target
Company) was completed on 22 March 2023. For details,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
3 October 2022 and 22 March 2023 and the circular of the
Company dated 28 February 2023.

49. HEHRER

WiE — P E A TR RE

RZE_—_F+A+NB  ZARMEFRF
NEFAKREIERER DR (KA BRI EE
2ENBAR  [BEF))REHEHMES
REFIREFRNEERAR (BHEM
EEMEEENBAR  [BA])RIX
Wi Bl BEAERHRERENES
BIEGRE S ML HEWBEmRERH
BRAR(TBEERAR ) AR ERM
B MEARE100% - F— U HE (5B
SRRBREREESEEIMERN
S1%)BER-_E-_=F=A-+-H=
K- BTG B2MARARBEHAST
——H+AZBR-_ZT-_=ZF=ZA=-1+=
BORAEUEARGHEA T -_=F
A=+ \BHEK -

Consideration transferred EEERE
HK$'000
FHETT
Cash B 16,285
Set-off loans and advances from B S B M E R L BRI
Glory Sun Land Group 1,326,193
1,342,478

*  For identification purpose only
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49. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
(Continued)

Net assets recognised

Provisional fair value of assets and liabilities, based on their
carrying amounts recorded in the unaudited financial
statements of the Target Group as at 22 March 2023 prepared
by the management and subject to an audit, recognised at the
date of acquisition, are as follow:

f 3 SO 265 e A B

49, FHEHREE (&)

CHRZEERE

REBERZEERBBENBRRER
FE(ERREECENE B REE
EEER-_TE-_=F=ZA=-F+=-HZX
KEZIERENEEEGEEZ))AT

Provisional

fair value

[y SN |

HK$'000

T

Plant and equipment Hes KR 207
Investment properties &Y 2,135,540
Inventories FE 2,592,340
Trade and bills receivables 5 EWBR TR N e U 2= 4% 7,649
Cash and cash equivalents Re KA EEY 24,966
Deferred tax assets BERIAE B 11,936
Long term deferred expenses RAEPEEFA 7,915
Deposits and prepayments e RIBRHK 227,318
Other receivables H b UL BR X 516,094
Other current assets B REEE 80,579
Accruals and other payables FE T2 FA & L Ath B A AR X (148,652)
Contract liabilities AHaE (477,339)
Deferred tax liabilities FEFIEEE (374,192)
Trade and bills payables B o RN M ENERE (869,384)
Identifiable net assets acquired BESA#ANEEFE 3,734,977
Less: non-controlling interest B FEIEAR R (1,830,139)
Gain on bargaining purchase B (562,360)
1,342,478

Note: The initial accounting for the above acquisition has been determined
provisionally. Intangible assets are also to be identified and recognised
separately from goodwill awaiting the completion of professional
valuation in relation to the respective fair values. The identification and
recognition of intangible assets will have consequential effect on non-
controlling interest to be recognised on the completion date.

The gain on bargaining purchase is attributable to the Group’s
bargaining power and ability in negotiating the agreed terms
of the transaction with the Vendor.

Acquisition-related costs of HK$1,452,000 will be recorded in
the consolidated financial statements of profit or loss after the
year ending 31 December 2023.

ffeE . ERENS ST RECTRET - B
BENREREDHMB RHER - AFTEK
ERBEEATENEXMGE - BVEENH
R K HERR S B FE AR B H R R A0 R 4R AR A
mESAETE -

HEWBRE AR AN RENZEERE
NEETHERHER S RN -

W B AR RA A ZN 1,452,000 8 TS RE 2 =
T-=FE+ - A=+—HILFEEETA
A HREMIER
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50.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
(Continued)

Capital Reduction and Share Sub-division

References are made to the announcements of the Company
dated 15 September 2022, 3 October 2022, 28 October 2022,
3 January 2023 and the circular of the Company dated 31
October 2022 in relation to, among others, the Capital
Reorganisation. Unless otherwise defined, capitalised terms
used herein shall have the same meaning as those defined in
the circular dated 31 October 2022.

The Capital Reduction and the Share Sub-division have become
effective before 9:00 a.m. on Friday, 17 February 2023. Please
refer to circular dated 31 October 2022 for more details of the
Capital Reduction and Share Sub-division.

Placing of New Shares under General Mandate

References are made to the announcements of the Company
dated 27 February 2023 and 6 March 2023 in relation to the
placing of up to 313,875,122 new shares under the general
mandate. Unless otherwise defined, capitalised terms used
herein shall have the same meaning as those defined in the
announcements dated 27 February 2023 and 6 March 2023.

On 22 March 2023, a total of 310,624,390 Placing Shares have
been successfully placed to not less than six Placees at the
Placing Price of HK$0.34 per Placing Share, representing
approximately 16.52% of the issued share capital of the
Company as enlarged by the allotment and issue of the Placing
Shares immediately upon completion of the Placing. Please
refer to the announcements dated 27 February 2023 and 6
March 2023 for more details of the Placing.

Other than the disclosure above and elsewhere in this report,
the Group had no significant event after the reporting period.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been restated to conform
with current year’s presentation.

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff & @EBHER A A

49, FHEHEREE (&)

PR A HU it B2 B 40 5 4

ZRBARRBEMR T _—_FNAATEH

—=— —

=

B ZT__%+H=H"
b=y AN= 1

o BRRmBREN

REEBGHEREE -

BRABREEDIFEER T =_=F =
B+tB(EHRE) EFNARIERER-
BRARAHR X GO IFANE 215 - 7
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MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

(A) Property Held for Development and/or Sale:

PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

Yo vt I

FEBAFEENE
(A) BHERRRRHEZWE

Approximate Estimated Equity
gross  Progress in date of attributable
Location Classification floorarea  development completion to the Group
LEE rEE
bk 28 BEERE TIEE fhzt TR A A iR
(sq.m.)  (Note)
(k) (KtsE)
Baoneng Taigu Plaza Commercial 25,710 Completed and up for ~ Completed 100%
Lot No. K21, No. 38 Meiguan Avenue, sale
Zhangjiang New District, Ganzhou City, Jiangxi Province
LN EES TIFE Bk
TEEBEMNTEIHNREEAE 385 E K21 Ktk
Baoneng Plaza Commercial 29,761  Completed and up for ~ Completed 100%
Lot No. H25, Ganjiangyuan Avenue, Zhangjiangxin District, sale
Ganzhou City, Jiangxi Province
G2 Ax TIFE B
IEEBENTEINRETRAES H25 R0
Baoneng Plaza Commercial 8,400  Completed and up for ~ Completed 100%
Lot No. H26, Ganjiangyuan Avenue, Zhangjiangxin District, sale
Ganzhou City, Jiangxi Province
G2 G TIFE Bk
IREENTEINERDRABEH26 R
Gangzhou Baoneng Centre Office 35,352 Completed and up for ~ Completed 100%
Lot No. H26, Ganjiangyuan Avenue, Zhangjiangxin District, sale
Ganzhou City, Jiangxi Province
EMERehL BFE TIFHE RE4

IRERNMETHERTRAES H26 5058
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

Yok vt I

(B) Property Held for Investment:

(B) HrFREMWE :

Equity
Approximate Estimated attributable
gross  Progress in date of Lease to the
Location Classification floorarea  development completion expiry Group
Bag S T£E
it 28 BEAR RIEE fhatEmBE  AREG  EbER
(sqm.) (Note)
(FhK) (W)
Baoxin Technology Park (Phase 1-3) Office, Industrial, 426,878  Phase 1,2 Inservice;  Aug 2022 2055 75.5%
No. 9 Bangkai Road, Guangming Gaoxin District, Shenzhen, Dormitory Phase 3: Groundwork
the PRC
EMMRE(F-22H) BETE I% — ZHRAER: ZTZZF0\A
mERYITERENE A5 BE SHETR
Tower 2, Lippo Centre, No. 89 Queenway, Hong Kong Office 718 Inservice Completed 2059 100%
BACBERNENL2E B RAGER E7h
Baoneng Taigu Plaza Shopping Mall 22,868  Insenvice Completed 2052 100%
Lot No. K21, No. 38 Meiguan Avenue, Zhangjiang New District,
Ganzhou City, Jiangxi Province
ERASH Bt Nl B
THERMTETHEEBAE8REK iR
Baoneng Plaza Shopping Mall 81,386 Insenvice Completed 2052 100%
Lot No. H26, Ganjiangyuan Avenue, Zhangjiangxin District,
Ganzhou City, Jiangxi Province
L) Bt Nl B
IREBENDEIHRETRAEEH6 R
Baoneng Plaza Hotel 22,190 Inservice Completed 2052 100%
Lot No. H26, Ganjiangyuan Avenue, Zhangjiangxin District,
Ganzhou City, Jiangxi Province
L) il3 Nl B

THERNTETHERTRABEH26 LR
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